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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET ("GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) (the “Director(s)”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the Company’s website at http.//www.aplushk.com/clients/8166chinaeco-farming/
index.html and the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website for at least 7 days from the date
of its posting.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. So David Tat Man (“Mr. So”) (ERZEL % 4%), aged
32, is an executive Director. Mr. So holds a bachelor degree
in surveying from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
is @ member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. So started his
career in the investment department of Savills (Hong Kong)
Limited and then worked in a company that specialized in
China property investment prior to joining the Company. He
has extensive experience in investment in China and Hong
Kong. Mr. So was a non-executive director of Chinese Food
and Beverage Group Limited (stock code: 8272), a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) from
1 April 2014 to 31 December 2016. Mr. So joined the Group
in January 2014.

Mr. Lai Yick Fung (“Mr. Lai”) (BBz 8 % 4E), aged 46,
is an executive Director and the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Lai obtained a Master of Science Degree in
Financial Management in the University of London and a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy in The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr.
Lai had worked for an international accounting firm and
a number of listed companies in Hong Kong and the
United States as senior management and has over 20
years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. Mr. Lai joined the Group in April 2015.
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Au Yeung Po Leung (“Mr. Au Yeung”) (&[5 B
5%4), aged 58, is an executive Director. Mr. Au Yeung
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Diploma in Management Studies and he served in a
number of business roles for different financial institutions
in Hong Kong. Before founding his own business, Mr. Au
Yeung was appointed as the Deputy General Manager of the
Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (stock code: 639),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
for the period from April 2002 to July 2005 and has over 20
years of experience in banking and financial management.
Mr. Au Yeung joined the Group in January 2016.

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (“Mr. Ng”") (RE R k%),
aged 55, is an executive Director. Mr. Ng graduated from
the University of Alberta, Canada, with a Bachelor’s degree
in Commerce, majoring in Accounting. He also obtained
a Master of Commerce degree in Professional Accounting
from the University of New South Wales, Australia and is a
Certified Public Accountant in Australia and a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Ng has over 20 years of management and accounting
experience.

Mr. Ng is currently an executive director of U-RIGHT
International Holdings Limited (“U-RIGHT") (stock code: 627),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, which received
petitions from the Hong Kong Court against the company
and its wholly owned subsidiary, Uni-Capital Limited filed by
Detusche Bank A.G., Hong Kong Branch on 6 October 2008,
before Mr. Ng's tenure of office. The winding-up petition
against U-RIGHT was subsequently dismissed pursuant to
the order of the Hong Kong Court dated 16 September
2013. Mr. Ng was an executive director of China Fortune
Financial Group Limited (stock code: 290), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from December
2007 to July 2016. Mr. Ng was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in September 2014 and was
redesignated as an executive Director in September 2016.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (“Mr. Yick”) (5 ERE %),
aged 32, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Yick
is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
members of the audit committee and nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Yick graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Science degree. He
subsequently obtained the Juris Doctor degree as well as the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yick was admitted to practice
law as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2012. He has been a
member of The Law Society of Hong Kong since then. Mr.
Yick worked in both international and reputable local law
firms and is currently working as a solicitor with emphasis
on corporate finance practice at a local law firm. Mr. Yick
principally engages in Hong Kong listing projects and assists
in legal compliance of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Yick is currently an independent non-executive director
of Mengke Holdings Limited (stock code: 1629), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yick
joined the Group in September 2014.

Mr. Zhang Min (“Mr. Zhang”) ((REE %4 ) , aged 59, is an
independent non-executive Director. He is also the chairman
of the nomination committee, members of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor of Philosophy Degree from the
Beijing Normal College and a Master of Laws Degree from
the Renmin University of China.

Mr. Zhang is currently the chief executive officer and an
executive director of Junefield Department Store Group
Limited (stock code: 758), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Mr. Zhang was appointed as a non-executive director of
China Fortune on 8 December 2010. He was re-designated
and appointed as chairman of the board, executive director
and a member of the remuneration committee of China
Fortune from 12 April 2011 to 30 June 2014. In addition,
Mr. Zhang was an independent non-executive director of
Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 886), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
from 28 January 2011 to 1 April 2014. He was also the chief
marketing officer of the China Cinda Asset Management Co.,
Ltd from 28 April 2011 to 31 August 2013 and was the chief
executive of China Construction Bank Corporation, Hong
Kong Branch, from September 2006 to March 2011 and a
director of CCB International (Holdings) Limited and China
Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited from August
2006 to March 2011. Both CCB International (Holdings)
Limited and China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited are wholly-owned subsidiaries of China Construction
Bank Corporation (stock code: 939) (together with its
subsidiaries referred to as the “CCBC Group”), a joint stock
company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability, whose issued shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was the president of
the Beijing Banking Association from 2003 to 2005 and the
Beijing Investment Institution from 2001 to 2006. Mr. Zhang
possesses over 20 years’ experience in the banking industry
through his work with the CCBC Group. Mr. Zhang joined
the Group in March 2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (“Ms. Yuen”) (RE8 & +), aged
45, is appointed as an independent non-executive Director.
Ms. Yuen is also the chairman of the audit committee and
members of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee. Ms. Yuen graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a degree in Business Administration in
1994. She is the fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
overseas member of The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Yuen has worked in accounting
and auditing area for over 23 years. Ms. Yuen is currently
an independent non-executive director of Chinese Strategic
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8089), a company listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange, and an independent non-
executive director of The Hong Kong Building and Loan
Agency Limited (stock code: 145), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She was also an
independent non-executive director of Tai Shing International
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8103), a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from April 2014 to
December 2014. Ms. Yuen joined the Group in September
2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) was principally
engaged in the business of one-stop value chain services,
property investment, trading of grocery food products,
trading of consumables and agricultural products and
provision of money lending services. During the year ended
31 December 2015, the Group discontinued business
segments of the health care services and trading of ceramic
products.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
recorded revenue (including continuing and discontinued
operations) of approximately HK$72,470,000 (2015:
HK$66,151,000), representing an increase of approximately
9.6% as compared to that of last year. Loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$29,955,000 (2015: HK$59,214,000).
The basic loss per share of the Company was approximately
HKO0.60 cents (2015: HK1.61 cents).

The Group continued the enhancement of asset base through
acquisitions completed during the year under review, partly
with the aid of raising certain funds from the capital market.
On the revenue side, the Group relied less upon contribution
from one-stop value chain services whereas trading of
grocery food products had been extensively developing.
The Group will carefully monitor the performance of each
individual investment for creating value to shareholders of the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Property Investment

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the property
investment segment reported revenue of approximately
HK$3,586,000 (2015: HK$1,521,000), representing an
increase of approximately 135.8%, as compared with the
last year. At 31 December 2016, the Group held properties
in the People’s Republic of China (PRC), Taiwan and Hong
Kong for investment purpose amounted to approximately
HK$174,850,000 (2015: HK$201,360,000). The property
market in Shenzhen continued to be booming during the
year under review, while those in other PRC cities were less
volatile. As regard Taiwan and Hong Kong, no notable ups
and downs were recorded. On the other hand, our efforts
on enhancing rental yield could be demonstrated in the table
below.

Key performance - data of property investment

EEENWRE DM

REHE (&)
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& D SRS RS 493,586,000 (=T — A
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2016 2015

—E-XF —hHF

Average occupancy level F1945 A KF 63.3% 61.4%
Average monthly rental income BEHAKCEFR) G

per square metre (sq.m) AHEESKA HK$84% T HK$81/8 7T

Definition and calculation: Average occupancy level, being
percentage of floor area occupied by tenant. Average
monthly rental income per sq.m. being average rental income
charged to tenant per sq.m. of floor area leased.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

One-stop Value Chain Services

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the one-
stop value chain services segment reported a revenue of
approximately HK$35,955,000 (2015: HK$57,235,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 37.2%, as
compared with the last year. The decrease in revenue was
attributable to the weakened demand of products due to
slow down of economy in the ultimate target buyers, mainly
in Europe. Since this business segment still constitutes
the biggest proportion in the Group's revenue, the Group
will be spending necessary resources in maintenance and
development of products and markets.

Key performance — data of one-stop value chain
services

ERHE (&)
— R EEER%
BHE_Z—AR"F+ZA=T—HLEFE —i
BB H# RS 5 k15 U2 4935,955,000% 7T
—Z—FRF:57,2350008 L) - REF K
#9372% - WS THHREKERER(ZE
ABEON) B ERR  EWEEMNT RIK S
%ﬁ EAREBLBENER SIS B R EH &R
7 AEEFRBRNFENE RN ERS RER
E%&ﬁ%o

Fisg 7 3 — — Ui U (BB AR 75 19 B 15

2016 2015
—x"E —ZT—FF
Gross profit margin EXES 3.2% 2.3%

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin, being
percentage of gross profit to segment turnover.

Trading of Consumables and Agricultural Products
During the year ended 31 December 2016, this business
segment reported a revenue of approximately HK$5,712,000
(2015: HK$703,000). The surge in revenue was mainly due to
acquisition of reusable bags trading business during the year.
The overall gross margin amounts to 11.6%. The business
segment demonstrates huge potential and the Group is
optimistic about its future contribution.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Trading of Grocery Food Products

The Group’s trading of grocery food products segment
consists of distribution (i) in the catering channel in Hong
Kong for “Mengniu” liquid milk and pasteurized dairy
products, including but not limited to pure milk, low fat
high calcium milk, “Milk Deluxe”, “Fruit Milk Drink”, and
“Yoyi C” under the “Mengniu” brand; and (i) in peanut
oil, corn oil and canola oil under the “Jinlongyu” brand via
supermarkets, convenience stores and small-scale stores
in Hong Kong. In addition, the Group is also the sole and
exclusive distributor for the sale and distribution of ramen
and udon products under the brand of “Nittin”( H 7T )
in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. Given the relatively
high standard of food quality and hygiene requirements in
Hong Kong, the Group sees product demand in the market
and it may become the Group’s growth engine in future.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, this segment
reported a revenue of approximately HK$22,409,000 (2015:
HK$289,000).

Key performance - data of trading of grocery food
products
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2016 2015
A e
Gross profit margin EFE 6.3% 2.7%

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin, being
percentage of gross profit to segment turnover.

Performance guarantee — Mengniu and Jinlongyu
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 28
October 2015 entered into between Hexin Limited (“Hexin"),
Fantastic Alliance Investments Limited and the Company,
Hexin will be entitled to obtain 118,320,000 new shares to
be issued by the Company if YIHE Enterprise Holding Limited
("YIHE") successfully meet the target profit of HK$7,000,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016. Since YIHE recorded
a loss of approximately HK$891,000 instead, no shares of the
Company will be issued to Hexin. As a result, goodwill arising
from acquisition of YIHE was impaired by approximately
HK$14,446,000 whereas contingent consideration in the
amount of approximately HK$11,326,000 was reversed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Trading of Grocery Food Products (continued)
Performance guarantee — Mengniu and Jinlongyu
(continued)

The Group is in serious discussion with the management of
Huge Famous Corporation Limited (“Huge Famous”) with an
aim to come up with performance improvement plan in the
year ahead.

Securities Investments

As at 31 December 2016, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss held by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$79,269,000 (2015: HK$34,022,000),
representing approximately 15.3% (2015: 8.8%) of the
Group's total assets as at that date.

The Group adopts a balanced approach between long term
value appreciation and short term gains towards securities
investments and will review its portfolio on regular basis to
see if adjustments on strategy is required.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Board admits the responsibility to environmental
protection. Over the years, the Group has committed to
reduce waste and pollution with a view of effective and
efficient resources utilisation in the office spaces. Staff are
reminded from time to time the Group’s direction in this
respect.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
The Group's main business and operation work within
common trade practice environment and the Group
endeavours to comply with all legal and regulatory
requirements. In relation to the human resources, the
Group is committed to comply with the requirements of the
applicable laws and regulations, such as the Employment
Ordinance, ordinances in relation to discrimination, the
Privacy Ordinance and the Minimum Wage Ordinance. The
Group also values good conduct of the employees and has
set out clear guidelines to prevent bribery and to regulate the
acceptance of benefits by the employees. On the corporate
level, the Group continuously complies with the requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM Listing Rules”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), such as
disclosure of interests, corporate governance, Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers
and “Inside Information” disclosure. The Group employs legal
and financial advisers when undergoing acquisitions or other
corporate exercises. During the year ended 31 December
2016, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and rules by the Group.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
The Group recognises importance of retaining talents to
ensure the ongoing execution of business plans. The Group
has established all-rounded staff policy and guidelines for
staff welfare, provide a safe workplace, and support the
development of talent. The Group provides incentives to
its employees based on their performance. The Group
encouraged employees to update their work-related
knowledge, skill by providing training offered by external
organisations. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the employee voluntary turnover rate of the Group was kept
at a low level. During the year, no violation of labour law
was recorded. The key customers of the Group include the
long term trading customers and tenants of the investment
properties. The key suppliers of the Group are the suppliers
of the trading business. The Group has established long
term and solid business relationship with the suppliers which
ensures stable supply and quality products which meet
customers’ demand. During the year, there was no material
dispute between the Group and the customers/suppliers.

EEENWRE DM

REHE (&)

87 HEBEGI KRR
AEBTIEXBENEETHER —REAXRTEE
T BAKES N BREABEARMEERE
ERANERTE  NEBEAGEETERED
FOERRIRE - RGP - B REBAR BB -
FLRARBI R ETE G - AKETERE T
B RAFIR ST W B HIE B M 5| - AP L RR %
ERBREREEIMNE - REXER L A&H
SEETEEMARIAERAR ([B32M])
BIERES ETARR (TRIZER L ARR) LA
KEHFEBMEGRD ([EFEBMEER]) MR
o AERRE BEER LMBETAESE
TREFRZNFEETAIR [ABBE ] HE- X
SEETWRBLEMEERDR  SEAER
LR -BE—E—R"FE+-A=1+—~H
LHFE AEEYEBENERSNETERE
5 K2 3R A

BHES BERHMEFNBE
AEERARBREATOERM RIS
HR/URE- AEECHEBETIR/AMNELEE
BB THENMES REHEZ 20 TEREL
MXPBATHER AEBRBREXREAESR
HER - NEEBBREHINBEBERN N
P SR B BRI TR A
REE-RBE-_T—A"FTA=+—HLF
B AEEE B T 8RB RARITIMEKF-
FR-BMEERYS TEGIMLE  NEENE
EEFERRHESEFPAREMENEF -
AEENEIEZHERSESEHHHEER K
SEEZFHERDCEZYRARBENESGR
® R EFSLSTFERNBEHRER
BEER -FA AEHEAZF MEHLE
EMERFEZH-

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EEFR AT
Annual Report 2016 —Z — X F &1

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
a revenue (including continuing and discontinued operations)
of approximately HK$72,470,000 (2015: HK$66,151,000),
representing an increase of approximately 9.6% as compared
to that of last year. The expansion of trading of agricultural
and consumables products and trading of grocery food
products were nearly offset by the retardation of revenue
from one-stop value chain service.

Cost of sales (including continuing and discontinued
operations) for the year under review was approximately
HK$61,800,000 (2015: HK$61,917,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 0.2% as compared to that of
last year. The slight decrease of cost of sales was due to the
improvement of gross profit margin from trading of grocery
food products.

Administrative expenses (including continuing and
discontinued operations) for the year under review was
approximately HK$61,592,000 (2015: HK$42,519,000),
representing an increase of approximately 44.9% as
compared to that of last year. This increase was mainly
due to increase of share based payment of approximately
HK$9,288,000, increase of directors remuneration and staff
salary (excluding share based payments) of approximately
HK$3,878,000 and exchange difference of approximately
HK$3,745,000.

Finance costs for the year under review was approximately
HK$7,456,000 (2015: HK$4,093,000), representing an
increase of approximately 82.2% as compared to that of last
year. The increase was mainly due to increase in effective
interest expense on convertible bonds of approximately
HK$2,532,000 as compared with last year and increase of
the interest paid and payable for the secured bank loans and
other loans.

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company (including continuing and discontinued
operation) in the amount of approximately HK$29,955,000
(2015: HK$59,214,000). Basic loss per share of the
Company decreased from HK1.61 cents for the year ended
31 December 2015 to HK0.60 cents for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its business operations mainly with its
internally generated resources and borrowing during the year
under review. At 31 December 2016, the bank balances and
cash of the Group was approximately HK$22,298,000 (2015:
HK$36,871,000).

At 31 December 2016, the net assets of the Group was
approximately HK$362,127,000 (2015: HK$273,865,000)
and the net current assets was approximately HK$94,681,000
(2015: HK$93,758,000).

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2016, the total liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$155,779,000 (2015:
HK$113,534,000), which mainly comprised of trade and
other payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings, margin
loans payable, other loan payable, amount due to non-
controlling interests, loan from non-controlling interests,
liability component of convertible bonds and deferred tax
liabilities. These liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and New Taiwan Dollars.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$517,906,000 (2015: HK$387,399,000).
The gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets, increased to 0.30 as at 31 December
2016 (2015: 0.29).

Segmental Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended
31 December 2016 by business segment is set out in note 7
to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 44 (2015: 44)
total number of full-time employees. Staff costs, including
directors’ emoluments of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2016 were approximately HK$25,008,000 in
total (2015: HK$11,560,000). The Group determines the
remuneration and compensation payable to its staff based
on individual performance and expertise. Apart from basic
remuneration, share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well
as individual contribution.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2016, the Company's issued ordinary
share capital was HK$120,006,828.48 divided into
6,000,341,424 shares of HK$0.02 each (“Shares”) (2015:
HK$90,574,101.20 divided into 4,528,705,060 shares).

Fund Raising Activities

Issue of Convertible Bonds Il as a consideration of an
acquisition

On 13 December 2013, Skyline Top Limited (“Skyline Top”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Mr. So Pan
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which (i) Mr. So Pan has agreed to sell to Skyline Top, and
Skyline Top has agreed to purchase from Mr. So Pan the sale
shares of Konson Global Investments Limited; and (i) Mr.
So Pan has agreed to assign to Skyline Top, and Skyline Top
has agreed to accept the assignment of, the sale loan at an
aggregated consideration of HK$40,000,000, of which: (i)
HK$20,000,000 shall be satisfied by Skyline Top by cheque or
cashier order upon the completion; and (ii) HK$20,000,000
shall be satisfied by the Skyline Top’s procuring of the issue
of the convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds II”) at the
conversion price of HK$0.17 (note) per conversion share by
the Company to Mr. So Pan upon completion.

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
Convertible Bonds Il, 117,647,058 (note) new shares shall be
issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the issue of
convertible bonds as a consideration took place on 31 March
2014.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBEEREFRA T
Annual Report 2016 —Z — N FF i

M ERE (&)
BEERFMBE
R-ZE—RNE+-_A=+—H AEEEEFA
HAAZ 2 BEE (ZT—HF 448) - AA 7]
BHE T F+-_A=+—HIFEZET
KA (BIEEEME) S H425,008,0007% 7T
—ZE—FF:11,560,00087T)  AEEBEE
BREEEZENRALESBEEH S LBMH-
BREARF I A RBAEE 2 45 A R ER
EEAERREEREER THRE-

IR A 3R 48
RZE—XRE+-_A=+—8B A23E
BT E B A A120,006,828.488 L 0 A
6,000,341,424x G IR EE0.02/8 T 2 Ik f»
([B&m]) (ZE—HR%F:90,574,101.20%8 7T -
9 54,528,705,0600% 2 f& 15 ) °

KEEEH
RITURKESF —FRRIENE

RZE—=F+=A+=H ARA2EHB
AAIRBEAERAR ([RES])HBEE L E
RIVEEWE Bt (V&RLECREMK
BRadE mMAESEREABHFRLERER
ERIKREBRATNEERD  R()EE %L
FEREMAERERERRESEREERERZHM
BRI E B X 81{& &40,000,000/% T -
H A 1 (i) 20,000,000 T % B R BR m A SEAK 12
PASE e AN A+ K (i1)20,000,0005% 7T #5 F
R @R TR B RIBREARRBIRBRRETR
BARAR 19 0.178 7T (H77E) R So £ 1T Rl iR
KREH ([T@RERES=]) 2T

RABBRES BB e LR EETER

117,647,058/% (Hf 7t ) R0 15 F LA BT -

T AR 35 1 Ao R A W IR =
T-ME=A=+— AR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Issue of Convertible Bonds Il as a consideration of an
acquisition (continued)

Further details of the issue of convertible bonds as
a consideration of an acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 13 December 2013,
7 March 2014 and 31 March 2014 and the circular of the
Company dated 19 February 2014.

Note: On 2 July 2015, a placing of 629,000,000 new shares of the
Company was completed and pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the bond instruments of the Convertible Bonds,
the conversion price was revised from HK$0.188 to HK$0.17.
As a result, number of new shares to be issued upon exercise
of conversion attaching to the Convertible Bonds was revised
from 106,382,978 to 117,647,058.

Placing of new shares under general mandate -
successful

On 15 June 2015, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with the placing agent, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place, and the placing
agent has conditionally agreed to procure, on a best-effort
basis, not less than six placees for the subscription of up to a
maximum of 629,000,000 placing shares at the placing price
of HK$0.20 per placing share under the General Mandate.
The completion of the placing took place on 2 July 2015,
where a total of 629,000,000 placing shares have been
successfully placed by the placing agent to not fewer than
six placees at the placing price of HK$0.20 per placing share.
The gross proceeds from the placing were approximately
HK$125.8 million and the net proceeds after deducting
the placing commission and other selected expenses were
approximately HK$124.4 million. Further details of the
placing are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 16 June 2015 and 2 July 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Placing of new shares under general mandate -
successful (continued)

The net proceeds from placing were used as follows:
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On 25 April 2016, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with the placing agent, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place, and the placing
agent has conditionally agreed to procure, on a best-effort
basis, not less than six placees for the subscription of up to a
maximum of 420,000,000 placing shares at the placing price
of HK$0.10 per placing share under the general mandate.
The completion of the placing took place on 3 May 2016,
where a total of 420,000,000 placing shares have been
successfully placed by the placing agent to not less than six
placees at the placing price of HK$0.10 per placing share.
The gross proceeds from the placing were approximately
HK$42.0 million and the net proceeds after deducting
the placing commission and other relevant expenses were
approximately HK$41.5 million. Further details of the placing
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 25
April 2016 and 3 May 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Placing of new shares under general mandate -
successful (continued)

The net proceeds from placing were used as follows:
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Issue of Convertible Bond Ill & Convertible Bond IV as a
consideration of an acquisition

On 28 May 2015, Skyline Top Limited and Yardley Wealth
Management Limited (“Yardley”) became shareholders
(the “JV Partners”) of Delightful Hope Limited (the "JV
Company”) for the purpose of the proposed acquisition. The
JV Company is owned as to 50% by each of the JV Partners.
The directors of the Company considered the JV Company is
the subsidiary of the Company in accordance with HKFRS10
Consolidated Financial Statement.

Upon formation of JV Company, the JV Partners have agreed
to make provision for the management and administration
of the JV Company's affairs, and set out their respective
obligations and rights on the terms and conditions set in the
shareholders’ agreement (the “Shareholders’ Agreement”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Issue of Convertible Bond Ill & Convertible Bond IV as a
consideration of an acquisition (continued)

On 29 May 2015, the Company, the JV Company, Yardley
and Rich Best Asia Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into
the sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which (i) the Vendor has agreed
to sell and the JV Company has agreed to purchase entire
equity interest in China Smart Asia Limited, a subsidiary of
Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited (“Chinese Strategic”),
which the shares of Chinese Strategic are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8089); and (ii)
the Vendor has agreed to assign the JV Company, and the
JV Company has agreed to accept the assignment of sale
loan at an aggregate consideration of HK$93,000,000,
which shall be settled and discharged by the JV Company
in accordance with the time, mode and manner set out
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement: (i) forthwith upon
the execution of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the
JV Company and Yardley shall jointly and severally pay the
sum of HK$20,000,000 either in cash or by cashier order
to Chinese Strategic for and on behalf of the Vendor as
deposit (the “Deposit”), and the Deposit shall be applied for
partial payment of the consideration at completion; (i) the JV
Company and Yardley shall jointly and severally pay a further
sum of HK$26,500,000 either in cash or by cashier order to
Chinese Strategic for and on behalf of the Vendor for partial
payment of the balance of the consideration at completion;
and (iii) the remaining balance of the consideration in the
sum of HK$46,500,000 shall be settled and discharged by
the Company’s issuance to the Vendor (or any nominee of
the Vendor) (i) the convertible bonds (“Convertible Bond-
") in the principal amount of HK$23,000,000; and (ii) the
convertible bonds (“Convertible Bond-IV”) in the principal
amount of HK$23,500,000 at completion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Issue of Convertible Bond Ill & Convertible Bond IV as a
consideration of an acquisition (continued)

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
Convertible Bond-Ill & Convertible Bond-IV, 186,000,000 new
shares shall be issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the issue of
Convertible Bond-Ill & Convertible Bond-IV as a part of the
consideration took place on 20 August 2015.

Further details of the issue of convertible bonds as
a consideration of an acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 May 2015, 20
August 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 27 July
2015.

Subscription of shares under general mandate and
discloseable transaction on acquisition of 5% equity
interest of Anhui Damingyuan Tourism Development
Company Limited ( Z# X 85 B ik 2 % /@ IR 17 B IR 2 &])
On 19 July 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Mr. Sun Hui
(the “Subscriber”), who owns 80% equity interest of Anhui
Xingguang Investment Group Limited* ( Z@E K IGEELEEHR
FR 2 7)) (“Anhui Xingguang”). Pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement, the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed
to allot and issue, on the subscription completion date, in
aggregate 288,000,000 subscription shares at a consideration
of HK$43,200,000 at the subscription price of HK$0.15 per
subscription share. The subscription shares shall be allotted
and issued under general mandate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Subscription of shares under general mandate and
discloseable transaction on acquisition of 5% equity
interest of Anhui Damingyuan Tourism Development
Company Limited ( Z & X 87 & jc 52 % /@ IR 17 B R 2 &)
(continued)

On the same date, Fujian Seton Investment Co., Ltd (&
ZERZEARAR) (“Fujian Seton”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Anhui
Xingguang, an independent third party, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement pursuant to which the Anhui
Xingguang has conditionally agreed to sell, and Fujian
Seton has conditionally agreed to purchase, the sale shares,
representing 5% of the equity interest of Anhui Damingyuan
Tourism Development Company Limited ( & A BA & ik iz
R AR A F) (“Anhui Damingyuan”). The consideration
for the acquisition is RMB36,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$43,200,000), which shall be paid by Fujian
Seton by cash to Anhui Xingguang at acquisition completion.
Anhui Damingyuan is principally engaged in developing a
4A-level resort in Bengbu City Auhui Province, which is still
under construction.

On 31 August 2016, an aggregate of 288,000,000
subscription shares were allotted and issued to the Subscriber
at the subscription price of HK$0.15 each pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement. The net proceeds of the subscription
amount to approximately HK$43,100,000 has been used as
the consideration of the acquisition. Further details of the
subscription of shares are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 19 July 2016 and 31 August 2016.

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
Formation of Right Ocean Asia Limited

On 4 February 2016, Maxford Wealth Limited (“Maxford
Wealth”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a joint venture agreement (the “JV Agreement”)
with (i) the non-controlling shareholder (the “Shareholder”)
of Right Ocean Asia Limited (“Right Ocean”), an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, (i) spouse of the
Shareholder as a guarantor and (iii) Right Ocean, in which the
Shareholder shall procure Chan Kee Holdings Limited (“Chan
Kee") to enter into (i) the sole distributorship agreement for
the sole and exclusive distributorship to Right Ocean for the
sale and distribution of the food products in Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan; and (ii) trademark licence agreement
with the Company by which a licence will be granted to
the Company to utilise the trademark for the purpose of
distribution and sale of the food products in Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
(continued)

Formation of Right Ocean Asia Limited (continued)

In the meantime, a shareholder loan agreement was entered
between Maxford Wealth and Right Ocean, pursuant to
which Maxford Wealth has agreed to advance a loan of
HK$11,000,000 to Right Ocean, with a fixed interest rate of
5% per annum and repayable on demand.

Another loan agreement was entered between Right Ocean
and Chan Kee, pursuant to which Right Ocean has agreed
to advance a loan of HK$6,000,000 to the trademark
owner, Chan Kee, with the Shareholder and spouse of the
Shareholder as guarantors, an interest rate of 7% per annum,
repayable within 36 months after drawdown for business
operation.

Further details of the formation of Right Ocean, the sole
distributorship agreement, trademark licence agreement and
loan agreements are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 4 February 2016.

Acquisition of 60% of the entire issued share capital

of Inno-Bag Limited (“Inno-Bag”) involving issue of the
Company’s shares under general mandate

On 29 July 2016, Treasure Max Investment Holdings Limited
("Treasure Max"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and Ms. Kwok Shuk Kam (“Ms. Kwok") entered into a sale
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Ms. Kwok
agreed to sell 1,200 ordinary shares of Inno-Bag (“the Sale
Shares”), representing 60% of the entire issued share capital
of Inno-Bag, to Treasure Max, and Treasure Max agreed to
acquire the Sale Shares from Ms. Kwok. The consideration for
the acquisition is the sum of up to HK$4,212,000, which shall
be satisfied by cash of HK$2,600,000 and remaining amount
of HK$1,612,000 shall be settled by issue of not more than
12,400,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.13 per share
under the general mandate.

Inno-Bag is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability. The principal business of Inno-Bag involves
trading reusable bags/eco-friendly reusable bags in Hong
Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
(continued)

Acquisition of 60% of the entire issued share capital of
Inno-Bag involving issue of the Company’s shares under
general mandate (continued)

The acquisition has been completed on 25 August 2016, and
the first portfolio consideration shares and second portfolio
consideration shares were yet to be allotted. Further details
of this acquisition are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 29 July 2016 and 25 August 2016.

Disposal of property in Shenzhen

On 7 December 2015, Chengwang Investment Consulting
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (AEREZRA ORI AR R A,
a company of limited liability established in the PRC and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Chengwang”),
as vendor and Mr. Mai Jian Xun (“Mr. Mai”) as purchaser
entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which Mr. Mai agreed to acquire and Chengwang
agreed to sell a property situated at Shenzhen at a
consideration of RMB9,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,408,000). Completion of disposal took place on 18
January 2016.

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 22 August 2016, Alpaco Company Limited (“Alpaco”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered a
share subscription agreement with an independent third
party for the subscription of 9,999 shares of Alpaco,
representing 99.99% equity interest, at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$8,097,000. The subscription was
completed on 22 September 2016. On 31 December 2016,
the remaining 0.01% equity interest was also disposed at a
nominal amount. As a result, the Group’s interest in Alpaco
was fully disposed as at 31 December 2016.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|BEEREFRA T
Annual Report 2016 —Z — N EF i

BrEs IR ()
EXARE WERHE (&)

ERRE—MEERITEALARGHKIEHLE
RRREHERITRAZ260% (&)

WEEBEER-T—"FNAZ+HBZEK"
e —#ARE D & E — S B RD i R ER
B BHARANBEE E-—FHBHNAR
AEBHAZTE—RFLtAZTNARARZE—X
FNAZ+RHZA M

HERFY Y ¥

RZB—RF+-ALR REREZHN(F
Y BRAF (—ERPEKIMNERAR B
ABARRZEWNBAR ([E2])) (ERE
FomEEEe g ([BEE]) (FEBEHR)E]
VEERE Bt BALERBEREMAEZRE
HEMR AR - RE A AKK9,700,000
7T (FAE R #911,408,000/8 7T) - WER - =
—~F-A+N\BEK-

HE— K& 2 A

RZZBE-—RENAZ+ZH ARAZ2ENE
‘A aAlpaco Company Limited ([Alpaco J) &2
—BBYE=FARI RO ABERE  ARE
Alpaco 9,999 & 7 * 1599.99% # &= - & X
B 41/38,097,0008 L - BN _ZT—RFN
AZt+ZBEK -RZE—RE+A=+—
B8 TH0.01%ERIMEHELE &R B
ZE-RFT+ZA=T—8 FEERAlpaco
MR BEHE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Charges on Group'’s Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had charges on one
of its investment properties, to obtain a mortgage financing
from a bank in Taiwan of approximately HK$9,181,000
(2015: HK$9,581,000). In addition, the Group had charges
on another investment property and certain available-for-
sale investments to obtain a term loan from a bank in Hong
Kong of approximately HK$10,000,000 (2015: nil). Certain
investments held for trading have been pledged to brokers’
account to obtain a margin loan financing of approximately
HK$16,768,000 (2015: nil).

Contingent Liabilities
At 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2016, the Group had capital commitment
amounting to approximately HK$2,451,000 (2015:
HK$1,026,000).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

All of the Group's assets, liabilities and transactions are
mainly denominated either in Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi
or New Taiwan dollars. The Directors do not consider that the
Group is exposed to any material foreign currency exchange
risk. Therefore, no hedging devices or other alternative have
been implemented.

Events after the Reporting Period
Details are set out in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the global economies are expected to remain
challenging in 2017, and trading conditions are likely to be
uncertain. The depreciation of Renminbi, fluctuation in stock
market and government measures on property market are
still factors hanging around. The Group continues to allocate
resources carefully in different business segments to optimise
the investment strategies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)

One-stop value chain services

During the year, the Group noticed that the demand of
products were weakening. Nevertheless, the Group will
be spending necessary resources in maintenance and
development of products and markets. We expect that this
business segment will still constitute a certain proportion in
the Group's revenue and stable gross profit.

Property investment

During the year under review, one of the Group’s investment
properties situated in Hong Kong was disposed through the
disposal of equity interest of Alpaco. Further, one of the
investment properties situated in PRC was also disposed
(completion of disposal took place on 14 March 2017). The
Directors consider the disposals represent a good opportunity
for the Company to realise its investments at a profit as well
as strengthening the Group's cash position.

Given the uncertain economic outlook, the Group will grasp
the opportunity to be benefited from the potential capital
gain of the assets together but also balance with enhanced
rental yields.

Trading of consumables and agricultural products

The business segment for trading of consumables and
agricultural products was expanded through the acquisition
of Inno-Bag. The acquisition of Inno-Bag will enable the
Group to expand and create business synergy which may
provide a marketing platform for the advertisement of the
Group's products. The business segment demonstrates
huge potential and the Group is optimistic about its future
contribution.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)

Trading of grocery food products

During the year under review, the Group has reshuffle
its resources to develop this business segment. While the
performance from Huge Famous is disappointing, the
management of Huge Famous is in serious discussion with
an aim to come up with performance improvement plan in
the year ahead, including but not limited to penetration into
more variety of products.

The Group remains positive on the strategic alliance with
Chan Kee. The Group is also of the view that the leveraging
with Chan Kee's strong distribution channel with retailers
including giant chain supermarkets creates synergy effect and
opportunities with the potential grocery food products. The
Group will work closely for diversifying products types in the
future.

Provision of money lending service

This segment demonstrated a significant growth when
compared with last year. The Group continues to maintain
sound credit control policy when advancing loans to
the customers. The Group admits prudent measures are
particularly important and essential during the unstable and
unpredictable economic hard times. We shall continue to
locate different financial resources to maintain our cost of
funding at a justifiable level.

The Company is committed to maximise shareholders’
wealth. The Group continues to look for investment
opportunities and establish focus on high profitability projects
in line with the Group's investment strategies. The Group is
confident that the relatively disappointed results recorded
before become a history in future.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Directors present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 86 of this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the principal activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 10 to 29 of this annual report.
These discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
274 of this annual report.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in Note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The largest customer accounted for approximately 64.4%
(2015: 63.6%) of the Group's turnover (including continuing
and discontinued operations), and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 81.2% (2015: 77.8%) of the
Group's cost of sales (including continuing and discontinued
operations), for the year ended 31 December 2016. To the
best knowledge of the Directors, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2016, any Director or his associates
or any shareholder (who owned more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) has any interest in the above-
mentioned customers or suppliers.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year ended 31 December
2016 in the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 90 to 91 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company did not have any
reserves available for cash/in specie dividend distribution to
shareholders of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
IIAGMII)

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:00 p.m.
on 2 May 2017 (Tuesday)
Book close date 4 May 2017 (Thursday)
To 9 May 2017 (Tuesday)

Record date 9 May 2017 (Tuesday)

AGM date 9 May 2017 (Tuesday)

In order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the
AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office, Union Registrars
Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F, Two Chinachem Exchange
Square, 338 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong before the
above latest time to lodge transfers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company has adopted a new share option scheme on 6
May 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years from 6 May 2011 to 5 May 2021, unless terminated
otherwise as in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Group to grant options to eligible participants
the Directors may at its absolute discretion select as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group. Eligible
participants include any employee (whether full-time or part-
time, including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors), shareholder,
customer, supplier of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds an
equity interest; any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support, any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of
business or business development of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by way of joint
venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to
the development and growth of the Group.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised or outstanding options) to
each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options
in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant shall be
subject to the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of
the Company. Where any grant of options to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:
(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million; such further grant of options must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on the date upon which the
offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination
as set out in the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of the
grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period
required under the Share Option Scheme for the holding of
an option before it can be exercised.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option. The subscription price for shares
under the Share Option Scheme will be a price determined by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
guotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6
May 2011, the Company was also authorised to issue up to
242,459,969 shares (i.e. 121,229,984 consolidated shares
upon the share consolidation effective on 11 October 2013)
upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group,
being 10% of the shares in issue on 6 May 2011 (the
“General Scheme Limit”). The Company may seek separate
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting to grant options
beyond the General Scheme Limit to participants specifically
identified by the Company before such approval is sought.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares to be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, options in
respect of 437,000,000 Shares were granted and accepted
on 12 September 2016 to certain Directors, employees and
consultants under the Share Option Scheme. Closing price
of the Shares immediately before 12 September 2016 was
HK$0.11 per Share.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 12,950,000
shares options were lapsed.

As at 31 December 2016, the number of Shares in respect
of which options had been granted and accepted and
remained outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was
488,800,000 (2015: 64,750,000), representing approximately
8.15% (2015: 1.43%) of the Company’s issued share capital
as at that date.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. So David Tat Man

Mr. Lai Yick Fung

Mr. Au Yeung Po Leung (appointed on 2 January 2016)

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith
(re-designated from independent non-executive Director
on 1 September 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith
(re-designated as executive Director on 1 September 2016)
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey
Mr. Zhang Min
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (appointed on 1 September 2016)
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(continued)

Each independent non-executive Director has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a fixed term of two
years and may be terminated by not less than three months
prior notice in writing served by either party to the other
in accordance with the provisions set out in the respective
appointment letter.

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial fixed term of two years
and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than six months’ notice in writing served by either party to
the other in accordance with the provisions set out in the
respective service agreement. Each of the executive Directors
may receive a discretionary bonus, the amount of which
will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion
having regard to the operation results of the Company and
performance of the Directors.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company, which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Mr.
Zhang Min and Ms. Yuen Wai Man, an annual confirmation
of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2016.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, chief executive
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out
in Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they have taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be entered in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, were
as follows:

Long position in the underlying shares in respect of the share
options of the Company (which were regarded as unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives) granted under the Share
Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 6 May 2011:

EE BETBRAEBRINGESHAL
[
EENAKERSITHRABRAUESHAL
& FE D RSN &AM mRME12K
13

EERBETHRAERAQAHEMHE
BB zR HEARORES 2ES

FKE

R_E—RNE+-_A=Z+—HB KQAFESEH
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Outstanding Outstanding

Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat

Date of per Share 1 January during during during 31 December

Name grant (HK$)  Exercisable period 2016 the year the year the year 2016

R=B-R% RZB-XE

SRER -A-H tZBZt-H

23 RYBH ke &S WR{TE ERRH ERfTR ERER WRATE

(7

So David Tat Man 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2015-13 July 2016 8,550,000 - - (8,550,000) -
BEY “E-RELATER “E-nEtATRAZ
“F-AFEATZA

14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 12,825,000 - - - 12,825,000
Z3EtATMAZ
“E-tELATER

14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 21,375,000 = = = 21,375,000

“I—+F+ATEAZR
“2-\f#tA+=A
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EEEHE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR BEENESTHEAERAKD B HIEME
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING BEEZ2RGD HBEROBEESZES
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ;KA (F)
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Date of per Share 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant (HK$)  Exercisable period 2016 the year the year the year 2016
RZB-#E R=B-%%
gRES -B-H TZA=t-H
2] RHEH TEE A WRTR ERRH ERTE EREN HRTR
(%)
12 September 2016 0.11 13 September 2016 - - 15,600,000 - - 15,600,000
ZF-~"ENATZH 12 September 2019
Z3-~"ENAT=RE
“E-NEAATZH
13 September 2017 - - 15,600,000 - - 15,600,000
12 September 2019
“Z-tENAT=RE
“E-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - - 20,800,000 - - 20,800,000
12 September 2019
“Z-\ENATZHE
“E-NEAATZH
Lai Yick Fung 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2015-13 July 2016 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
Bnz “E-nEtATEA “E-nEtATHAZ
B EtATER
14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
ZE-R"EtATMAZ
“Z-+E+ATEH
14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
“3-tEtATMAZE
ZE-\FtA1=A
12 September 2016 0.11 13 September 2016 - - 12,000,000 - - 12,000,000
—F-~"ENATZH 12 September 2019
ZE-~ENRTZHE
ZZ-NEAATZH
13 September 2017 - - 12,000,000 - - 12,000,000
12 September 2019
“Z-tENAT=RE
ZZ-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - - 16,000,000 - - 16,000,000
12 September 2019
ZT-\ENAT=HE
ZZ-NEAATZH
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

Name

i3

Exercise price
Date of per Share
grant (HKS)

BRER
fTEE
(#x)

RARH

Outstanding

as at

1 January

Exercisable period 2016
R=B-A%

-A-H

frEH HATE

Granted
during
the year

FREH

Exercised
during
the year

FRTE

EERBETHRAEBRAQAHE[HE
BEE KRG HERORES 2ES
KA ()

Outstanding

Lapsed asat
during 31 December
the year 2016
R=B-%%
TZB=1-H

FREN HAR{TE

Au Yeung Po Leung
Ey

Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith
REN

12 September 2016 on
“F-AERATZA

13 July 2015 0212
“EI-RELATER

12 September 2016 on
“EREAATR

13 September 2016 - -
12 September 2019

Z3-~"ENAT=RE
“Z-NEAATZH

13 September 2017 - -
12 September 2019

“Z-tENAT=RE
“F-AEAATZR

13 September 2018 - -
12 September 2019

“Z-\ENATZHE
“Z-NEAATZH

14 July 2015 - 13 July 2016 800,000

“E-nEtATMRAZ
ZE-EtATER

14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017

ZE-R"EtATWAZ
“Z-+E+ATEH

14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018

“E-tEtATRAZ
ZE-\EtA1=A

1,200,000

2,000,000

13 September 2016 - -
12 September 2019

ZE-~ENRTZHE
“2-NEAATZR

13 September 2017 - -
12 September 2019

“E-tENAT=RE
“Z-NEAATZH

13 September 2018 - -
12 September 2019

ZE-\EnAT=HZ
“2-NEAATZR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR BEENESTHEAERAKD B HIEME
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING BEEZ2RGD HBEROBEESZES
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ;KA (F)
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Date of per Share 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant (HK$)  Exercisable period 2016 the year the year the year 2016
RZB-#E R=B-%%
gRES -B-H TZA=t-H
2] RHEH TEE A WRTR ERRH ERTE EREN HRTR
(%)
Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2015-13 July 2016 800,000 - - (800,000) -
AEE “F-1%tAt+=H ZT-nEtATRAZ
ZE-AEtAT=H
14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000
ZE-~EtATRAZ
ZE-t5tA1=A
14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
“E-tE+ATMAR
ZE-\EtAT=A
12 September 2016 0.11 13 September 2016 - - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
B ENATZH 12 September 2019
2 ENATZRE
ZZ-nNERATZH
13 September 2017 - - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
12 September 2019
“3-tENAT=RE
ZZ-NERATZH
13 September 2018 - - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
12 September 2019
Z2-\ENAT=ZHE
ZZ-NERATZH
Zhang Min 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2015-13 July 2016 800,000 - - (800,000) -
KR “3-nFtAT=A ZT-nEtATMmAZ
ZE-EtRt=A
14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000
“E-EtATRAZ
ZE-tEtATER
14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
“E-tELATWAR
“E-\FtAt+=A
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

EERFRETHRAEBRAQAHE[AMHE
BEE KRG HERORES 2ES
KA ()

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Date of per Share 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant (HK$)  Exercisable period 2016 the year the year the year 2016
RZB-RE RZB-/E
BRER -A-H TZA=t-H
2] RHEH ke &8 HRTR ERRH ERfTE EREN WATR
(1)
12 September 2016 0.11 13 September 2016 - - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
“F-~"¥NATZA 12 September 2019
“2-AENRTZEE
e N
13 September 2017 - - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
12 September 2019
“Z-tENAT=RE
“Z-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
12 September 2019
“Z-\ENATZHE
“Z-NEAATZH
Yuen Wai Man 12 September 2016 0.11 13 September 2016 - - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
REH ZE-~ENATZH 12 September 2019
“E-RENATZRE
ZE-NEAATZH
13 September 2017 - - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
12 September 2019
“E-tFNATZRE
ZE-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
12 September 2019
“E-\FNATZRE
ZE-NEAATZH
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed under the section “"DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS” above,
at no time during the Reporting Period, there subsisted
arrangements to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
is a party, being arrangements whose subjects are, or one
of whose objects is, to enable any of the directors or the
chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors of the Company, their spouse or
their children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2016.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware of and having made due
enquiries, as at 31 December 2016, the following parties,
other than the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions directly or indirectly
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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BMERRAREEFANBARZ2ETINE
o mZELHNEER (LEFLHNERT
Z—R)BARABFAEBTHRABRERBA
AR R SAAAEMEA B RO HEHES
(BREESF) MERNG  BARAEAES:

BENEBEARERAM T RN TFEREE=
E-RNFTZA=T—RIFEMREERERN
RBBEARRAIES

FERR

REFMALEELREESH R_F—XF
TZRA=+—H U TAL(RRAEFHE
ZITHA BRRIN RA R BB K AR R AR 0
BUATAREEZ MAERMFEXVEEFH2K3
7 EMEX AR R AR B RSN AR BRIEE
M EEGRAIE336GRFE < B MrEE K
BRERIORR

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of RAATBRGEEBERDZHA
the Company:
Number of Number of
shares of shares of Approximate
the Company the Company percentage of
(Personal (Corporate the issued
Name of shareholders Interests) Interests) Total share capital
AARRGEE AARRGEE HEBITRAEAMN
BREEHR (AARER) (DRER) meE BREIH
(Note 1)
(Hizz1)
Yardley Finance Limited (Note 2) - 500,000,000 500,000,000 8.33%
A IEER AR (AH2)
Chan Kin Sun (Note 2) - 500,000,000 500,000,000 8.33%
BRERT (H1722)
Sun Hui 395,840,000 - 395,840,000 6.59%
%iE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company: (continued)

Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital was HK$120,006,828.48 divided into
6,000,341,424 Shares of HK$0.02 each.

2. These shares were held by Yardley Finance Limited
("Yardley Finance”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. Since Yardley Finance is
wholly-owned by Chan Kin Sun, Chan Kin Sun was
deemed to be interested in these shares.

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware of any
other person, other than a director or the chief executive
of the Company, who held interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2016 as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

REPURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the
Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and
distribution of grocery food products
On 4 Feb 2016, Chan Kee and Right Ocean entered
into the Sole Distributorship Agreement whereas Chan
Kee has agreed to appoint Right Ocean as its sole and
exclusive distributor for sale and distribution of the
Products within the territories of Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan (the “Sale Transactions”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BERXS (&)

1. Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and 1. HERERS - HERIHEEBRRR
distribution of grocery food products (continued) (&)
Right Ocean is indirectly held as to 51% by the BSHMARARBERSES1% A X
Company and 49% by Ms. Yoo, Chan Kee (90% +35549% - iR IEAI 2R B 8I520
held by Mr. Chan, the spouse of Ms. Yoo) is therefore S B (HEeEt R ERLERES
connected person at subsidiary level of the Company 0% ) EmMAERNATRWE AT E®Z
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and FEAT RE DR RE N EET
the Sale Transactions contemplated under the Sole TIHHEXTSREK AN ZEERER
Distributorship Agreement constitute continuing S BAEASAIER TR ANE0ESH
connected transactions on the part of the Company B A REESEET-

subject to reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing

Rules.

The Master Agreement TEEE

The Sole Distributorship Agreement B— i

Date: 4 February 2016

HE]: —ET—-R"F-HM@A

Parties: (i) Chan Kee

HEE (i) CER
(ii) Right Ocean
iy BB

Duration: Commencing from the date of the Sole Distributorship Agreement up to 31
December 2018 (both days inclusive)

FRERTHER - BE—DHEERZBHARG B2 -2 \FT_A=1t—RB (EEaEMm

Subject matter:

TEFR:

Annual Caps:

FELER:

Transaction amount:
RPTE:

B)

The Sale Transactions
HER S

The Sale Transactions will be subject to the following annual caps:
HERSGHAME NIFRE LR :

The aggregate amounts payable by Right Ocean to Chan Kee for the Sale
Transactions for the period from the date of the Sole Distributorship Agreement
up to 31 December 2016 and for each of the two financial years ending 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 shall not exceed HK$25 million,
HK$35 million and HK$40 million, respectively

BE—DHEERZERPEE _T—RE+_A=+—RHAKBE_T—+F
T AT ARZE-NFFTZA=+—BIMENBRFESFAHME -
BUBRIZHERXZEN TRENESE DR T SHBE2BEEE T 3588
BT RABEAET

For the year ended 31 December 2016: approximately HK$5.49 million
REBE_Z—R"F+_A=+—HILLFE:N54988ET

Terms: On normal commercial terms and at rates no less favourable from independent
iRk third parties in respect of the transactions similar to the Sale Transactions.
Detailed payment terms are specified in individual contracts governing
particular transactions.
BR—REAXRGRARBRITERBYUE=TRHEERFIRURFINEE - FHAX
MERREBERERZER G A TR -
Details were set out in the Company’s announcement HEHRARRBRA-ZT—XRF_A
dated 4 February 2016. RS = /N i
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

BEXS (&)

Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and 1. HEREN S ERSHERE SR

distribution of grocery food products (continued) (48)

Definitions B

“Chan Kee” Chan Kee Holdings Limited

[BRAC 5 R EEFR AT

“Products” various products being packaged ramen and udon noodles
sold by Chan Kee and purchased by and to be distributed by
Right Ocean

[ZEEMm] ¥ HBRCSHERHEEBERDENSERSRNARSLME
an

“Right Ocean” Right Ocean Asia Limited

[ ¥ BUBEMARRDR]

“Sole Distributorship Agreement”

[ — D H W] B

the agreement entered into between Chan Kee and
Right Ocean dated 4 February 2016 in respect of the Sale
Transactions

RECEEERIHERINARAR T RNF_AMBGIZH

ES

The above transactions have complied with the
requirements for continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors are of the opinion that the above
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of
business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; (iii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole; and (iv)
have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount
capped in accordance with the announcements of the
Company dated 4 February 2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and
distribution of grocery food products (continued)
Definitions (continued)

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the Company's
auditors, were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by
the Group in accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in Note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BEXS (&)

1.

(%)

BE (&)

ARBZEBEVMEKFH (FE) Gt E
BRARAPEZBREE SN
SRMH BB R E RIS RS2 RIZF 3000
BB EHBEMBERIANNZ &
] R2EHITHESIF7405 [R
BEELMRUBLNBEBERFZ
BEDRRE] - AR A ERERERZ 51
HIRE < Sk (FB) ERTEIEB
BRARIEREREIZER EHARAF20.54
R AEREE LM ERHAYHAN
SERBEN EARFERERI SN HELS
RINABHEE - N B E B BUAD ok 1 Bl A

N
ZON

et N

BEEALXRS

RBE_Z-—R"EF+A=+—BIEFERZ
FEA LR B BHNERA M MK TE46 ©
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COMPETING INTERESTS

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith, an executive Director, was a
director of Fortune Finance Limited (resigned on 8 July 2016),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Fortune Financial Group
Limited. Fortune Finance Limited is engaged in provision
of money lending service which has potential competing
interests with the Group’s business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any
business or interest that compete with the business of the
Group or has or may have any other conflict of interest with
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in Note
42 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws although there is no restriction against
such under the laws in Bermuda.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company'’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance practices are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” section of this report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set up by the remuneration
committee of the Company on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard
to market competitiveness, individual performance and

achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above and also in Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 31 July 2001 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control and risk
management systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors; namely Ms. Yuen Wai Man (Chairman), Mr. Yick
Ting Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min.

The audited financial results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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AUDITOR

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING") was appointed
as auditor of the Company on 18 December 2008 and
subsequently re-appointed as auditor of the Company at
the last three annual general meetings of the Company
held on 26 May 2014, 2 June 2015 and 4 May 2016. The
consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2013, 2014 and 2015 of the Company were
audited by SHINEWING. A resolution for the re-appointment
of SHINEWING as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board
So David Tat Man
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management
of the Company are committed to the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices and procedures.

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the

Company.

The Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year under
review except for the following deviation:

The code provision A.2.1 of the Code provides, among
others, the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Company did not appoint a chairman. The Board will
keep reviewing the structure of the Board from time to time.
If candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and experience
is identified, the Company will make appointment to fill the
post of chairman as appropriate.

Under code provision A.2.7 of the Code, the chairman of
board should at least annually hold meetings with the non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors present. As the
Company does not have the Chairman, no such meeting was
held in this regard for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company was not aware
of any non-compliance with the required standard as set out
in such code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, four are
executive Directors and three are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2016
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. So David Tat Man
Mr. Lai Yick Fung
Mr. Au Yeung Po Leung
(appointed on 2 January 2016)
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (re-designated from
independent non-executive Director on 1 September 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith
(re-designated as executive Director on 1 September 2016)
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey
Mr. Zhang Min
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (appointed on 1 September 2016)

The Directors’ biographical information are set out on pages
5 to 9 in this report. All executive Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.
There is no relationship among the members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company is committed to having a diversity of the
Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy. The
Company considers that having a Board with diverse culture
would assure Directors that their views are heard, their
concerns are attended to and they serve in an environment
where bias, discrimination and harassment on any matter
are not tolerated. The Board has adopted a board diversity
policy which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. Board appointments are based on merit
and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board
including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board
consisted of three independent non-executive Directors who
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualification
to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. One of the independent non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualification
or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required by Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.
Each independent non-executive Director has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for an initial fixed
term of two years and may be terminated by not less than
three months prior notice in writing served by either party to
the other or in accordance with the provisions set out in the
respective appointment letter.

The Board considers that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and have received from
each of them the annual confirmation of independence
required by Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring of
the Group's overall strategies and policies; approving of
business plans; evaluating the performance of the Group and
overseeing the management. The Board focuses on overall
strategies and policies with particular attention paid to the
growth and financial performance of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to the executive Directors and senior management, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of
the Board are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended Board meetings.

The Company has arranged insurance coverage on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions which
may be taken against its Directors and officers in the
execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE
The Board meets regularly at least four times a year to review
the financial and operating performance of the Group.

Details of the attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and general meetings of the Company
are as follows:

EEg (#)
EXeRBATEERASAEEEETARE
ZEERE BEREETEEEH TESSH
K -BEEEEBLEEFTSTRINTES
BEBEFEIRETERE-

ARBEREERTRABBEEERFRR &
EREFRETEBRE AR EER A e 2 AR
HER AR

EEEEEREEHER
EFEZOBEEHRTNAEH UEHA
SEHBREERR -

REENARREESERMBRRG2HE
RERIT

Attendance of

HE
Board General
Meetings Meetings
Exged RRKRE
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. So David Tat Man BRIENKHE 13/13 171
Mr. Lai Yick Fung FmEeA 13/13 11

Mr. Au Yeung Po Leung (appointed on BSEREE (RZZE—RF
2 January 2016) —AZHEZT) 13/13 11

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (re-designated from
independent non-executive Director on
1 September 2016) £%)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (re-designated as

BAFHTES
RENRE (RZF—RF

RENFE (RZE—RFNA—
H BB P TESRIERT

3/3 N/A 38 A

executive Director on 1 September 2016) NA—BRAFEARHNITES) 10/10 11
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey SREE & 13/13 11
Mr. Zhang Min wREREA 11/13 11
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (appointed on REGZLE (RZE—REF

1 September 2016) NA—BEZEE) 3/3 N/ATT i A
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD PRACTICES

Apart from the four regular Board meetings of the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Board met on other occasions
when a board-level decision on a particular matter was
required. The Directors received detailed agenda and
documents prior to the meetings of the Board to ensure that
the Directors were able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings. All Directors may
access the advice, regulatory updates on governance and
regulatory matters from professional parties if necessary.

The Company Secretary and the company secretarial team are
responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings and ensure compliance with the
procedures of the Board meetings and general meetings
of the Company. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses
as well as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes,
laws, rules and regulations.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations
on changes and developments relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to
the Directors at the Board meetings. Trainings conducted by
professional service provider regarding Listing Rules’ updates
on corporate governance have been provided to the Directors
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance is upheld
and that the Directors possess up-to-date information to
discharge their duties.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training they received for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to the Company.
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TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS (continued)

All of the Directors have either attended seminars organised
by external professionals relevant to the business or directors’
duties or read professional materials publicated by regulators
or professional bodies for the year ended 31 December 2016.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The positions and roles of chairman of the Board and chief
executive of the Company should be held and performed
separately by two individuals to ensure their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company did not
appoint a chairman or a chief executive.

The Board will keep reviewing the current structure from
time to time. If candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and
experience is identified, the Company will make appointment
to fill the posts as appropriate.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) had been formed in 2005
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board. Following the
re-domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands into
Bermuda in October 2007, it was re-established pursuant
to a resolution passed by the Board on 15 February 2008
and specific terms of reference were adopted. As at the
date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, all are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Ms. Yuen Wai Man and Mr.
Zhang Min. Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The role and function written in the terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are no less exacting terms
than the Code. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.
The Remuneration Committee also reviews and recommends
the Board on its proposals relating to the remuneration
of the executive Directors with reference to the Board'’s
corporate goal and objectives. No Directors or any of his/
her associates can be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. Factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration are
considered by the Remuneration Committee to determine
the remuneration package of individual executive Directors
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment; or relating to
dismissal or removal for misconduct to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair, not
excessive, reasonable and appropriate.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee of the Company held three meetings to review
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management and to advise on remuneration packages of
newly appointed Directors. Details of the attendance of the
meeting are as follows:
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Attendance

Name of members REEH HERE

Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (Chairman) SEBSEA (TFE) 3/3
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (appointed on REGuLE (RZE—RF

1 September 2016) NWA—BEZRE) 11
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (ceased to be RENFXE(RZE—RF

member on 1 September 2016) NA—BTABEEKE) 2/2

Mr. Zhang Min wEREA 2/3
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) had been formed in 2005
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board. Following
the re-domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands
into Bermuda in October 2007, the Nomination Committee
was re-established pursuant to a resolution passed by the
Board on 15 February 2008 and specific terms of reference
were adopted. As at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises three members, of which all of them
are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick
Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Mr. Zhang Min and Ms. Yuen Wai Man. Mr.
Zhang Min is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are reviewing
and supervising the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying qualified individuals to become members
of the Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and senior management.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, including the independence status in the case of
an independent non-executive Director, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board has also adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
Accordingly, selection of candidates to the Board is based
on a range of measurable objectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge
and length of service, having due regard to the Company’s
own business model and specific needs from time to time.
With the existing Board members coming from a variety
of business and professional background, the Company
considers that the Board possesses a balance of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings to review the composition,
size and structure of the Board, to assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors. Details of the attendance of the meetings are as
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follows:
Attendance
Name of members REEH R
Mr. Zhang Min (Chairman) REREE (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (ceased to be RENFZE(RZE—RF
member on 1 September 2016) nA— EITﬁTJ*EEX,%) 2/2
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (appointed on REGZE (RZZE—RF
1 September 2016) NWA—BEZE) N/A 7~ A
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey SREERE 22

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EEFR AT
Annual Report 2016 — & — )N EE R

ST



58

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REARE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) on 31 July 2001 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. As at the date of this report,
the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Yuen Wai Man, Mr. Yick Ting
Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min. Ms. Yuen Wai Man is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of such auditors; reviewing the quarterly,
interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and
supervising the financial reporting process and effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee had during the year performed
such functions and reviewed the unaudited quarterly and
interim results and audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2016.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee
of the Company held four meetings to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, and corporate governance
and internal control review and make recommendation to the
Board on reappointment of the external auditor. They had,
in conjunction with the external auditor of the Company,
reviewed the annual results of the Group and recommended
to the Board for their consideration and approval. The Audit
Committee of the Company was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosures have been made.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance (continued)
Details of the attendance of the Company’s audit committee
meetings are as follows:
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Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey 5 ERE & 4/4
Mr. Zhang Min REEE 3/4
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (ceased to be RENFGE(RZE—RF
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on 1 September 2016) 3/3
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION PESEE
The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate %%é\ﬁﬁg\ﬁ'ﬁ'ﬁ%%f Bhee  HEmEgeE
governance duties with its written terms of reference as set SEEF| T -
out below:
a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and a) HIET R ARAR XS ANEE

d)

e)

practices on corporate governance,

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’'s compliance with the
corporate governance code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An amount of approximately HK$725,000 (2015:
approximately HK$945,000) was charged to the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2016. Remuneration to the auditors of the Company,
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, amounted to HK$660,000
and HK$65,000 respectively for the provision of annual audit
services and other non-audit services for the year ended
31 December 2016. A resolution for re-appointment of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The Board concurs with the views of the Audit Committee in
determining the re-appointment of auditors of the Company.
There has been no change in auditors in any of the preceding
five financial years.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Group's account for each financial period to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that period. In preparing the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016, the Board has selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently; made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable. The Directors
are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.

The auditors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Lai Yick Fung
was the Company Secretary. Pursuant to Rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Lai has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2016.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Right to convene special general meeting

The Directors, on the requisition of shareholder(s) of the
Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the rights, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company in Bermuda and its principal
place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of two months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board.
All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong or the registered office
in Bermuda, or by e-mail to info@chinaeco-farming.com for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

On the requisition in writing of either (i) any number
of shareholder(s) of the Company representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii)
not less than 100 shareholders, the Company shall, at the
expense of the requisitionists: (a) to give to shareholders of
the Company entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; (b)
to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary.
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INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
of the Company and investors. The Company has disclosed
all necessary information to its shareholders and investors
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. Moreover, the
Board maintains close communications with the shareholders
and investors of the Company through a number of formal
communication channels which include (i) the publication of
the Company’'s latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports, notices, announcements and circulars; (ii) the general
meetings providing an opportunity for the shareholders of the
Company to raise comments and exchanging views with the
Board; and (iii) the Company’s website provides an effective
communication platform between the Company and its
investors.

During the year of 2016, there has been no significant
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk
management and internal control systems are designed for
managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

Risk management policy has been established to formalize
the risk management of the Group, to build up a standard
and effective risk management system, improve the
ability of risk prevention, so as to ensure the Group is
operating in a safety and steady environment, the operation
management level could be increased and the Group's
operational strategy and target could be achieved. The
current practices will be reviewed and updated regularly to
follow the latest practices in corporate governance.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

The Board resolved to delegate its responsibilities (with
relevant authorities) of risk management and internal
control to the Audit Committee. Terms of reference of
the Audit Committee had been amended to (i) review
the Group’s financial controls,
management systems; (ii) discuss the risk management
system and internal control systems with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control systems; and (iii) to consider major
investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management'’s response to these findings.

internal control and risk

The Audit Committee (on behalf of the Board) oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

To ensure the efficient and effective operation of the
business and operations, relevant internal control policies
and procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over
capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records
and ensuring the reliability of financial information used for
business and publication. These policies and procedures are
monitored and reviewed from time to time and updated
where necessary. All employees are made aware of the
policies and procedures in place, with understanding
enhanced by staff communications and training.

The Board has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems,
at least quarterly, through the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

As a routine procedure and part of the risk management
and internal control systems, executive Directors and
management would meet on monthly basis to review the
financial and operating performance of each department.
The management of the key operating subsidiaries is
also required to keep executive Directors updated of
material development of the department’s business and
implementation of the strategies and policies set by the
Board on regular basis.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the key
processes of the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment
o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the
likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritizes the risks by comparing the results of the
risk assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and
internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the
risk and ensures that appropriate internal control
processes are in place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage

Significant Risks (continued)

Risk Monitoring and Reporting (continued)

o Report the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.

The Group has engaged an independent professional adviser
(the “Internal Control Adviser”) to conduct the annual
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2016. Such review is conducted annually. The scope of
review included revenue and receipt cycle, procurement and
expenditure cycle, cash management and treasury cycle, and
financial reporting cycle for one of our operating subsidiary.
Internal Control Adviser has reported major findings
and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. All
recommendations from Internal Control Adviser would be
followed up closely to ensure that they are implemented
within a reasonable period of time. The Group therefore
considered that the Group’s risk management and internal
control processes are adequate to meet the needs of the
Company in its current business environment and that
nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board to
believe the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are inadequate.

Inside Information Disclosure Policy

An inside information disclosure policy is in place to
ensure potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
So David Tat Man
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBEEREFRA T
Annual Report 2016 — & — N EE R

Rk EE R REEE (&)

BE - AEREEEXABRAANBE (&)

EXREHREMRE (&)

. EH@WEE&%%AD&%@@B )
&

REBEE_ZE—ARAF+_A=Z+—HLFE &
SECZEBEEXEM ([EPEEZREM] ) -
LAST B fe B I8 S N EBESHE R H) A I ETT EF
Ema AR SEFET R BIHE
BIERME P —EE LM B A Ak R
AE -HRELAAXAR ReTENKEREH
R BmEEE NI EEBEREREZEES
SERFERTERATRSEE - NIPES

TEENFTE R SRTIIRE  UBRR
—REEREANEER AL AEERE K
FEMREREERANIEERIEZEARNAR
AREBAIEREBRRPNRF R URESEH

EEE JETT%Iﬁv/ﬁﬁfm$ElE’JﬂﬁE
&Wﬁﬁ%?:%wu

AR HERBEEX
NFEHEHBRREDEGE  AEREBEARNR
HERGRREMEMENERRE EEFH
HEERIEAIFR EMARREL — S HE RER
BERLE-

RRE=S
HITEE
FRIEX

BE B tF=H=-+=H



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) of the China Eco-Farming Limited
(the "Company”) to disclose relevant information which
may cause material impact to the environment, social and
governance.

This ESG Report covered the reporting period from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2016 (the “Reporting Period”). Unless
otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers the sustainability
performance and initiatives of our Group operation. This ESG
Report does not include performance data from companies in
which the Company does not have a controlling interest.

The content of ESG Report is prepared in compliance with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 20
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

INTRODUCTION

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in one-stop value
chain services, property investment, trading of grocery food
products, trading of consumables and agricultural products
and provision of money lending services.

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT
While promoting our business growth, we pay attention to
our environmental and social responsibilities. To make our
investors and stakeholders properly informed for assessment,
the Company set out below its efforts to minimise the
negative influence to the environment, promote our
employees’ well-being and contribute to the community
during the Reporting Period.

ENVIRONMENTAL

We attached great importance to the environmental and
social responsibilities and continuously carry out a variety
of actions that promote care and compassion in society.
We believed that its commitment to being a “responsible
corporate citizen” helps bring long-term benefits not
only to its employees, but also to the community and the
environment as a whole.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HEREBHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

The Group’s principal business activities do not have
significant impact on the environment and natural resources.
Despite this, the Group is committed to sustainability
by seeking to reduce the environmental impact of our
operations, with a particular focus on reduction of
greenhouse gas emissions and preservation of resources.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the Group related to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste for the Reporting Period.

Emissions and use of resources

Our greenhouse gas emissions are mainly generated from
the consumption of electricity. The usage of electricity is for
maintaining daily office operations and operational activities
including lighting, office equipment and other miscellaneous
items. The Group has always placed great emphasis on
energy conservation. To achieve this, we adopted the
following measures to improve energy efficiency and reduce
energy consumption.

Energy management
o Maintain the office temperature at 25.5°C

o Install energy-efficient light tubes and use natural
daylight for office as far as possible

o Encourages employees to switch off all computers and
office equipment, electrical and air-conditioner when
not in use

o When selecting electrical appliances, consider

purchase those electrical appliances that with Grade 1
or 2 energy efficient labels.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Waste reduction

The Group did not generate any hazardous waste in the
ordinary course of business during the Reporting Period.
Our wastes are mainly classified into two categories in our
business, including: general wastes (household wastes) and
recyclable wastes. We avoid wastage with the following
measures:

o Promote paperless office which encourage staff to
read and send documents electronically to reduce
printing and to print and photocopy documents on
both sides of paper

o To green our office, we actively promotes the 3R
concepts — “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” in daily
business activities.

o Participated in toner bottles and cartridges recycling
programme
° We used durable items, such as ceramic cups and

reusable spoons instead of disposable cups and
wooden stirrers

Water conservation

Our operation does not involve high water consumption.
Water usage is arising from toilet flushing, water tap and
drinking water.

We will continue to look for opportunities to reduce further
emissions and wastes on an ongoing basis.
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RE HEREBHRS

SOCIAL

We care about our employees and regard them as one of the
important resources for the development of the Company.
We value our staff and take all possible measures to retain
them, in particular build a comfortable, healthy and equal
working environment for our employees and ensure that all
their rights and interests are protected.

The Group is a family-friendly employer, we provide five-
day working week, competitive remuneration and staff
benefits. In the determination of wage and salary levels for
different employees, the Group takes into account such
factors as the seniority, relevant experience, performance
appraisals, education level and professional qualifications of
the employee, as well as the nature of the work and duties
required of the position to be carried out.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the Group relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare for the Reporting Period.

1. Employment
The career advancement opportunities and salary
adjustment are evaluated by performance. In addition
to annual leave and discretionary bonus, we also
provide employees with benefits such as maternity
leave and paternity leave, compassionate leave to
foster a well-balanced leisure and holistic wellbeing.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -HEREARE

SOCIAL (continued)

1.

Employment (continued)

Whenever there is resignation or laid off, designated
human resource personnel would carry out exit-
interview with the staff to find out the leave reason.

The Group prohibits discrimination based on race,
colour, age, gender, sexual orientation, ethnicity,
disability, pregnancy, religion, political affiliation,
union membership or marital status in recruitment
and employment practices such as promotions,
rewards, access to training and demotion. Providing an
environment and a system where employees could feel
free to report problems to management is necessary
and critical. The Whistleblowing Policy was in place
so as to encourage employees to raise concerns in
confidential about misconduct, malpractice of matters
related to the Company. We did not record any cases
of discrimination for the Reporting Period.

Health and safety

We place the highest priority on securing health and
safety of all our employees. We endeavour to provide
and maintain a safe and healthy working environment
for employees to protect them from work-related
accidents or injuries. We provide insurance covering
medical treatments and accidents to eligible
employees. First aid kit is available at each workplace
to ensure that any employee who is injured or ill at
work can receive immediate attention. Additionally,
to enhance our indoor air quality and well-being of
all employees, we create smoke-free workplaces for
our employees. Smoking is prohibited in all enclosed
areas within the offices, without exception. During
the Reporting Period, no fatal or serious accidents was
recorded anywhere across the Group's operations.

The Group is not aware of any material non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have significant impact to the Group in providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards for the Reporting Period.
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SOCIAL (continued)

3.

Development and training

The Group sees staff development as a key investment
in its human capital. Apart from on-job training, we
encourage employees to take internal and external
professional programmes to strengthen their work-
related skills, knowledge and expertise. We also
provide subsidies to our employees to attend training
courses organized by professional institutions from
time to time to foster a culture of continuous
education and self-learning. During the Reporting
Period, our employees have joined various training
activities. The training topic includes corporate finance,
regulatory updates, risk management and internal
control.

We carried out performance assessments on a yearly
basis, enabling staff to gain an accurate sense of
their prospects and of potential future career paths.
To ensure our remuneration package is fair and
competitive, we review the remuneration and appraise
employee performance on annual basis. This enables
the Group to retain high quality staff and provide
them with strong incentives for performing well.

Labor standards

We strictly emphasize on the prohibition of engaging
child labour and forced labour. As prevention for
child labour, human resources department shall verify
their ages by checking relevant document proofs
before hiring any job applicants. All work should be
voluntarily performed and shall not involve forced
labour. All employees may resign upon reasonable
notice. The Group prohibits child labour in any
workplace. Salary and benefits also comply with
applicable wage laws, including those relating to
minimum wage, overtime hour and mandatory
benefits, and the payment is made in a timely manner.
The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant rules and regulations on preventing child or
forced labour for the Reporting Period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)

5.

Supply chain management

The Company promotes fair and open competition
that aims to develop long-term relationships with
suppliers based on mutual trust. The procurement
from suppliers or services providers is conducted in a
manner consistent with the highest ethical standards.
This helps assure high products quality at all times to
gain the confidence of customers, suppliers and the
public.

We have conducted annual appraisal for our key
suppliers so as to provide a basis for enhancing the
quality of suppliers, which effectively promoted
the improvement of both suppliers and purchase
management.

The Group was not aware that any key suppliers had
any significant actual and potential negative impact
on business ethics, environmental protection, human
rights and labour practices, nor any of them had any
non-compliance incident in respect of human rights
issues for the Reporting Period.

Product responsibility

We are the sole and exclusive distributor of catering
channel in Hong Kong for distribution of “Mengniu”
liquid milk and pasteurized dairy products (“Mengniu
Milk”) under “Mengniu” brand; and have the sole and
exclusive right to distribute peanut oil, corn oil and
canola oil under “Jinlongyu” brand via supermarkets,
convenience stores and small-scale stores in Hong
Kong.

Right Ocean Asia Limited, a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has involved in the
business of distributing and selling the “Nittin”
Noodle. It has made guarantee to its products for
the compliance of Hong Kong Government Food
and Drugs Regulations in order to provide quality
assurance of its products to the customers.
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SOCIAL (continued)

6.

Product responsibility (continued)

As one of the principal business of our Group is
in trading of grocery food products, trading of
consumables and agricultural products, our Group
is subject to the regulations of the Food Safety
Ordinance (Chapter 612 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Food Safety Ordinance”) and Public Health and
Municipal Services Ordinance (Chapter 132 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Public Health Ordinance”).
We are also subject to the regulations of The Hong
Kong Government Food and Drugs Regulations and
Milk Regulation. The Public Health Ordinance requires
us to ensure that our products are fit for human
consumption and comply with the requirements in
respect of food safety, food standards and labelling.

We have registered as a food importers/food
distributors under the Food Safety Ordinance. In
order to demonstrate that we are committed to
selecting cooking oil suppliers with adequate and
appropriate records, we have registered as registered
supplier to the Hong Kong Cooking Oil Registration
Scheme under Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
("HKQAA") on voluntary basis during the Reporting
Period. We have always endeavoured to provide
the best products to our customers and we have a
mechanism to assess food safety risk.

The Group is not aware of any material non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have significant impact on the Group related to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and method
of redress.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)

7.

Personal data privacy

We are committed to protecting privacy and
confidentiality of personal data of our employees,
customers, business partners and other identifiable
individuals. Clients" personal information is maintained
with care and can only be accessed by authorised
persons. Employees may get information about the
client only when there is a good reason to do so. We
collect and use client information in a responsible
and non-discriminatory manner by restricting the use
of the client information for the purposes consistent
with those identified in our contracts. It is our policy
to comply with the requirements of the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). During the Reporting Period, no complaints
has been received from clients due to disclosure of
information.

Anti-corruption

We are committed to upholding the highest ethics
standards. Parties involved in business interaction shall
prohibit each and every form of corruption, extortion,
bribery, fraud, money laundering and embezzlement.
Moreover, the Group pledges “zero tolerance”
approach to any fraudulent business activity.

No significant risks relating to corruption were
identified during the Reporting Period. There were no
confirmed incidents in relation to corruption or public
legal cases brought against the Group or its employees
concerning corruption. No whistleblowing disclosures
were received for the Reporting Period.
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SOCIAL (continued)

9.

Community involvement

We are constantly aware of the needs of our
community. We are ready to take up our responsibility
with best efforts and contribute to the community
by participating and sponsoring various fund-raising
events and community activities. We have donated a
total of approximately HK$368,000 to different charity
organization for the Reporting Period. In addition
to donations, we have also donated our reusable
bags/eco-friendly reusable bags to different charity
organization, for example, Hong Kong SARS Mutual
Help Association and Ching Wan Society. In honor of
our efforts, we have been awarded as “Heart to Heart
Company” by The Hong Kong Federation of Youth
Groups.

GOVERNANCE
The corporate governance section is addressed separately in
the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this annual

report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

& & SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
-
467& ﬁo 43/F., Lee Garden One
33 Hysan Avenue
. . Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Shme‘Z()mg

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ECO-FARMING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued into
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 273, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Uncertainty related to going concern
Refer to note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

The key audit matter
HARERER

FARERER

REESFNEXHE BREZZELSESE

BERAPENGREMHERRTREENEE-

BEEEEREAVBBRRNALEZHERE

Fﬁ%“%ﬁ'ﬁKA%%$$E$ﬁﬁﬁg
FEBE MIFEAARESFHNREH

hLM%%%%%EO
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BESEERTHNERT

Notwithstanding the Group had incurred losses of
approximately HK$34,049,000 during the year ended 31
December 2016 and reported net operating cash outflow
of approximately HK$42,218,000. The directors of the
Company have considered the Group’s cash flows forecast
over the period ending 31 December 2017 and have
concluded that the range of possible outcomes they have
considered in arriving at this judgment does not give rise
to a material uncertainty casting significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

In particular, the directors of the Company believe that

the Company will generate future positive cash flows

from its operations which involves a significant degree of
management judgment with respect to the underlying cash
flows, in particular the future revenue growth.
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Our procedures were designed to challenge
the appropriateness of key assumptions used

in the cash flow projections by reference to

the historical production information and
internal business plans, together with market
and other externally available information.

We have also reconciled the input data to the
supporting evidence, such as approved budgets
and considering the reasonableness of these
budgets.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment on loan and interest receivables
Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies on page 118 to 121.

The key audit matter
HARERER
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BESEERTHNERT

The carrying value of the loan and interest receivables was
approximately HK$49,258,000 as at 31 December 2016.

Impairment allowances represent the management’s best
estimate of the losses incurred on the loan and interest
receivables based on the existence of any impairment
indicators, including the default of payments from the
borrowers, the timing of the overdue receivables, the
existence of deterioration of credit worthiness of the
borrowers, as well as based on any security received from
the borrowers.

Due to the significance of the amounts and the
involvement of significant judgment in relation to the
estimation of impairment allowances, we therefore
consider the impairment of loans and interest receivables as
a key audit matter.
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Our audit procedures were designed to

review the management’s assessment of

the indications of impairment, including
understanding and challenging the impairment
allowances basis as well as identifying any long
outstanding and past due loan and interest
receivables for which no impairment has been
made.

We have discussed the indicators of possible
impairment with the management and, where
such indicators were identified, assessed

the management'’s impairment testing. We
have challenged the assumptions and critical
judgment used by the management by
assessing the reliability of the management’s
past estimates and taking into account the
ageing at year end and cash received after year
end, as well as the recent creditworthiness

of each debtor and the appropriateness of
valuation of the collaterals from the borrowers
as assessed by the management.

In relation to the valuation of the collaterals
from the borrowers, we have assessed the
valuation methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions
adopted by the management. We had also
checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies on page 113.

The key audit matter
HREZER

FAEELEE (FE)

REMFRZME

AE2RGEA M BRERMTI7TRENBEN G
128

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEEHEBERPHNEER X

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group's
investment properties to be HK$155,457,000 as at 31
December 2016 with a net revaluation gain for the year
ended 31 December 2016 recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss of approximately HK$1,809,000.
Independent external valuations were obtained in respect
of the entire portfolio in order to support management’s
estimates.

We consider valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the valuations are dependent

on certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgment including capitalisation rates and
fair market rents.

EREEHT S£EER-_Z—XF+-_A=t+—HEKHE
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Our audit procedures in relation to
management’s valuation of investment
properties included assessing the valuation
methodologies used and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions based on our knowledge
of the property industry. We had also checked,
on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance
of the input data used.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on page 110 to 111.

The key audit matter
HARERER
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEHEBERPNEERL X

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has goodwill of
approximately HK$7,465,000 which has been allocated to
two cash generating units, i.e. trading of grocery food and
trading of consumables and agricultural products segment.
As the segment results are in loss condition. This has
increased the risk that the carrying values of goodwill may
be impaired.

The management has concluded that approximately
HK$14,446,000 impairment loss was resulted in respect
of the goodwiill. This conclusion was based on a value-
in-use calculation that required significant management
judgement with respect to the discount rate and the
underlying cash flows, in particular future revenue growth.

R-E—RFE+-A=+—8' EBE£ENBEENAE
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In order to address this matter in our audit,
we obtained management’s assessment

and challenged the reasonableness of the
selection of valuation model, adoption of key
assumptions and input data. In particular, we
tested the future cash flow forecast on whether
it is agreed to the budget approved by the
board of directors and compared the budget
with actual results available up to the report
date. We also challenged the appropriateness
of the assumptions, including the sales growth
rates and gross margin, against latest market
expectations.

We also challenged the discount rate employed
in the calculation of value in use by reviewing
its basis of calculation and comparing its input
data to market sources.

As any changes in these assumptions and input
to valuation model may result in significant
financial impact, we tested management’s
sensitivity analysis in relation to the key inputs
to the impairment assessment which included
changes in the sales growth rate, gross margin
and discount rate employed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Chan Wing Kit.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Kit

Practising Certificate Number: P03224

Hong Kong
23 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e RHEME2ERER
For the year ended 31 December 2016
RZZB—RF+_A=+—H

2016 2015
—B-RE —T—AF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTET FHET
Continuing operations BELSEEK
Revenue g 5 72,470 59,748
Cost of sales $HE KA (61,800) (57,032)
Gross profit E A 10,670 2,716
Other gain or loss, net H b W o5 s B 1R F R 6 (1,122) (2,280)
Increase in fair value of EYENFEENFRE
investment properties, net 17 1,809 2,759
Increase (decrease) in fair value of BAFEFABER
financial assets at fair value through TR EE RN TEEM
profit or loss CRA) 25,467 (15,936)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HAX (1,103) -
Administrative expenses ITHHEX (61,592) (39,950)
Share of results of associates PAKISR: /NI E 20 (1,030) 947
Finance costs A& P A 8 (7,456) (4,093)
Loss before taxation bR B AT ES 18 (34,357) (55,837)
Taxation I8 9 308 (2,863)
Loss for the year from continuing HELEEBY
operations REZER (34,049) (58,700)
Discontinued operations BRIEEEETR
Loss for the year from discontinued BRI E R
operations KEEZEE 10 = (1,051)
Loss for the year KFEEEE 1M (34,049) (59,751)
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hfb2EUW A (FX) :
Items that may be reclassified HEAJEFSEE
subsequently to profit or loss: B 2 HE -
Fair value change of AEEREZ
available-for-sale investments RNEBEEE 4,662 -
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBEE 2
translating foreign operations JE R ERE (8,428) (7,848)
Other comprehensive expense RNEFHEM 2 HERFR
for the year (3.766) (7,848)
Total comprehensive expense AFEETERZBE
for the year (37,815) (67,599)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERERHEMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

RZE—RF+-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—EBE-RE —T—AF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FET FHET
Loss for the year attributable to RATHE ANEIE
owners of the Company REEEIE
— from continuing operations — RS EREET (29,955) (58,163)
— from discontinued operations —REBRIEEREETR - (1,051)
(29,955) (59,214)
Loss for the year attributable to FEVE AR AR 5 25 PR A
non-controlling interests REEBE
— from continuing operations —REFELEED (4,094) (537)
(34,049) (59,751)
Total comprehensive expense RNARHEANEBIEEREER
for the year attributable to FHRAXERE
owners of the Company
— from continuing operations —REBEKEER (34,989) (66,007)
— from discontinued operations —REBRIEEEEE - (1,051)
(34,989) (67,058)
Total comprehensive expense SRR AR R R AR RS
for the year attributable to AFEEXHRAZLE
non-controlling interests
— from continuing operations —REFEKEER (2,826) (541)
(37,815) (67,599)
LOSS PER SHARE FRER 15
From continuing and REFERDKIE
discontinued operations: R
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE (B (0.60) (1.61)
From continuing operations: REFEREHER:
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE (B (0.60) (1.58)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

me i BIRRE
At 31 December 2016
RZE—RF+-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—AHF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FE T
(Restated)
(&&&E:5)
Non-current assets IRBEE
Plant and equipment 5 K 16 6,791 5,087
Investment properties KEWE 17 155,457 190,070
Goodwill EES 18 7,465 18,414
Intangible asset B EE 19 4,679 6,283
Interests in associates AL El/NE] I 20 73,176 44,678
Loan and interest receivables FEUT B R B 23 3,814 =
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 21 58,778 =
Deposit paid for acquisition of ERKERE &
plant and equipment w2 EE 778 1,309
310,938 265,841
Current assets REBEE
Inventories, finished goods FE (®EME) 1,215 1,169
Trade and other receivables JE UG BR 3 K Eo A
JE W SRR 22 36,576 8,570
Loan and interest receivables FEUE F R B 23 45,444 28,901
Loan to an associate mEEERBELER 31 2,773 =
Loan to non-controlling interests [) FE 422 A A R
EEEEER 30 - 735
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFABRZ
profit or loss TREE 24 79,269 34,022
Bank balances and cash RITEBR IR 25 22,298 36,871
187,575 110,268
Asset classified as held for sale DERFIELEZEE 26 19,393 11,290
206,968 121,558
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FERTRR SR R Aty
&3R8 27 20,545 9,977
Amounts due to non-controlling JE A~ FE 12 IR AR BR M 2
interests P 28 2,995 2,012
Loan from non-controlling interests FEER AR R B R 30 - 735
Bank borrowings IRITEX 29 19,181 9,581
Loan payable FERTE R 32 20,000 -
Margin loans payable EHRESE XK 33 16,768 -
Convertible bonds AR &S 34 31,551 751
Contingent consideration payable R ARE 45 1,047 4,707
Income tax payable i ANEIEE T 200 37
112,287 27,800
Net current assets TEEE SR 94,681 93,758
Total assets less current liabilities A EERAE ARG 405,619 359,599
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBARR R
At 31 December 2016
RZE—RF+-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—AHF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
LK FTET FHET
(Restated)
(FeE5)
Non-current liabilities FREBEMS
Convertible bonds BRI 34 19,786 53,397
Contingent consideration payable JERT K ARE 45 1,929 8,458
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIARE 35 21,777 23,879
43,492 85,734
Net assets BEFR 362,127 273,865
Capital and reserves EXRREE
Share capital A& A 36 120,007 90,574
Reserves B 198,122 137,056
Equity attributable to owners of the RARHAE NG
Company 318,129 227,630
Non-controlling interests FEIR AR AR R A 25 43,998 46,235
Total equity R B R 362,127 273,865

The consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 273
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 23 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

So David Tat Man
BEX
Director

EF

FGOE27ZEMGAMBHREABEFTEN _-F
—tF=A-T=BHERRERET TLT

FIALRE
Lai Yick Fung
Hmg
Director
EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-_Z—RFt+-_A=t+—HIEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANARENES
Equity
component of Share Non-
Share Share  convertible options  Translation Special  Accumulated controlling
capital Premium bonds reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
TRERS FER
%3 BRHEE BEBS  BRERR BEGRE R E iR EH RRER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER Thr Tin TEx TEx TEn TER Thr Thn TER
(Note 36) (Note 34) (Note 41) (Note ()
(Hizt36) (Hiz34) (Kizka1) (M)
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-RF-F-R 51,177 175,627 37322 - (185) 6,026 (133473) 136,494 (1,448) 135,046
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - (59,214) (59,214) (537) (59,751)
Other comprehensive expense for the year:  AFEEMAER L
- Bxchange differences arising on translating —2EBINEBHELNERLE
foreign operations B - - S S (7,844) S S (7,844) @ (7,848)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ AFE2ERTHE - - - - (7,844) - (59,214) (67,058) (541) (67,599)
Issue of shares upon conversion of FEARRERRRTRG
convertible bonds (Note 36(d)) (B3E36(d)) 24,500 (1,920) (21,056) - - - - 1,524 - 1,524
Issue of shares upon acquisition of BERENERETRA
an investment property (Note 36(a)) (Fir3E36(a)) 1,25 11,646 - - - - - 12,902 - 12,902
Placing of new shares (Note 36(v) R (B EE36(0)) 12,580 113,20 - - - - - 125,800 - 125,800
Transaction costs attributable to RENRABERIRA
placing of new shares - (1,258) - - - - - (1,258) - (1,258)
Issue of shares in consideration for the fERRENBRANHRE
acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36(c)) MR (HFE36(0)) 1,061 7213 - - - - - 8,274 1,724 9,998
Recognition of equity component of BRUARESEETH
convertible bonds (Note 34) (BisE34) - - 8,652 - - - - 8,652 - 8,652
Recognition of equity-settled share based ~ BEFRLVER & E RARTK A
payments (Note 41) HREME (i) - - - 2,300 - - - 2,300 - 2,300
Capital contribution to a subsidiary H-ERBARELERTE
(as defined in Note 43(a)(i)) (E&RMEa30) - - - - - - - - 46,500 46,500
At 31 December 2015 WZZ-RF+ZA=1-8 90,574 304,528 24918 2,300 (8,029) 6,026 (192,687) 227,630 46,235 273,865
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_Z-—RFT+A=T—HLFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KRAKEAER
Equity Non-
componentof  Investment Share controlling
Share Share  convertible  revaluation options  Translation Special  Accumulated interests
Capital premium bonds reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total Total
TRRES FER
B& RGEE BERD REEMRE BRERE BERER RHRRE iR &it BRES &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEx TEx TER TER TER TEx TEx TEx TiEn FiEn FiEn
(Note 36) (Note 34) (Note 21) (Note 41) (Note (a)
(Hi=E36) (HizE34) (H&E21) (GEZY) (K& ()
At 1 January 2016 RZE-AE-A-B 90,574 304,528 24918 - 2,300 (8,029) 6,026 (192,687) 221,630 46,235 273,865
Loss for the year AEEFR - - - - - - - (29,955) (29,955) (4,094) (34,049)
Other comprehensive income FERAMRZANA (FX)
(expense) for the year:
Fair value change of avalable-for- ~ IEHERE 7 ATE
sale investments ) - - - 4,662 - - - - 4,662 - 4,662
~ Bxchange differences arising on —RERNEBIMEE
translating foreign operations MERER - - - - - (9,696) - - (9.696) 1,268 (8,428)
Other comprehensive expense REREMRARL
for the year - - - 4,662 - (9,696) - - (5,034) 1,268 (3,766)
Total comprehensive expense AEE2ERXAE
for the year = = = 4,662 = (9,696) - (995 (3989) @826)  (37.815)
Issue of shares upon conversion of IR AT EHE TR
convertible bonds (Note 36(n)) (BizE36(h)) 10,000 (1,386) (8,594) - - - - - 2 - 2
Placing of new shares (Note 36(e))  BC®& 37 Ak f7 (FizE36(e)) 8,400 33,600 - - - - - - 42,000 - 42,000
Transaction costs attributable to RENRABERIRA
placing of new shares - (418) - - - - - - (418) - (418)
Issue of shares (Note 36(f)) BRI (W EE36() 5,760 37,440 - - - - - - 43,200 - 43,200
Arising of Non-controlling interests ¥ Hi B 22 mZE £ )
on acquisition of subsidiary FRRR RS
(Note 43(a)(i) (FirT43(a)i) - - - - - - - - - 159 159
Issue of shares in consideration for ~ {EAMER AR AMRER
the acquisition of an associate BB (H5E36(0)
(Note 36(g)) 5273 24,255 - - - - - - 29,528 - 29,528
Cancellation of convertible bonds ~ +84 AT # Rk B 5 ( B iE34(e))
(Note 34(¢)) - - (3,477) - - - - 3477 - - -
Recognition of equity-settled share BB LMEREE RIK(A A
based payments (Note 41) ERERRR (F3E41) - - - - 11,588 - - - 11,588 o 11,588
Share option lapsed during FRERMBERE (Fiia1)
the year (Note 41) - - - - (720) - - 720 - - -
Acquisition of additional equity BIEARRRER R
interest in a subsidiary from —AME AR BIMER
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - (430) (430) 430 -
At 31 December 2016 RZB-~F
+-A=+-B 120,007 398,019 12,847 4,662 13,168 (17,725) 6,026 (218,875) 318,129 43,998 362,127
Note: MEaE :
(a) The special reserve represents the difference between the ©) R E AR 2 BRI B A B AR D A AR

nominal amount of share and share premium of the former

subsidiary of the Company and the nominal amount of the

Company's shares issued pursuant to a group reorganisation

in 2002.

0 (B EARE
RABBMHEEZFRERE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-2-<E+-A=1+—AILFE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
(restated)
(ReE5)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERRE
Loss before taxation BrEZATE B
— from continuing operations —RERFERLEED (34,357) (55,837)
— from discontinued operations —REERIEREER - (1,051)
(34,357) (56,888)
Adjustments for: S TFIIEE EHAE:
Finance costs & B AR 7,456 4,093
Depreciation for plant and equipment B R EITE 1,690 1,260
Amortisation of an intangible asset B EEEH 1,604 133
Share based payments (Note 41) VARRAD A E R e 1< 3k (Bt 5E41) 11,588 2,300
Increase in fair value of KEMEANTE
investment properties, net AN 58 (1,809) (2,759)
(Increase) decrease in fair value of financial BATEFABRZZER
assets at fair value through profit or loss BENTE Gm)m (25,467) 15,936
Gain on cancellation of convertible bonds SRR ES RS
(Note 34(e)) (F3E34(e)) (7.854) -
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill MEBRECREEE 14,446 908
Impairment loss recognised on TEMERKIEERZ
other receivables BEEE - 3,366
Impairment loss recognised on loan and BEWEREF SR
interest receivables BB E 1R - 4,149
Gain on bargain purchase =B K - (507)
Gain on fair value of contingent ENFIAREBZ 2 FEKES
consideration payable (11,326) (999)
Loss on disposal of interest in a subsidiary HER—FME QT
R EE 881 -
Loss on written-off of plant and equipment iS5 E & & & 2 B 18 14 -
Share of results of associates DEEE N R EE 1,030 (947)
Interest income A2 WA (114) (1,718)
Operating cash flows before movements AREEESEHAIC
in working capital KEREME (42,218) (31,673)
Decrease in deposit paid for operating right B4 & #EiE & R - 1,200
Increase in inventories FEIEM (46) (235)
Increase in trade and other receivables JE WA BR 5R B EL b i U SR TE 1 0 (27,806) (4,397)
Increase in loan and interest receivables B R B W R IE S BN (20,357) -
Increase in financial assets at fair value BATFEGFABRRZ
through profit or loss B RE EE N (19,780) (27,989)
Increase (decrease) in trade and JE {1 AR 3R B EL A JE A< 5K IR
other payables & CRl ) 10,465 (10,474)
Net cash used in operations ¥BAAREFE (99,742) (73,568)
Income tax paid BIFEH - (46)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEEAR S F58 (99,742) (73,614)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-B—<Et_A=t—BILEE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
(restated)
(L&E5)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES EEE
Interest received 2 U F B 114 7
Purchase of plant and equipment EERE R&E (2,145) (1,491)
Purchase of investment properties BEIREMSFE - (18,607)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEAHEERE (54,116) =
Deposit paid for acquisition of EfNERE RE#E RS
plant and equipment (778) (1,309)
Proceeds on disposal of plant and equipment & HiE & 3% H PT15 3018 - 198
Proceeds on disposal of assets classified HESBRRFELEZ
as held for sale BEMMEHRIE 11,290 -
Loan advance to an associate BAF-—HBERARZER (2,773) S
Loan advance BRER - (26,896)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WE—HRBARZ
a subsidiary (Note 43(a)(i)) R mEF5 (KaE43)i)) (2,276) (45,793)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HE—HMBARZ
a subsidiary (Note 44) W mAFE (MizEad) 8,097 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES R EEE AR FHE (42,587) (93,891)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BE S
Transaction costs from issue of BT MRES 2
convertible bonds XSGR A - (702)
Interest paid BAAFE (2,393) (2,537)
Advance from non-controlling interests FEER IR R 2 2 B 983 959
Capital contribution by non-controlling FEERR R ERITE
interests - 46,500
Issue of shares BITIRD 43,200 -
Proceeds from issue of new shares B G 2 TR FIE 42,000 125,800
Transaction costs attribute to placing il & #T AR 10 FE (R 22 5 PK AR
of new shares (418) (1,258)
New bank borrowing raised MEBRITER 10,000 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BRBITER (400) -
Other new loan raised HiEREER 20,000 =
Increase in margin loans REBESEFIEM 16,768 -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEHMSIRE FE 129,740 168,762
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND RekREFECID)
CASH EQUIVALENTS b1 (12,589) 1,257
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EYHRERESEE
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 36,871 36,995
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEREF) v E (1,984) (1,381)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBEeRR&EE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, NRITHESR N IRE SR
represented by bank balances and cash 22,298 36,871
AP e, (AL 1T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=t+—HLEFE

1.

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

General

China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Company Law
of the Cayman Islands on 30 November 2000.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 5
February 2002.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Company re-domiciled from the Cayman Islands into
Bermuda by way of de-registration in the Cayman
Islands and continuation as an exempted company
under the laws of Bermuda. The change of domicile
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on
15 October 2007 and the Company was continued
into Bermuda with limited liability with effect from 29
October 2007.

The addresses of the registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and the principal place of business of the Company is
Suites 2303-06, 23/F Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The directors of the
Company do not consider any company to be the
ultimate holding company and parent company of the
Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
business of one-stop value chain services, property
investment, trading of consumables and agricultural
products, trading of grocery food products and
provision of money lending services. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Group discontinued
the business of health care services and trading of
ceramic products (see note 10).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
(continued)

General (continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company. Other than those
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") and incorporated in Taiwan whose
functional currencies are Renminbi (“RMB") and New
Taiwan dollars (“NTD") respectively, the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is HK$.

Basis of preparation

The Group has been continuously incurring losses
in these years. Nevertheless, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its operating cash
flows as and when they fall due for the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period given
that:

(i) the directors of the Company will continuously
review the cost structure of the Group and
formulate appropriate cost saving measures to
improve the performance and the cash flows of
the Group’s operations; and

(ii) the directors of the Company anticipate that
the Group will generate positive cash flows
from its operations; and the existence of stand-
by facility to the Company for the period of one
year.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare these
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 on a going concern basis. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the carrying amount and
reclassification of assets and liabilities that might be
necessary should the Group be unable to continue as a
going concern.

—REERGREE (&)

—R=HE (&)
REMBHRERABT (BT 25
AR RRZNEEE - %u%
EARKME (THE])KZER
MR B AR D RIAARE
RE&EFa® ([FHa%) /Y
BN KRB REWMBE AR 26
BRABTT

FETEE

AEERNIFRBEELER - BE
o ARBNEZTRR AEELERH
HEECRNEARSHREREK ST =
BRARBEZEERE R L HER

() AREVEHERHAEBENKA
iEE LHIF] A EMENE A
i MR EARARBEBHRIR K

Reng &k

(i) ARFEFEH AEEKEH
EBELLRESRE RARA

FERM—FOREAEE-

Bt RARZEERA KR/BELER
EREHE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H
IFENZEGENBRRIBEE
FEMBRRITTEEMAEBR KRR
BRREMAILBLENTREBEER

BENREENEFRDENAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=t+—HLEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)
In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs, which include
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS(s)”), amendments and interpretations,
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA").

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 -
HKFRSs 2014 Cycle

Amendments to  Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 1

Amendments to  Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
HKAS 16 and Depreciation
HKAS 38

Amendments to  Agriculture: Bearer Plants
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to  Equity Method in Separate Financial

HKAS 27 Statements

Amendments Investment Entities: Applying the
to HKFRS 10, Consolidation Exception
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to  Accounting for Acquisitions of
HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative’

HKAS 7
Amendments to  Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
HKAS 12 for Unrealised Losses'
Amendments to  Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to  Classification and Measurement
HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment
Transactions?
Amendments to  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017.

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019.

= Effective date not yet been determined.

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-F—AF+-A=+—AILFE

R REIETEBUBHREE
A (TEBMBHREEL]) (&)

EEMEERERNHTREETER
Pt 7 R 5 2R A
AEBEYEIEFEBUATERMERR
EMEFR] RBERTBEMBRESE
a:

BN BRE SR T A2
R E9%
(ZF—m%)

EEVEREER] TP AHMA
1558

EEVEREEL HE?

E165%

R ERNETR KEFHE
ZIBET AR

BEEF L RAEHREBERE

FHREITER ERBEE

BEAMBHRES RN KREEBRABENG
F0HRRER EhRZANEE
B ERIE28% HEIEE
ZERTA

BEMBMERED UKD SERA
FBRZEBITA DES T P

K&t 82

BEAMBHREREN BEEBMBERSER

SR ZERTA FARRE A O —Hf

ERNEBHB
W& LRI F I
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! R-F—tF—H—AZZEHRZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=t+—HLEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except
as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010 and
includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended
to bring into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge
accounting that will allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in the financial
statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was issued
in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS
9 that were issued in previous years with limited
amendments to the classification and measurement by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive
income” ("FVTOCI”) measurement category for
certain financial assets. The finalised version of HKFRS
9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for
impairment assessments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)

(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as
follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=t+—HLEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)

(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

o In the aspect of impairment assessments,
the impairment requirements relating to the
accounting for an entity’s expected credit losses
on its financial assets and commitments to
extend credit were added. Those requirements
eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS 39
for the recognition of credit losses. Under the
impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.
Instead, expected credit losses and changes
in those expected credit losses should always
be accounted for. The amount of expected
credit losses is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)

(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

° HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which
is more closely aligns hedge accounting with
risk management activities undertaken by
companies when hedging their financial and
non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at
whether a risk component can be identified
and measured and does not distinguish
between financial items and non-financial
items. The new model also enables an entity
to use information produced internally for risk
management purposes as a basis for hedge
accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary
to exhibit eligibility and compliance with the
requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that
are designed solely for accounting purposes.
The new model also includes eligibility
criteria but these are based on an economic
assessment of the strength of the hedging
relationship. This can be determined using risk
management data. This should reduce the costs
of implementation compared with those for
HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces
the amount of analysis that is required to be
undertaken only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with
early application permitted.

The directors of the Company are in process of
assessing their impact on the consolidated financial
statements of these requirements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that
effect until the Group performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=t+—HLEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies
to contracts with customers, featuring a contract-
based five-step analysis of transactions to determine
whether, how much and when revenue is recognised.
The five steps are as follows:

(i) Identify the contract with the customer;
(ii) Identify the performance obligations in the
contract;

(i) Determine the transaction price;

(iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations; and

(v) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”)
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early
application permitted. The directors of the Company
are in the process of assessing their impact on
the consolidated financial statements of these
requirements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group
performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for
the identification of lease arrangements and their
treatment in the financial statements of both lessors
and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard
introduces a single lessee accounting model, requiring
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with the lease term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the
lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
at cost, which consists of the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any
lease payments made to the lessor at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, the initial estimate of restoration costs and
any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. A lease
liability is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=t+—HLEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. Lease liability
is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payment made, and remeasuring the carrying amount
to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or
to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on
the right-of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss
following the requirements of HKAS 16 Property, Plant
and Equipment, while interest accrual on lease liability
will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease
standards including HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with early
application permitted provided that the entity has
applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers at or before the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16. The directors of the Company are in the
process of assessing their impact on the consolidated
financial statements of these requirements. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect until the Group performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)
(continued)

Amendment to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes. The amendments do not
prescribe a specific method to fulfill the new disclosure
requirements. However, the amendments indicate that
one way is to provide a reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from
financing activities.

Amendments to HKAS 7 will become effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
with early application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of Amendments to HKAS 7 will result
in additional disclosure on the Group's financing
activities, especially reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances in the consolidated
statement of the financial position for liabilities
arising from financing activities will be provided on
application.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BREHENFEIRZBTARETD

3

ZEEF R ERRHEM B RRER

MEBEER BREREREELNE
o A EE AT I IR T ERK
MBBRTEMNIETET R RM > %FE
AR ET A RRERERDE
ERBRENHT M REHROERKR-

RIERLH

R ERETR ZEBIHR T —+1
F-A-BH KRR ZEFEHRHEE

X WHREELR IR

ARBEREF EREBGTERSE
THRZEATREHBERASERE LD
ZRINKE LERERERAZEFER
HRREEBMELRBREZES
BARRR Z BV R IR G R 2 BBk o

3. EBEAREFHEX
GAMERREBEETSSHMASE
HEEEPREERRER - o0 &5
BB BEROIEM T TAIERES LT
HAIREBRAEPIFAEE 2 BRRE

ERER

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EEFR AT
Annual Report 2016 — & — )N EE R

105



106

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions
(i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. Details of fair value measurement
are explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The principle accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If
a subsidiary prepares its financial statements using
accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that subsidiary’s financial
statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the group’s
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power
over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee; and
(iii) the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the Group's returns. When the
Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, power over the investee may be obtained
through: (i) a contractual arrangement with other
vote holders; (i) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; (iii) the Group's voting rights and
potential voting rights; or (iv) a combination of the
above, based on all relevant facts and circumstances.

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of these elements of control
stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control of the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income of subsidiaries are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive expense
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts
at the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
(including any components of other comprehensive
income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.

Business combinations

Businesses combinations are accounted for by applying
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs incurred to effect a business
combination are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except deferred tax assets or liabilities arising
from the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
in the business combinations are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBEEREFRA T
Annual Report 2016 — & — N EE R

3.

BEARASFBER (#)
AEERREMBLARZIEEERS
B
EARSB LK ELHE QBRI : ()
EREES#EE BEUERRHN B AFA
EE (EEEE)RBENEREME ()X
EEHIEE BEUERERR AN B A T8
EFEERERERE (REFESE
hE M2 WS EE I D) - Ri)E
WUEEHﬁTﬁﬁfﬂﬁQ}qzﬁEZQEETTGE LR
NYEEBRE MATEL 2 EA =A%
REREEELEBERANKRERE-

¥Ba6t
EBEMTIABEEIETER - REKE B
HERERAFERNE HNRASE
EEEER s BE ASBEELSZ HWKRE
FRHEAAZ BERAEER IR
B 2w RE AT B 1T 2 BRAE R UL A BB
ZAFEBRE -THEBE AT
B2 SR BE IR AR A 2 B AR EE A R Y
BEPER-

RUEE B DB BRI B E R E &
FEEBRAATERR HEBHEMHT
BRBEENRAZERBELMNETHRA
BEXABREBEB G ERE125%7
FHERNGTE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the Group's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by
another standards, are measured at acquisition-date
fair value except for non-controlling interests that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are measured either at
fair value or at the present ownership instruments’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Other contingent consideration that is within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value at
each reporting date, and changes in fair value are
reocgnised in profit or loss in accordance with HKAS
39. Other contingent consideration that is not within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value at each
reporting date and changes in fair value are recognised
in profit or loss.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGU(s)") (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

The Group's policy for goodwill relating to an
associate that included in the carrying amount of
the investment is set out in “interests in associates”
below.

Interests in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

The Group's interests in associates are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. Under the equity method, interests
in associates are initially recognised at cost. The
Group's share of the profit or loss and changes in the
other comprehensive income of the associates are
recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income respectively after the date of acquisition. If
the Group's share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interests in the associate, which
determined using the equity method together with
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net interests in the associates, the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are provided for, and a liability
is recognised, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associates.

If the associates use accounting policies other than
those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances, adjustments are made to make
the associates’ accounting policies conform to those of
the Group when the associates’ financial statements
are used by the Group in applying the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B
3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

Interests in associates are accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of
the investment, any excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the associates is
recognised as goodwill and is included in the carrying
amount of the investment.

After application of the equity method, including
recognising the associates’ losses (if any), the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise
any additional impairment loss with respect to its
interests in the associates. Goodwill that forms part
of the carrying amount of interests in associates
is not separately recognised. The entire carrying
amount of the interests (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the interests in the associates. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised in
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associates.
The Group's share in the associates’ gains or losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost
of items of plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible asset acquired in a business
combination

Intangible asset acquired in a business combinations
are reocgnised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at its fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below). Amortisation for intangible asset with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated
statement of financial position comprise cash at banks
and on hand.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash as
defined above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into
one of three categories, including FVTPL, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognmon
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

3.

(@)

—RNFTZA=t+—HILFE

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments (other than
those financial assets classified as at FVTPL) of
which interest income is included in other gain
or loss, net.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are either held for
trading or designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the “other gain or loss,

et” line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 38(c).

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|BEEREHFRA T
Annual Report 2016 — & — )N EE R

3.

EXREHE (&)

E®MIA (&)

() =Z=HEE &)
BEEFFZ (B)
MEBATRERTA (KFD
BARAFEFARGEZERE

ERRSN BB WAFT AT et
KEET ) IHERRF R LR -

BRFEAAERD 2@ EE
BRAFEFABREZ B EERN
RN ER B FERXHHIEE R
BAFEFABZZERMEE-

EWMTNER 2REES AN
REERGZEMEE:

. HE®RWKE TE2BM)
RITEAHE 3

. REERE  ERAE
BHAREEZERHNE
TRAR 2 —BMHARE
HERAEBERHRMNE

sk
. HAEIFREMER BEH
TEZHETA
BRAFEFABZZEHEETY

BEAFEFE MAEHEA
EEZATFEEZFHURELESRA
BEERNESRER - NEBRER

FUWALEE (TR EEARE
IMERMEERNFE)FTA
BEahkEM2EKSHREREK
P [ HEtl s EEFEl oA
FETHIRMFE38( Tl 2 77 A E

}Eo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including loan and interest
receivables, trade and other receivables, loan to
an associate, loan to non-controlling interests,
and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment loss (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss
on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that
are classified as available-for-sale financial
assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary financial
assets relating to changes in foreign currency
rates, interest income calculated using the
effective interest method and dividends on
available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes
in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the

investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of
the reporting period (see accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade and other receivables and loan and
interest receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised
is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
@:ﬂ:— =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

3.

(@)

—RNFTZA=t+—HILFE

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade and
other receivables, loan and interest receivables,
loan to an associate and loan to non-controlling
interests, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade or other receivable, loan and
interest receivables, loan to an associate and
loan to non-controlling interests is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset
is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss in the period in which the impairment
takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through profit
or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified
into financial liabilities at FVTPL and other
financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
@:ﬂ:— =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

3.

(ii)

—RNEFTZA=t+—HILFE

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liabilities are either held for
trading or those designated as at FVTPL on
initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for
trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near
term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of

a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss is included in the other gains and
losses line item in profit or loss. Fair value is
determined in a manner described in note 38.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade
and other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling interests, bank borrowings, loan
payable, margin loans payable, loan from non-
controlling interests and debt component of
convertible bonds, are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds issued by the Company
that contain both the liability and conversion
option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company'’s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
@:ﬂ:— =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

3.

(ii)

—RNFTZA=t+—HILFE

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the
gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity,
is included in equity (equity component of
convertible bonds).

In subsequent periods, the liability component
of the convertible bonds is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component, representing the option to
convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in equity
component of convertible bonds until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case
the balance stated in equity component
of convertible bonds will be transferred to
share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in equity component of convertible
bonds will be released to the accumulated
losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component
are charged directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iij)  Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve
is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-current asset held for sale

Non-current asset is classified as held for sale if its
carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
Such classification requires the asset must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset and its sale is highly probable. Management
must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current asset classified as held for sale is
measured at the lower of its previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs of disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Bt 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for good sold in

the normal course of business.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant

leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
relevant leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserves (attributable
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits scheme contributions
Payments to the defined contribution plans in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Taiwan are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries, in
the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
related service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment properties are depreciable and
are held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.

NEFE+-A=+—BLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the date of grant is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Impairment losses on tangible assets and
intangible assets (other than impairment of
goodwill set out in accounting policy of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets and
intangible assets (other than impairment of
goodwill set out in accounting policy of goodwill
above) (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or the CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.

NEFE+-A=+—BLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group's
share-based payment transactions, leasing
transactions, net realisable value of inventories
and value in use of goodwill for the purpose of
impairment assessment, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Specifically,
the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs,
as follow:
Level 1T - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
determines whether transfer occur between levels
of the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities
which are measured at fair value on recurring basis by
reviewing their respective fair value measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised and disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Going concern and liquidity

The assessment of the going concern assumptions
involves making judgement by the directors of the
Company, at a particular point of time, about the
future outcome of events or conditions which are
inherently uncertain. Please refer to note 1 in relation
to the going concern assumptions adopted by the
directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

The Group determines whether an acquisition of
subsidiaries qualifies as acquisition of business
in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business
Combination or acquisition of assets that requires
judgment. The directors of the Company consider
the substance of the acquisition of subsidiaries
that constitute a business will be accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business
Combination, in case the acquisition of subsidiaries
does not constitute a business, it is classified as
acquisition of assets. Details of acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group during the year are set out in
note 43.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 December 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill
is approximately HK$7,465,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$18,414,000), net of accumulated impairment loss
of HK$15,354,000 (31 December 2015: HK$908,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment loss on interests in
associates

The directors of the Company determined whether
interests in associates are impaired by reference to
an estimation of recoverable amount of investment.
The recoverable amount of interests in associates
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flow
expected to arise from the associates and a suitable
discount rate including the risk adjustment in order to
calculate the present value. The assumption includes
management best estimate of the set of economic
condition in the future.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
interests in associates is approximately HK$73,176,000
(2015: HK$44,678,000). No impairment loss is
recognised in both years.

Allowance for doubtful debts

Allowance for doubtful debts is made based on
the assessment of the recoverability of trade and
other receivables, and loan and interest receivables.
The identification of doubtful debts requires the
directors of the Company to make judgement and
estimates. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness,
past collection history of each debtor as well as the
collateral received by the Group. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the
carrying value of trade and other receivables, and loan
and interest receivables and doubtful debt expenses/
written back in the period in which the estimate has
been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Allowance for doubtful debts (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts
of trade and other receivables was approximately
HK$36,576,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of approximately HK$1,006,000) (2015: carrying
amount of approximately HK$8,570,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$3,366,000)). Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables recognised for the year ended 31
December 2016 amounting to approximately nil
(2015: HK$3,366,000).

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
loan and interest receivables was approximately
HK$49,258,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$4,149,000) (2015:
HK$28,901,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$4,149,000)). Impairment loss on loan and
interest receivables recognised for the year ended
31 December 2015 amounting to approximately
HK$4,149,000 (2016: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

EXEHHERMEFTIREREZ

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of the financial position at 31 December
2016 at their fair value of approximately
HK$155,457,000 (2015: HK$190,070,000). The fair
value was based on a valuation on these properties
conducted by an independent firm of professional
valuers using property valuation techniques which
involve certain assumptions of market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Estimated impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to
determine when an available-for-sale investment
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates among other factors, the duration and
extent to which the carrying amount of financial asset
is less than its present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset; and the financial health
of and short-term business outlook for the investee,
including operational and financing cash flow. At 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of available-
for-sale investments stated at cost was approximately
HK$41,116,000 (2015: nil). No impairment loss was
recognised in both years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Fair value of share options

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on the Company's directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables
of certain subjective assumptions.

Fair value of profit guarantee

The directors of the Company use their judgement
in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
measuring the fair value of profit guarantee. Details
of the assumptions used are disclosed in Note 38(c).
The directors of the Company believe that the chosen
valuation techniques and assumptions are appropriate
in determining the fair value of the profit guarantee.

Fair value of contingent consideration

Fair value of contingent consideration is measured
by independent qualified professional valuers. The
valuation involves, inter-alia, certain estimates,
including financial assumptions, probabilities assigned
to different scenarios and discount rate. In relying on
the valuation, management has exercised judgement
and is satisfied that the method of valuation. As
at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
contingent consideration is HK$2,976,000 (2015:
HK$13,165,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE

Revenue represents revenue arising on one-stop value
chain services, rental income, trading of consumables
and agricultural products, trading of grocery food
products and provision of money lending services for

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

5. W&
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RERERBRFAEER U S - ANE
BRFER B FHELERBE R 40

the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the T:
year from continuing operations is as follows:
2016 2015
—F-RE —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
One-stop value chain services — i B EERE 35,955 57,235
Rental income (Note) WA () 3,586 1,521
Trading of consumables and HEMMARERED
agricultural products 5,712 703
Trading of grocery food products BhEmE 22,409 289
Provision of money lending services RENERS 4,808 -
72,470 59,748
Note: B =T
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Gross rental income e ALz 3,586 1,521
Less: outgoings (included in cost of sales) — J& : X} (FF A& A) (937) (264)
Net rental income e WA FE 2,649 1,257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE
6. OTHER GAIN OR LOSS, NET

6. HtWmNEEFHE

2016 2015
ZE2E-RF _—T—hOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Continuing operations HEKEEK
(Loss) gain on disposal of financial HEZRAFEFABTZ
assets at FVTPL TREE (B1B)KkaE (5,783) 3,612
Loss on concert project held (Note (a)) ZRHUEEESIEE 2 E18 (HiE@)) - (2,825)
Interest income T B WA 114 1,718
Other rental income HaEe WA - 3
Gain on bargain purchase % (B WIS Yz - 507
Gain on fair value change of ERFAREZ
contingent consideration payable NEEZF W= 11,326 999
Loss on disposal of interest in a HE—FM B AT
subsidiary (note 44) S E1E (BPsE44) (881) S
Gain on cancellation of convertible FIEE AT MR B SR 2 W a
bonds (Note 34(e)) (FI5E34()) 7,854 -
Impairment loss recognised on HEEmRBZREEE
goodwill (14,446) (908)
Dividend income from financial assets & A F{EF ABZEZ
at FVTPL TREEBRE WA 25 785
Impairment loss recognised on other  FtE fth B UK IERER 2
receivables BIEEE - (3,366)
Impairment loss recognised on loan HEWE R EHERZ
and interest receivables NEREYEi=! - (4,149)
Sundry income FEEBA 669 1,344
(1,122) (2,280)
Note: ik
(a) On 5 February 2015, the subsidiary of the Company (@) n —RE-FBHEB  ARQTKE
entered into an agreement with an independent N BB = BT —IEE
third party for holding a concert in the PRC and paid PR E R EEe S A%

an initial deposit of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to

approximately HK$6,250,000). The concert had been
held on 13 June 2015 and loss of approximately
RMB2,260,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,825,000) was resulted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segments, based on
information reported to the board of directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focus on types of goods or
services delivered or provided. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reporting
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE
DEER
BREAARFEFTS (AXTBLERR
EB)RENER AEERETERDE
MOBRBFHEDNELENBEZFER
PRSI E M RGN ER - 7
ERASEMNAIZEmOER T EEE
R A PR B B BV A & D SR A N o

X

j‘/ﬁ% ZN-S I$ETJ%%E5%E7TW$E%£EE'J
FE8B| D HRE B\

1. One-stop value chain services - provision of total solution services including trading,
packaging and logistics solutions

1. —ABEEERE - RHZERRAIERE (BRES BENRYRERT
=)
Rk %5

Property investment
MERE

Trading of consumables and

agricultural products
HEmRERERE

Trading of grocery
food products

BHRmE

Provision of money lending
services

RHE RS

generated rental income from operating leases of Group's
investment properties

AEEREMELEHEEEN —RES KA

trading of consumables and agricultural products

HEmMEERE

trading of grocery food products

BhHEmES

provision of money lending services

RHMERS

The provision of money lending services was formally
commenced during the year ended 31 December
2016. As a result, a new segment of provision of
money lending services was added under operating
segments in the current year.

RUEBERBECEAR-_T—RF+=
A=Z+—BLEFERE- Bt BHX
EREOHFOMERNFEMALED
#Be
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Bt 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—

7/5

E—RNF+_A=1+—BIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. SEER (F)

Operating segments regarding health care services and
trading of ceramic products were discontinued in or
during the year ended 2015. The segment information
reported below does not include any amounts for

EEBERRERGIEEEREZNE
ENBERBE T -—HIEFERKLELK
EoATERNDBERL A FJ%EZ
FERIEREXHNEMNESRE  &F:

these discontinued operations, details which are FEEEIEENMTEET0 o

described in note 10.

Segment revenues and results ek N E IV E

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue LT AEREFRKTR i&&< S KaE| S
and results from continuing operations by reportable pA=E=3 <L REEDHT:

and operating segments:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+t—HLHFE

Continuing operations
RESERE
Trading of
One-stop value consumables and Trading of grocery Provision of money
chain services Property investment agricultural products food products lending services Total
—SRAEEERE NERE HERRRERES BHERES RERRER @it
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“¥-AE -1 ZR-AF CT-1F S®-AE SR Z¥-AF “F-RF C®-AF “%F-1f ¥R _F-IF
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR T TR Thn THz TiEn Tin T TR T
REVENUE [
External sales HiMHE 35,955 57,235 3,586 1,521 5712 703 2,409 289 4,808 = 72470 59,748
—e—— —— — E—— —— E— —— —— — E— —
Segment (loss) profit R (BR)EN (25) 63 (@183) 736 (3%) (2,608) (17,957) (265) 1753 - (21,037) (2,014)
Unallocated corporate other
gain or loss, net 13,324 (13712)

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Increase (decrease) in fair BRATEHAREZ
value of financial assets at ~ SEAEATEEM

FVTPL ()
Share of resuls of associates ~ AEBE L AIEE
Finance costs RERE
Loss before taxation BHAEE

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|BEEREHFRA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment (loss) profit represents
the (loss from) profit earned by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, directors’
emoluments, certain other gain or loss, net, increase
(decrease) in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL,
share of results of associates and finance costs. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

2REHR (&)
DEREREE (F)

&2 0 FRH) & R IR OR B RE3PT A # AR
SEEHBEAR - 28 (BR) mMHE
EN M (BR)EN TefskhR
THRAAN EFEME AT HMKREX
BRFE RAFEFABREZERE

EAFEEN GRD) - HiEER

BNEBERAN W IRAEREERRE
ER2TE NETERDEMREF

ftie
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
@:ﬂ:— =

—NFE+_A=Z+—HULEE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. SEER (F)
Segment assets and liabilities NHEEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and NTRAEREITEHMREEDFE D
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: CEEHEBABSW:
2016 2015
—R"FE —ZZT—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Segment assets THEE
Continuing operations BEREER
One-stop value chain services — i EEERE 403 2,212
Property investment MERE 179,584 194,450
Trading of consumables and HEMMARERE D
agricultural products 9,094 5,434
Trading of grocery food products BHRmE 17,596 24,954
Provision of money lending services RERERS 49,258 -
Total segment assets NEEEHE 255,935 227,050
Asset classified as held for sale DEAFELECEE 19,393 11,290
Unallocated corporate assets AOBAREE 242,578 149,059
Consolidated assets HEBE 517,906 387,399
Segment liabilities DEEE
Continuing operations BESEER
One-stop value chain services —uh B E RS 183 28
Property investment MERE 16,683 6,217
Trading of consumables and HEmEREERE
agricultural products 799 97
Trading of grocery food products BHRRE S 968 287
Provision of money lending services RERERS 78 =
Total segment liabilities DERERRE 18,711 6,629
Unallocated corporate liabilities N NI =K 137,068 106,905
Consolidated liabilities = 155,779 113,534
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than certain plant and equipment,
interests in associates, available-for-sale
investments, certain other receivables, loan to
an associates, deposit paid for acquisition of
plant and equipment, financial assets at FVTPL
and bank balances and cash; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain other payables, amounts due
to non-controlling interests, bank borrowings,
income tax payable, loan from non-controlling
interests, liability component of convertible
bonds, deferred tax liabilities, margin loans
payable and unsecured loan payable.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

7. SEEH (&)

SEEERAM (F)
RERESERARAS I EAE LR
me

. FMBEEONRERLEDER
THRER&E RBEERRZ
@ AR ERE BT HME
R MEEARERNER B
NKERE Lk RERE RRF
Bt ABRZZEMEE  AKR
TTREBEREHRIN R

. FIAERRE I RERESIEET
Ho Al A SRR - FE AN IR AR
Rt FUR IRITE R BN E
BRI RS &K Al
BEZZBERY BTEHRER
B ENRESERLENER
HERERI -

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBZ 4L EEFR AT
Annual Report 2016 —Z — N F &1

147



148

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_Z—ARF+-_A=+—HLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December

7. 2EES (&)
B it 5 R
BE+-H=+—HLFE

Continuing operations
KREEER
Trading of Trading of
One-stop value consumables and grocery food Provision of money
chain services Property investment agricultural products products lending services Unallocated Total
- A BEERE NERE HERRRERER BRERES RERERY L] @it
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-7NF “T-1fF CB-xF “F-1%F ZB-xF _I-0F Z®-»F -T-1Ff IZ%-7F _T-1Ff IB-XF _T-1F ZB-Af _-T-1%
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tk TEn Thn Fin Fin TEn T Fin Fin TR Tk Tén Thn
Amounts included in the measure
of segment profit or loss or
segrment assets
Additions to non-current assets FRBEERE (M)
(Note) - - 4 173613 3,502 1 - 24,830 - - 3211 756 31,257 199,210
Increase in fair value of RENFATEEMEE
investment properties, net - - (1,809) 2,759 - - - - - - - S (1,809) (2,759
Depreciation for plant and BEREENE
equipment 52 52 525 230 40 n - - - - 693 567 1,690 1,220
Amortisation of intangiole asset EVEERE - - - - - - 1,604 133 - - - S 1,604 133
Impairment loss recognised on (EERA AERE
goodwil - - - 908 - - 14,446 - - - = S 14,446 908
—— — — — —— E— — — — — — — S—
Amounts regularly provided to chief  EEREFEEEBRRE
operating decision maker but BRASBER
ot included in the measure PEEEHENGE:
of segment profit or loss or
segment assets:
Loss (gain) on disposal of financial & RATERABEZ
assets at FVTPL SREEHE (ha) - - - - = = = = = = 5783 (3612 5783 3612
Loss on concert project held BHEREIH FR - = = S - = = = = = - 2825 = 2825
Interest income HERA - - - - - - - - - - (119) (1,718) (14) (1,718
Dividend income from financial Tﬁ“%ﬁﬂ\?ﬁﬁﬁz
assets at FVTPL - - - - - - - - - - (25) (785) (25 (785)
(Increase) decrease in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL
- - - - - - - - - - (25,467) 15,936 (25,467) 15,936
Loss on disposal of interest in a
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 881 = 881 =
(Gain on bargain purchase - - - - - - - - - - - (507) - (507)
Impairment loss recongised on other
receivables - - - - - - - - - - - 3366 - 3,366
Impairment loss recognised on loan
and interest receivables - - - - - - - - - - - 4149 - 4149
(Gain on fair value of contingent &
consideration payable - - - - - - - - - - (11,326) (999) (11,326) (999)
Share of esults of associates HMBERAEE - - - - - - - - - - 1,030 947) 1,030 (947)
Interests in associates REEARZER - - - - - - - - - - 13,176 4,678 13,176 44678
Finance costs BERK - - - - - - - - - - 7,456 4,093 7456 4,093
Tatation iz - - (206) 2885 163 - (265) (22) - - - - (308) 2863
—— — — — — — — — — — — — S—
Note: Non-current assets excluded those relating to Mzt : SERBIEETEIEED R QLR

discontinued operations and financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. oDEEE (')

Geographical information ih & & #

Information about the Group’s revenue from REE R QINIE PRI E R E E &P
continuing operations from external customers BWENERREEHE 25 KE
is presented based on the location of customers. EIERBEENIREEMEINREY -

Information about the Group’s non-current assets is
presented based on the geographical location of the

assets.
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
RENMBEF 2k ERBEE
For the year ended
31 December As at 31 December
BEZE+-A=+—-HLEE ®W+=-HA=+-H
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XE —T-HFE ZB-XE —T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THT THERT FAET
Hong Kong &5 67,418 58,228 56,122 46,694
The PRC F 4,430 1,365 171,437 199,195
Taiwan =¥ 622 - 20,787 19,952
The United States of America  EF|EX & R - 155 = =
72,470 59,748 248,346 265,841
Note: Bt 5
Non-current assets excluded those relating to discontinued RS EETEEHE R I REEBNLESR
operations and financial instruments. BEo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group is as follows:

2REHR (&)

FBIERFNESR

MEFERBREP ZBAEREERRK
AHBiB10% 2 BRI T :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLHFE

2016 2015

—EBE-RE —ZT—AEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Customer Al 2 BEA2 N/A 7EH 7,052
Customer B! EFB 29,982 42,085

L Revenue from one-stop value chain services segment
e The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

: RE—HANEBEERES Bz W=
g HEWMAGAERBKRATEBI0%

8.  FINANCE COSTS b B A
2016 2015
ZE2E-RF —T—hOF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Continuing operations BEREXRK

Interest on bank borrowings RITE R B 349 146
Interest on loan payable FEH B X F B 220 -
Interest on margin loans payable ERMRBESEHF S 408 -

Effective interest expense on AMRESF2ERFNEER
convertible bonds (Note 34(d)) (PffsE34(d)) 6,479 3,947
7.456 4,093
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December

2016

BE-_Z—XRE+-_A=+—HILEE
TAXATION 9. HIE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Continuing operations HEKEEK
Current tax: BOERRHIE :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEH 163 -
Deferred tax (note 35): REFLTA (KIEE35) -
Current year KEE 471) 2,863
(308) 2,863

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2016.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided for the year
ended 31 December 2015 as the Group did not have
any assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law"”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008.
No EIT is provided for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015 as the Group did not derive any
assessable profit subject to EIT.

The Taiwan Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax is
calculated at 17% of the estimated assessable profits
for both years. No Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income
Tax is provided for the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015 as the Group did not derive any assessable
profit subject to Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax.

EENGHRBEE_T—X"F+_A

Zt+—HUEFEMNGTERE G
16.5% 2 TR Re1H -

REBE-_FT—RF+-_A=1—H

B AR AEELEITABHRE

BHOERTRN SR ERE L
B{E R o

RIEFHEARKMBEEEMAETE
EMBEREDREEMEREE
pl-BEZFFNF—A R F
BRAANHER25% - HRAEH
EXEAABMEEMSHNE
wA MMERBE T —RNFR
—hAFE+-A=t+—HLEFEEH
PRS-

Mz

flacs
B
kS

(I
iR
Bl
i3
R
==
o

BEBLENEXMEHEREZMEFE
RfEEHERRBUE IR 7% 2 R EFE -

RN ER B30 48 & A (TR BB &

EEHAERTEN - &L

ZE-RFEERZE-RFTA=

kS
BE
+_

AILFEERENEERSVEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

@:ﬂ:— =
9.

—NFE+ZA=+—BHILtFE
TAXATION (continued)

The taxation for the years can be reconciled to the
loss before taxation per the consolidated statement

9. HiIE (&)
ZEFEATEEGABENEMAEE
W MR B AT E B E BRI T

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:
2016 2015
—E—XE —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Loss before taxation BR T Bl ES 1B
(from continuing operations) (BREREED) (34,357) (55,837)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of ZEIRFTIEMREH E16.5%:1E
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) WBHIB(ZE—RF:16.5%) (5.669) (9,213)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ “NA] IR ST LI5S &
for tax purpose 9,995 8,098
Tax effect of income not taxable for AR WA R TSR &
tax purpose (9,789) (1,999)
Tax effect of share of results of DEBERAREENT BT E
associates 226 (157)
Tax effect of temporary differences AEREREB BB E
not recognised 341 77
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R HIERFLIAE BTS2 & 4,686 7,189
Utilisation of deductible temporary &) A LA R 158 2 ] 008
difference previously not recognised i AERE (23) (350)
Effect of different tax rates of NN CIEIbr - AR d= o L =N
subsidiaries operating in other FORN b RS-
jurisdictions (75) (782)
Taxation for the year (relating to FABIE (FRABELCEER)
continuing operations) (308) 2,863

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 35.
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_Z—AR"F+-_A=1+—BLEFE
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 10. ERLEKEER
On 15 April 2015, the Group entered into a MNRZE—RAFENUA+HRBE AEFHHEE
termination agreement with the health care operator EIRESIEEE MR AR B
to terminate the health care services business. As a ERERBERS - At BERERSE
result, the operating segment of health care services BEDHER_E—RAFNA+HAN
had been ceased by passing a broad resolution on 15 BIAEEEREEANMKRIIEEHF
April 2015. Details are disclosed in the Company’s FAFEEEN AN ATHEA-_ZS—HF
announcement dated on 15 April 2015. MA+HEBH A
On 30 June 2015, a board resolution had been passed NRZE—RFENA=1TH —BEEFE
to discontinue the operating segment regarding REZERA B EBEBEEERE
trading of ceramic products due to the sluggish F RS S FEREEZR TSR 55 & EFEE
ceramic market and the decrease in the product ERHERERTEME I EE-
demand of ceramic products.
The loss for the year from the discontinued operations ERIETREEEBHNRNEEGHGES T
was analysed as follows: T:
2015
—E—0F
HK$'000
FHET
Total loss for the year RNFEEBERARE
— trading of ceramic products -lHEERE ()
— health care services - BERERSE (1,049)
(1,051)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE-T

0]

—RNFTZA=t+—HILFE

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 10. BRIIBEEXK (8)
Discontinued operation - health care ) BRITEEER -—BERBRE
services
The results of the health care services for the BE-_ZE—FHF—A—HZ—
period from 1 January 2015 to 15 April 2015, —FHEA TR HERE #%1%@
which had been included in the consolidated REESE (HEP st A AGEE51EZ
statement of profit or loss and other EEMEERmKER)WOT:
comprehensive income were as follows:
Period
ended
15/4/2015
BHE
—ET—hF
MA+HA
LEEAFE
HK$'000
FHET
Revenue Wz 6,403
Cost of sales $HE AR (4,885)
Administrative expenses TR (2,567)
Loss for the period NHAFEEE (1,049)
Loss for the period from BRI EEBN AN RREER
discontinued operation BIENT &R
included the following:
Depreciation for plant and equipment WEREETE 40
Staff costs %i TR 195
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRREF GBI 6
Minimum lease payments paid BRER A SANEEHED
under operating leases BN HEBEERIE
in respect of office premises 1,866

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the health care services segment contributed
approximately HK$2,811,000 of the

Group's net operating cash outflows,

paid

approximately HK$118,000 in respect of
investing activities and received approximately

HK$144,000 in respect of financing activities.
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 10.

(i)

Discontinued operation - trading of
ceramic products

The results of the trading of ceramic products
for the period from 1 January 2015 to 30
June 2015, which had been included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income were as follows:

RE MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE
ERIEREXRK (&)

(i) CBRIEREXK-BEERES

A-F-HF-—A-AE_3
—AFAAZHABHBEES
BHMEM (KB ALA AR
REM2ERER) T

Period
ended
30/6/2015
BHE
—T—hF
/\ﬂ :+ EI
LEEAFE
HK$'000
FHET

Revenue Wz
Administrative expenses T

Loss for the period NEAFEI B 18

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the trading of ceramic products segment
contributed nil to the Group’s net operating
cash flows, investing activities and financing
activities.

)

)

BHE_ZTZ-—HF+_A=+—8H
HFEE - MEERES D BREAE
SEKER SR FR KEED
kBB RSN ERMAT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

11.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging:

11. XFEEEIE

AREZBBERNR T SRRIIR

2016 2015
—E—XE — 04
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Continuing operations HEREER
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12) EEHH (MFE12) 11,014 4,910
Other staff costs (excluding directors’  E fth 8 T kA&
emoluments) (TBREEEHM) 8,469 6,169
Share-based payments recognised EHERE AR BER 2 5K 3,889 -
Retirement benefits scheme RIKAEFIET B3R
contributions (excluding directors) (T"BRFEEE) 540 280
23,912 11,359
Auditors’ remuneration %2R BN 2 730 550
Amount of inventories recognised BRARI ZFENIA
as an expense 40,201 56,807
Amortisation of an intangible asset B EEEH 1,604 133
Depreciation for plant and equipment & M R E & 1,690 1,220
Loss on written-off of plant and WsH B a1 2 B 1R
equipment 14 -
Exchange loss, net EREEFE 3,745 43
Share-based payments to consultants 32 5 F & &9 A B% 15
BER 2R 1,096 -
Minimum lease payments paid BB RSN EHEER
under operating leases BN &EEERE
in respect of office premises 2,018 2,113
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-T—AF+-A=t+—BILEE
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEZ#HE

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
seven (2015: five) directors and the chief executive
(the "Chief Executive”) of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016

ST

BE_T-—R"ER-_T—AF+_H
=t HALEFERRRRENESR (=
0% ) RITRAER ([1TTHAE
1) &8RN

BE_Z- A "F+-A=t—-HLFE

Executive Directors Independent non-executive directors (“INED")
417E3 BUf4nEs
Ng Cheuk
Fan, Keith
(re-designed Ng Check
from INED Fan, Keith
AuYeung and appointed (re-designed
Poleung  to executive Yuen Wai Man as executive
(appointed on director on (appointed on Yick  directoron
So David 2January  1September  Zhang Min 1 September Ting Fai, 1 September
TatMan Lai Yick Fung 2016) 2016) 2016) Jeffery 2016) Total
%8R
(R=%-7% RER
ERER  AA-A REH (R=%-A%
(R=%-7%  BELFHT (R=%F-7% LA-A
-A=R EEHALER 7A-A i Eiv]
KEX et BZf) f£RUNES) &R Ezf) 7EE  #iEE) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR T Tin T T TEx TR TR TR
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a FAATBERRAR
person's services as a director, whether of the EHERFZEEN
Company o its subsidiary undertaking: BRMasRYEE:
- egs -Hg - - - - 180 60 180 - 0
- Other emoluments -Ehie 1,300 1,300 8 33 - - - 120 3931
- Retitement benefits cheme contributions -RIETEER 18 18 18 6 - - - - 60
- Share-based paymens -IERBER AR 2863 1283 838 1,004 m 105 m - 6,603
Emoluments paid o receivable n respect of FESEMRERALAY
director's ther senvices in connection with the ANELTEEAEN
management of the affais of the Company or RBOERHESEREE
its subsiciary undertaking
- Other emoluments -Hiie - - - - - - - - -
- Retiement benefits scheme contrbutions -RIRTEEER - - - - - - - - -
Other emoluments Afpe - - - - - - - - -
Total emoluments Hetg 4181 257 1,634 148 450 165 450 120 11,014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

12. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

12.

Executive directors

EECME (#)
BE-_2-AFt+-A=1T—-HLHFE

Independent non-executive directors

BTES BUFNTES
Lai Yick
Fung Zhang Min
(appointed on  (appointed on Ng Yick
So David 1 July 23 March Cheuk Fan, Ting Fai,
Tat Man 2015) 2015) Keith Jeffrey Total
ikt RR
(R=F-1F (RZT—1%F
tA-B ZA=+=H
L33 BZE) EZf) RER SEE EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FHT FAT T TR
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect B A TEEARES
of a person’s services as a director, HEARCESH
whether of the Company or its subsidiary B B4 s EY R :
undertaking:
- Fees e - - 139 180 180 499
- Other emoluments -HiMe 1,204 668 - - - 1872
— Retirement benefits scheme —RIREFI BN
contributions 18 9 - - - 27
- Share-based payments — AR BER 2 3R 1,519 355 142 142 142 2,300
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect ~ HEZEMEETEARF
of director's other services in connection ~ EMBAREHEEN
with the management of the affairs FRHE R ME K
of the Company or its subsidiary R (Wsti)
undertaking (Note i)
- Other emoluments —Hibfe - 207 - - = 207
~ Retirement benefits scheme —RRBFI R
contributions - 5 - - - 5
Total emoluments Hewm 2,741 1,244 281 322 322 4,910
Note: s
(i) The emoluments represent the payments to Lai Yick (i) MEEREz —E—AFILFERE

Fung in respect of his services in connection with the
management of the affairs of a subsidiary during the
year ended 2015.

There was no Chief Executive of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

No director of the Company waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments paid by the Group during the
two years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

During the two years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.
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13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, four (2015: three) were directors of
the Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in note 12 above. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2015: two) individuals were as follows:

13.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—_ZE—XRF+-_A=+—BILFE
EEMS
KEFBRUEEEHFMA LR Wi (=%

—hF =) REARAES REME
EREXK 2P RE - Har— 6 (=
T—RF: ) EMNALZMENT

2016 2015

—RE C— R4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Basic salaries and allowances HEA#H & MEE 780 1,053

Share-based payments LARR 7 2 51 2 5% 105 -
Retirement benefits scheme RAIRAEFIFT B

contributions 18 36

903 1,089

The emoluments of each of the above employees were
within the band from nil to HK$1,000,000 during the
two years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

During the two years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
highest paid individuals (including the directors of the
Company) as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
ended 31 December 2016, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2015:
nil).

14.

BN EERBE_E-—REN_F
—HEE+_A=+—BIWMEFEENH
S HEMNZZE1,000,000 7T H) & &

REBE-_ZT-—RFL-_T-RF+-A
=t- EEWTIEEW R ER B (A
ReHMAL (BEARAES) MNE
MME  ERIMAREBE IR IMARZ
RE SERBERAEE -

’E
HE-_Z—R"Ft+-A=+—HBLLFE
MERNREZEINEARE  BER
EHMRENERZZXNEMRE (ZF
—hFE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

15.

LOSS PER SHARE

For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

15.

BRERE
FHEFERCRLEREXE

ARRHA ARIEERERREEER
TIERATSEAE

Loss EE
2016 2015
—RNE —ZE—AE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Loss for the year attributable to RAARHE ANEBIEAFEEE
owners of the Company (29,955) (59,214)
Number of shares RGEE
2016 2015
—ANE —hF
Weighted average number of TR N8
ordinary shares for the purpose of (REREARBEMmMS)
basic loss per share 4,991,602,228 3,682,030,759
Diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per share REBEEZ-_T—R"EF;EFT—HF+=AH

for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. The
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the conversion/exercise of the Company’s outstanding
convertible bonds set out in note 34 and options
to subscribe for additional shares set out in note 41
since their conversion/exercise would result in an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 15.

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
from continuing operations attributable to the owners
of the Company is based on the following data:

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE
BREE (&)
REFEREXYR
RRARER ANBLEHEREEBHER
ERNBEEREDENRATEEE

2016 2015
—2-XF —ZT—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to RRRHEE AEBIEAFEESE
owners of the Company (29,955) (59,214)
Less: B
Loss for the year from discontinued BRI EEBNRNFEER
operations - (1,051)
Loss for the purpose of SEIKEXEBBRE
basic and diluted loss per share (MEREAREIERMNES)
from continuing operations (29,955) (58,163)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operations

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the basic
and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operations was HK0.03 cents per share, based on the
loss for the year from the discontinued operations of
approximately HK$1,051,000 and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted loss per
share.

PREMM D B il BIRER L ETE
BFTEAE AR -

RECTKRIEEEER
REE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—RHLHF
B ERIECEEBRNERENREE
BEAFSR.0IBI I HERER
LE 48 & E T B AR F E B 1E 491,051,000
BRI EREAREEBEENS
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. MENR=%ZE
Computer,
Furniture,  network and
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and related Motor
improvement machinery equipment equipment vehicles Total
BAEER M 84 \
RENELE  HEREE B4 HERE RE &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TR TR FET
CosT $
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE-R%—-A—H 3,807 598 1,032 246 3,099 8,782
Additions NE 752 - 456 " 272 1,491
Avising from acquisition of subsiciaries B KEHBL AEE
(note 43(a)(i) (MT 43 - - 55 11 623 689
Disposals (2,534) - (651) (33) - (3,218)
Exchange adjustment ERSﬂ% - - (15) (1) (64) (80)
At 31 December 2015 RZ2-1F
+-A=t+-8H 2,025 598 877 234 3,930 7,664
Additions RE 1973 - 1,363 118 - 3,454
Written-off i (1 = = (15) = (26)
Exchange adjustment ERAE (41 - 27 1 (33) (100)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"F
+ZA=1+- 3,946 598 2,213 338 3,897 10,992
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2015 R-E-H1F—-A—A 2,815 598 580 140 241 4,374
Provided for the year ENEE 398 = 122 30 710 1,260
Eliminated on disposals R ERH (2,534) - (471) (15) - (3,020)
Exchange adjustment Rk = = (10) = (27) (37)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1%
Jr A=f+-H 679 598 221 155 924 2,577
Provided for the year NG 524 - 162 45 959 1,690
Eliminated on written-off Nﬂf#—] SEakis ) - = 3) S (12)
Exchange adjustment ERAE (18) = (20) 2 (18) (54)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-R%
+ZA=+- 1,176 598 363 199 1,865 4,201
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RE
+-A=+-H 2,770 - 1,850 139 2,032 6,791
At 31 December 2015 RZ2-1%
+-A=t+-H 1,346 - 656 79 3,006 5,087
The above items of plant and equipment are EX Az B E k& EEE REMAEA]

depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvement

Over the term of leases

Plant and machinery 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment
Computer, network and  20%
related equipment
Motor vehicles 20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. EBEYXE
2016 2015
—EB-RE —ZT—0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
FAIR VALUE ~NYE
At 1 January w—HA—H 190,070 28,812
Additions (note (a)) WNE (KfsE@)) = 55,203
Arising from acquisition of BWEHNBARESE
subsidiaries (note 43(a)(ii) (Pt sE43(a)i) ) = 121,010
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 44) HE—FEWHB AR
(Bft5E44) (9,000) -
Net increase in fair value RiBEPERN A FEE
recognised in profit or loss R 1,809 2,759
Reclassified to asset held for sale ENOBEEREHEESE
(note 26) (BftzE26) (19,393) (11,290)
Exchange adjustment JE R T (8,029) (6,424)
At 31 December Rt+Z—A=+—A”H 155,457 190,070
Net unrealised gain on property AFARABEREM
revaluation included in FTEHWRKRZMEER
consolidated statement of RER W FEE
profit or loss and other
comprehensive income 1,809 2,759
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

He—%—

17.

NFETZA=+—HIFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(a)

Included in the additions during the year
2015, an investment property of approximately
HK$12,902,000 was acquired by way of
issuance of the Company’s share. On 12
January 2015, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party for the
purchase of investment properties located in
the PRC at a consideration of RMB10,000,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$12,560,000
and settled by allotment and issuance of
62,800,000 ordinary shares. The acquisition
had been completed on 22 April 2015. Details
are set out in note 36(a).

The fair value of the above investment
properties as at the date of completion and
as at 31 December 2015 had been arrived
at based on a valuation carried out by Asset
Appraisal Limited (“Asset Appraisal”), the
independent professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The valuation was determined
by using income approach (details as explained
in note (e)), and the fair value of these
properties is approximately RMB10,322,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$12,902,000),
as at date of completion. The difference
between the par value of the ordinary shares
issued and the fair value of the investment
properties, was approximately HK$11,646,000,
are recognised as share premium at the
acquisition date.

The fair value of all of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2016 and 2015
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on the respective dates by Asset
Appraisal.

All of the Group's properties interests are held
under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes and are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|BEEREHFRA T
Annual Report 2016 —Z — N EF i

17.

REWE (&)
@ Z—E—AFHNAETBERENE

TARRRMD A A WE—FEL
12,902,000 LK) IR E W) % -
R-ZE—HRF—A+=-8"
ARG BARIE —ZBILE
AN EEBEHE UEEM
RAEBENREME RERBA
R #10,000,0007T (HHE R4
12,560,000/ 7T ) » 37 DA Bd 3% &%
%% 7762,800,0000% & 3@ A% X 1+ »
WHEEBER_ZT—HFMA
T+ ZHEK - BREFEIBE A
5¥36(a) ©

P EMERTKBRAR=-E
—AF+ZA=+—HZRAFE
TR EEETEERAA
([HasiE]) (BAREEImEEE
BN BEEMEM) TET A
BEH - F@ABAEDIEABRAE
(FBERMIE(e)ME) EE - Mm%
EMERTKBHH R FENR
AR #10,322,0007C (FHE R L
12,902,000/ 7T ) ° BT AR
WEEEEEMEATEEL
ZEAX) 511,646,000 7T T3 A UL
BHHERBERNDRE-

rEBR_ZE—RFERZT—H
F+_A=+—BZFEREY
ERNTFEDIRERHENEFHB
HFTEIT 2 hEER

AEEZ 2HME RS REEH
WA ARBRESHIEEATE
ZH WA ERAGE A5
BRAREMEARK-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

The above investment properties are located in
Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan.

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2016 and
2015 was determined based on the income
approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed
and discounted at the market yield expected
by investors for this type of properties. The
market rentals are assessed by reference to
the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the
properties as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The discount
rate is determined by reference to the yields
derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar commercial properties and adjusted to
take into account the market expectation from
property investors to reflect factors specific to
the Group's investment properties. Details of
the valuation techniques and assumptions are
discussed below.

There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating
the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties located in
Taiwan with the fair value of approximately
HK$19,691,000 as at 31 December 2016
(2015: HK$19,440,000), have been pledged to
a bank to secure the bank borrowing granted
to the Group. Details of bank borrowing are set
out in note 29.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the investment properties located in Hong
Kong with the fair value of approximately
HK$8,750,000, have been pledged to a bank
to secure the bank borrowing granted to the
Group. Details of bank borrowing are set out in
note 29.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—_ZE—XRF+-_A=+—BILFE
17. REWHE (HE)
(d FTlREMECRES FEK
AN 3N
() AREER-_Z—RFER_ZT—F

F+_A=1+—BHREDEZ
ARFETRBRAEET MY
¥MFar HABENMTmERS
BILAIE B & Bt BB 2 FrTE HA /Y

B IR S T R A BT A T
B TYS % WM AT AR Bl L

Ko B B 3Tt A8 8 L ¥ 3 P 4R
WHSETT G - TEEXTHIZE
ATEUERAYENEERSE
ol WK RYERESE
TS TEERA IR TAEE
NRBAEERENERENEA
K- TFRAMNMERERREIL
mRE -FHAESTERBRE
ERE AN

() BT (B TR I Mg
8 o (SRS MR ATES X
SUES 0 T Yes)

(@ MREEERR-Z—X"F+=A
=+— EH@Q?@W%% 000
BT (ZZE—HR4F 1 19,440,000/
TO) R EMEEEATRT A
FEAREEERBRITER E@AR
TR BE N E29 -

h BE-—ET—RNE+-_A=+—
HEFE UREBNREDNE
(A F{E#98,750,000/ 7t) 2 K

BFIRIT NEAREBEERIRTT
BER-BRABRTEIROFEBIHRN
M5E29 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

17.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. REWHE(H)

(i) Details of the Group’s investment properties 0) BRAAREENR - E—XRER =
and information about the fair value hierarchy —hRE+—RA=1t—H2Z2&E&EY
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are as EUNEBEBEAFEERER ZF
follows: EUNNE

Fair value as at
31 December

Rt-A=+-BWATE

2016 2015

=B-XRE —T—HF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET
Investment properties URBERNREME
located in Hong Kong (DERE_HA)

(categorised as Level 2) 8,750 17,750
Investment properties R EEREME
located in the PRC (DBRE_LH)

(categorised as Level 2) 96,334 120,185
Investment properties URPEEREDE
located in the PRC (DEEE=ZHH)

(categorised as Level 3) 30,682 32,695
Investment properties URBENREME
located in Taiwan (DEEE=HH)

(categorised as Level 3) 19,691 19,440

155,457 190,070

There was no transfer between levels of fair value FA ATFEERPIELF FEE-

hierarchy during the year.
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of the investment properties as at
31 December 2016 and 2015 are determined (in

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-T—

4= —=

/\

17. REWE (&)
TRERREVER - ZT-—RER-F
—hAF+-A=+—HORTFEZEE
TENER (LERGEERFAREH

Ft+-A=+—HBILFE

particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used): ABE) -
Relationship of
key inputs and
Significant significant
Fair value Fair value as at Valuation technique and unobservable unobservable
hierarchy 31 December 2016 key inputs inputs inputs to fair value
ATENIERARE
RZB-AE+=B=1-H RERER REBEN BARBENERBA
AHEER HRTE TERAHE ERBARE HEZHNEE
Investment Properties located in Level 2 HK$8,750,000 (2015:HK$17,750,000) Income approach - by reference to N/A N/A
Hong Kong capitalised income derived from existing
tenancies based on prevailing market
rents and the reversionary potential of
the properties
IR EENRENE EZ85 8,750,000 T (ZF— 1%+ WAE- B2 ZERBATERSH TR TEA
17,750,000/ 7T RERPAEENERMLMAR
ZENEHORE
Investment Properties located in PRC Level 2 RMBB6,690,000 (Equivalent to Income approach - by reference to N/A N/A
approximately HK$96,334,000) capitalised income derived from existing
(2015: RMB102,190,000 (Equivalent tenancies based on the prevailing
to approximately HK$120,185,000)) market rents and the reversionary
potential of the properties
fri e MR E % EZ85 AR 86,690,000 (HE KA WAE- B2 ZERBATERSH TER TEA
9,334,00087) (ZF—1&: RERPAEENERMLMAR
ARH102,190,0007 (BERH ZENEHORE
120,185,0007C) )
Investment Properties located in PRC Level 3 RMB27,610,000 (Equivalent to Income approach - by reference to Adjusted prevailing The higher the prevailing
approximately HK$30,682,000) capitalised income derived from existing market rents market rent, the
(2015: RMB27,800,000 (Equivalent tenancies and the reversionary potential lower the fair value
to approximately HK$32,695,000)) of the properties
fi e EMR A% FE=RH ARH27,6100007 (HERHA WNE-BE2EREREPTELN gRRRamERe BATERSEE.
30,682,00087) (ZF—H&: BRLMARZSNENERE D BIRTEE
AR 27,800,000 (1R
32,695,000%7C) )
Investment Properties located in Taiwan ~ Level 3 NTD79,400,000 (Equivalent to Income approach - by reference to Adjusted prevailing The higher the prevailing
approximately HK$19,691,000) capitalised income derived from existing market rents market rent, the
(2015: NTD80,000,000 (Equivalent to tenancies and the reversionary potential lower the fair value
approximately HK$19,440,000)) of the properties
fri e EMREME E=RH #12779,400,0007 (HERH WNE-BE2ERERPTELN aRgRanERe BATERSEE:
19,691,000%70) (ZF—H&: BRLMARZSENENERE N BIRTEE

#£%80,000,0007 (HERD
19,440,000 7T) )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

He—%—

17.

NETZA=T—HLFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of investment properties on recurring basis is as

17.

REWE (&)
BREMEXE =R A HEFEREFIEE
i

follows:
2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At beginning of the year REFH) 52,135 -
Exchange adjustment PE 35 (1,402) (2,254)
Additions nNE - 45,718
Acquired from acquisition of BRI B AR ATER
subsidiaries - 19,604
Reclassified to asset held-for-sale ENEABELEERE - (11,290)
Net (decrease) increase in fair value RIBEERHATFE (BLD)
recognised in profit or loss HNERE (360) 357
At end of the year RER 50,373 52,135

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
the net decrease in fair value recognised in profit
or loss of approximately HK$360,000 (2015: net
increase of approximately HK$357,000) are included
in increase in fair value of investment properties, net.
Included in the net increase in fair value is amount of
approximately HK$1,809,000 (2015: HK$2,759,000)
that is attributable to the unrealised losses relating to
investment properties held by the Group at the end of
the reporting period.
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_Z—RE+-A=+—RBIFE
GOODWILL 18. BHE
2016 2015
—~E —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
COST BN
At 1 January w—A—H 19,322 908
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries B UREERI B A RIEE
(note 43(a)(i)) (B 5E43(a)(0) ) 3,497 18,414
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—=H 22,819 19,322
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 January R—H—H (908) =
Impairment loss recognised FRERNBEBE
during the year (14,446) (908)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H (15,354) (908)
CARRYING VALUES FREAE
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8 7,465 18,414

Impairment loss is recognised after the assessment of
the recoverable amount, being the value in use, made
by the directors’ of the Company.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
with indefinite useful lives set out above have been
allocated to two individual CGUs, comprising one
subsidiary group in the trading of grocery food
products segment and one subsidiary group in the
trading of consumables and agricultural products
segment. The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31
December 2016 and 2015 allocated to these units are
as follows:

RMEBERARARESZHEAI KL SRR
(B FR{EfE) R HERR -

AETRERR EXHEABRERE
RHnNmEDESEEMETRRE
ELXELN BREBHRREZIDEN—

?ﬂﬁﬁ% T&Aé]f%uu&}_guuﬁ \*E
W—HNB AR -R=F /\E&
—hFt+= ﬂ + =K EE?ES@%

ELLE’U%%EEE@?ZDT :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_ZT—F+-_A=+—ALFE
18. GOODWILL (continued) BE(E)
2016 2015
ZE2E-RF _—T—hOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Trading of grocery food products BHRRE S
— YIHE Group —H&5HE 3,968 18,414
Trading of consumables and HEMARERE S
agricultural products — Inno-Bag —NERRE 3,497 =
7,465 18,414
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group REZ-_T—R"F+-_A=+—HILF

recognised an impairment loss of approximately
HK$14,446,000 in relation to goodwill arising on the
acquisition of the YIHE Enterprise Holding Limited and
its subsidiary (collectively referred as “YIHE Group”),
which is engaged in trading of grocery food products.
The management determined that the recoverable
amount based on a value in use calculation. The
calculation used cash flow projections based on
the expected income to be generated from this the
CGU and the recoverable amount was approximately
HK$8,660,000, which was less than the carrying value
of this CGU, accordingly, an impairment loss had been
recognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of approximately
HK$908,000 in relation to goodwill arising on the
acquisition of Fujian Seton Investment Co., Ltd
("Fujian Seton”), which was engaged in leasing of
investment properties for rental income purpose.
The management determined that the recoverable
amount based on a value in use calculation. The
calculation used cash flow projections based on the
expected income to be generated from the investment
properties held by the CGU and the recoverable
amount was approximately HK$18,464,000, which
was less than the carrying value of the CGU,
accordingly, an impairment loss had been recognised.
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODW.ILL (continued)

The recoverable amount of YIHE Group has been
determined on the basis of a value in use calculation.
The value in use calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 4-year period, and a discount rate of
14.93% (2015: 12.36%). The cash flows beyond
the 4-year period are extrapolated using a steady
2.5% (2015: 2.5%) growth rate. The growth rate is
based on the general inflation rate for the year 2016
and 2015. Cash flow projections during the budget
period for YIHE Group is also based on the budgeted
sales and expected gross margins of the YIHE Group.
Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of the YIHE Group to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of YIHE
Group.

The recoverable amount of Inno-Bag has been
determined on the basis of a value in use calculation.
The recoverable amount is based on certain similar key
assumptions. The value in use calculations uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-years period, and a
discount rate of 18.16%. The cash flows beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 2.5%
growth rate. The growth rate is based on the general
inflation rate for the years 2016. Cash flow projections
during the budget period for Inno-Bag is also based
on the budgeted sales and expected gross margins of
Inno-Bag. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of Inno-Bag
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of Inno-
Bag.

18.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE
BE (&)
HEeRBENA KO eREERAEER
HmMET - EREENTEDNERER
EEEMRIEs NFRMBEENER S
MEFR - RITERE1493% (ZE—1
F:1236% ) MBBRAMNFHNRE R
ERAREERR25% (ZE—AF:
25% ) FHHE - EREXTDER_T
—RNFERZE-—AFH—RBKRE-T
SEEREEHRNNRRERATE
REAEBNEEIHE RFEHENE-
EIREMRE EAZERRNEMEIE

BEASEMKOESE-

B IR (R A AT UK [B] & BB 3R B AT
EmET AT BEIRRE TELUE
REBR -FABENTENERERE
BEMEZ AFHPHEERNR SR
SR RITIRE18.16%  MBBAF
HRRSRERABTEERE25%EN
HE-BERERDER T —REFH
—MBEE -NERAINEEHAD
e RERATMZRKERRRNNTE
HHERTEHREN R -EREMRE T
MZERENTMNEEAEESTEE
BN RIRRRBREEBARKLRRE
AU e SR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

19.  INTANGIBLE ASSET 19. ERESE
HK$'000
FET
COST XA
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE—-—RFE—H—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43(a)iii)) U BE B B A &) (BT 5E43(a)iii) ) 6,416
At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 RZZE—HF+=—ZA=+—H"
and 31 December 2016 —E-RFE-—A—HK
—E—XRNE+-A=+—H 6,416
AMORTISATION BN
At 1 January 2015 R-—ZE—RF—HF—AH -
Charge for the year REFEXH 133
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+=-_A=+—H 133
Charge for the year REEXH 1,604
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RF+-_A=+—H 1,737
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RF+ZA=+—H 4,679
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=A=+—H 6,283
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ARREZRS BERABARER
franchise has finite useful life and is amortised on a B RO NI B AR o

straight-line basis over the 4 years.
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REEQATZHER
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT

Cost of unlisted investments REtE AR ZIELETIREKA
in associates 69,212 39,684
Share of post-acquisition results SMERERESR 3,964 4,994
73,176 44,678
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had RZE—RNERZETE—HF+=A
interests in the following associates: =+—B -XAEBERTIEERRFE
s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=t+—HLEFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. REEB QAT Z#ER (8)
Proportion of
Place of ownership interests
incorporation/ or participating
establishment/ shares held by Proportion of
Name of entity Form of entity operation (Class of shares held the Group voting power held Principal activity
HEL/ BT/ FEEFEERERRED
EREE R ey Fi& R < 85 saRBzILH R EELH TERH
2016 2015 2016 2015

ZE-RE ZEZ-RF ZE-RE ZE-1F

Direct associates
ERBELNT
FDC Limited (note a) Limited Liability Samoa Ordinary shares 49% 49% 49% 49%  Inactive
FDC Limited (ff3%a) ARAT EEE EER 49% 49% 49% 0% EXH
BZE (R RABNERAR Liited Liability PRC Paid up capital 40% 40% 40% 40%  Investment holding

Zhonghe Huaxia (Beijing) Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd. ("Beijing HX")

(Note b)

AZE (FR)REBHERAA BRAA il BRER 40% 40% 40% q0%  RERR
(TEREE]) (Mitb)

Gold Wide Holdings Limited (Note d) Limited Liability HK Ordinary Shares 25% = 25% - Investment holding
SLEEERAA (i) ERRA Bk TR 25% - 25% - REBR
Indirect associates

BEBELR

AHE (AR REBRAA Liited Liability PRC Paid up capital 2% 2% 2% 2% Investment holding
Zhonghe Xinnong (Beijing) (Note c) (Note ¢)

Investment Co., Ltd.
("Beijing XN") (Note b)

AR (LR REBRAT ERAR hE HRER 0% 2% 2% 2% REER
(HEmE&1) (Btb) (Wao) (M

Fuyu Zhonghe Xinnong Market Real Estate  Limited Liabilty PRC Paid up capital 2% 22% 2% 22%  Properties development
Co., Ltd. ("Fuyu") (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note ¢)

RAhARRTRERRRAT BRAA hE BRER 0% 2% 2% 0% NEER
(T%&1) (Mtb) (W) (M)
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

(@)

(d)

FDC Limited was inactive since its incorporation, the
carrying amount attributable to the Group is not
significant.

The English translation of the company name is for
identification purpose only. The official names of
these companies are in Chinese.

Fuyu is wholly owned by Beijing XN and 55%
shareholding of Beijing XN is owned by Beijing HX,
accordingly, the Group effectively holds 22% equity
interest in Beijing XN and Fuyu.

On 6 October 2016, the Group acquired 25%
equity interest in Gold Wide Holdings Limited
from an independent third party, for an aggregate
of 263,636,364 ordinary shares of the Company
allotted and issued and HK$1 cash consideration.
After the acquisition, Gold Wide Holdings Limited
becomes one of the associates of the Group and
has been accounted for using equity method.
Further details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 20 September
2016 and 6 October 2016.

RE MR
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE
20, REERA R (&)
BT

(a) FDC Limited B 7 ffff 5 32 LA 2R 37 48 22
HomMASEEEREET TEK

(b) AFABOEXEETERER %
5 DB E I 4 B AR X HIR -

(© KRemtmHmE2EHE Mt RH
BRIRItREEHEAS% A EE
ERFAILRTERKARMN22%E

e
ZS o
o

(d) R-_ZE—XNF+ANB AEHH—
ZEE=H KBS L EEBRAR
25%HE 2 - A $£263,636,3648 A A
AT ERE R RET UARIE
TRERE-RKBEE SAEEE
RATIKAREBEER —HEEA
A RERERSEAAER - AR
E—FHBHNEBHA-T—XRFN
AZ+BERZZE—X"F+ANBZA
/ﬁtﬁo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_ZT—F+-_A=+—ALFE
20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. RS AT 2R (8E)
The summarised financial information in respect of the REFIGHERZEAENTERLENTHN
material associate of the Group and is accounted for BB ESRF| T
using equity method is set out below:
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
ZE-AEF —T-RF
+=A +=A
Beijing HX and its subsidiaries TREEREKBEAR =t+-—H =+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Current assets MENE E 300,832 303,129
Non-current assets EMEBEE 334 458
Current liabilities nBEE (123,019) (115,074)
Non-current liabilities FnBAE (11,200) (11,746)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR IR SR AE 25 (60,814) (67,209)
Net assets BEFE 106,133 109,558
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-XE —ET—hF
+=A +=A
=t+—H =+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Revenue W #5 = 24,746
(Loss) profit for the year and REE (BE) &N R
total comprehensive (expenses) AEFE2HE(FAX)
income for the year I %5 #a5E (3,425) 2,367
176 China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBEEREFRA T
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-B—<Et_A=t—BILEE
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. REE N 2R (F)

The reconciliation of the summarised financial
information presented above to the carrying amount

of the interests in associate are set out below:

31 December

EX2MBENREERBE QR Z
EAREEC HRESIT

31 December

2016 2015
—E—RF —E-RE
+=A +=A
=t+-—H =t+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Net assets of the associates REBEEBE QRN
attributable to the Group EEFE 106,133 109,558
Proportion of the Group’s 40% AEBERIEREER
ownership interest in Beijing HX HMtBARIZ
and its subsidiaries 40 % FIT 78 FERE 25 b B 42,453 43,823
Goodwill 5 855 855
Carrying amount of the Group's REBRIEREE R
interest in Beijing HX HIffB ARz #mREE
and its subsidiaries 43,308 44,678

31 December

2016

—E-XEF

+=A

Gold Wide Holdings Limited ("Gold Wide”) &3, &EEAMRAF ([£34]) Eqr=1[8
HK$'000

FHExT

Non-current assets EMBEE 109,226
Current assets MBEE 85
Current liabilities mBaE (315)
Net assets BEFE 108,996
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=t+—HLEFE
20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

20. REERTRzEDE (&)

From

6 October
2016 to

31 December
2016
B-Z—XF
+AAXBZE
S
+=A
=+—H
HK$'000
THET

Revenue

Profit for the period and total comprehensive
income for the period

7 H g ) K 7 A ) 2 A AR B
1,362

31 December

2016
—E-XRF
+=A
=t+—8
HK$'000
FERT
Net assets of the associate attributable AEBELBEARNEEFE
to the Group 108,996
Proportion of the Group's 25% ownership NEBPL S 5L 225%Fr A HERE Rt I
interest in Gold Wide 27,249
Goodwill (Note a) e (MizEa) 2,619
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in REERTLAZEREREE
Gold Wide 29,868
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20.

21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. REZ AT RS (FE)
Note: a MizE: a
The goodwill arise from the acquisition of Gold Wide are set KB SLEENEERTIOT:
out below:
HK$'000
FBx
Consideration transferred (note 36(g)) BEEAE (5E36(g)) 29,528
Less: net assets acquired W TR ER R B E (26,909)
Goodwill arising on acquisition W EERHE 2,619
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21, AHHEHERE
2016 2015
—E—RF —E-—TE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At cost: DN
Unlisted equity investments — cost ELETRARE — KA
(note a and b) (Ffeak fzEb) 41,616 500
Less: Accumulated impairment losses 8, : 25T R EE 1B (500) (500)
41,116 -
At fair value: BATE:
Listed equity investments — fair value WA RE — QA FE
(note c and d) (B sEc K BIsEd) 17,662 =
58,778 -
Notes: B EE
(a) The unlisted equity investments of approximately (a) FE 1 70 AR AN 4% & £9500,0007%8 TTHE R

HK$500,000 represent investments in unlisted equity

securities issued by a private ent

ity incorporated

in Hong Kong. They are measured at cost less

accumulated impairment losses at

the end of the

reporting period because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that its fair value
cannot be measured reliably. As at 31 December
2015, it had been fully impaired.

BREMKINLEERETNIL
MERAE R ZRE - HIRK A ER R
SR RFOREBEE WA
REBRFEMFTOEEIFER &
RARRIEBERRE R FEARER S
E-R-_F—HF+-A=+—H
HEZ2BURE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

He—%—

21.

NFETZA=+—HILFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

()

(d)

The unlisted equity investments of approximately
RMB37,000,000 (equivalent to HK$41,116,000)
represent investment in unlisted equity securities
issued by private entities incorporated in PRC. They
are measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured
reliably.

The listed equity investments listed in Hong Kong
with the fair value of approximately HK$17,662,000
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: nil), have been
pledged to a bank to secure the bank borrowing
granted to the Group. Details of bank borrowing are
set out in note 29.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group recognised a fair value gain of approximately
HK$4,662,000 (2015:nil) in the investment
revaluation reserve.
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AHHERE (F)

FfaE: (#8)

(b)

JE LTI AL E 49 AR ¥37,000,000
7t (FBE 741,116,000/ 7T ) 38 1 —
IR R B FE AR S 0L 2 B BE 31T Y
EETRAESRZIKE  HIZKAE
RS R M R ESIEE 1t
THRAEEBAFEMGINHEES
KHMARBEERBEAFERRE

EECEE

REBLETH EMBRAEE R
—RNE+_A=Z+—BAFEHAE
17,662,000 (ZE—HF  F) -
BT —RHRITIEAE FAEER
TEROEIR - RITERNFBEET
BAMIFE29 o

RZE—RFE+A=+—8LHF
B AEEREEEHEBERAT
B ZE 494,662,000 T (—ZE—H
F:F).



22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

22. EWERARKEMEKRKE

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FETT

(restated)

(&=75)

Trade receivables JiE Lk BR 3R 5,424 1,267
Deposit and other receivables B &E b YR IE

(note a, b and ¢ (MizEa bhc) 30,175 10,130

Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERB S (1,006) (3,366)

29,169 6,764

Prepayments AT RIR 1,983 539

36,576 8,570

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade
and other receivables.

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, deposit
of approximately HK$11,101,000 was paid for the
purpose of acquisition of equity interests in three
subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and the PRC,
the transaction has not yet completed at the report
date.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, include
in the deposit and other receivable is the amount
of RMB7,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,557,000) hold by a third party custodian,
which is related to the disposal of investment
property held by the Group. Details of the transaction

are disclosed in Note 26.

7R £5 [ 3 4 0 1 W B R e L b FE WO IR
FAEERAERR-

(a) REBE-_Z—XR"F+=-A=+—A81
FEZEE 411,101,000 7T T3 AU
BN = RN BB K BT A S A BT
BRARIRENS ZXH5RME
H B & R 5T R ©

(b) REE=Z—X<F+=-A=+—AH1
FE R REMERRBEREHRSE
= HEEAFERARYT,700,000
7t (#8 & M #98,557,000/8 7T ) » H &
HEREEMBREMERTR - ZR
S BEBERMI 26 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=t+—HLEFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. BWERARKRHEMERRIE (&)

Notes: (continued) sk : (8&)

(@] The credit period granted to the Group's trade () AEEETFEZREZEH BN
customers generally ranges from O days to to 90 FOHZEWOH (ZE—FHF:0BEW
days (2015: 0 days to 90 days). The ageing analysis B) JEWEES AN REBRIBIERE
of trade receivables presented based on the invoice HE (EMEBEURAERBERE)T
dates, which approximates the respective revenues SRIEEOTOT

recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period,
which is as follows:

2016 2015

—E-RF —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBxT FHIT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 3,281 1,215

31 to 90 days 31£90H 1,923 52

Over 90 days BiE90H 220 =

5,424 1,267

As at 31 December 2016, included in the Group's RZB-RE+ZA=+—8B K%

trade receivables balance were debtors with B EREREADERDAEDY

aggregate carrying amount of approximately 1,204,000/ 7T (=T — R % 152,000

HK$1,204,000 (2015: HK$52,000) which were past Bz ERE BEREESNRESH

due at the end of the reporting period for which the REH RNEERRAZERNED
Group had not provided for impairment loss. B R BR -
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(d)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

22. FBEWIRFK HMEWRE (F)

BfeE: (#8)

d CDEBERBEZEEERRERR DT

past due but not impaired is as follows: N
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
0 to 30 days 0Z£30H 1,164 52
Over 30 days iHBiE30H 40 -
1,204 52

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience and the financial standings of these
customers, the directors of the Company believe that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there have not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

The Group’s neither past due nor impaired
trade receivables mainly represent sales made to
creditworthy customers for whom there was no

recent history of default.

ERMERREZ BERRES B
REBANER RIFERRLSEIBYE
FEB BREBERREZETFZ
MBMRR - RRBERHEARZE
RBVESEELRELEREHR
R BRI B - MR ZE B 1 HORUE
EEEE-

7R 6 [ 4 760 HA e I SR 2 PR U R
REIBRMOPYL BB RCE 58
REZEPIERZHERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_ZT—R"F+A=+—HLFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22, EWERIRRHEMEWRE (&)
Notes: (continued) BsE: (&)
(e) The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts of (e) e REMBEWGIIE Y RIERHEE)

deposit and other receivables is set out below:

oI

2016 2015

ZE—XRF ZET—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&xT FHT

(restated)

(L2&E5))

At the beginning of the year F1) 3,366 800

Impairment losses recognised on IR S I H WK IB TR

deposit and other receivables RIEEBE - 3,366
Release on de-registration of — A M8 A B4R LR R S AR B

a subsidiary - (800)

Written-off during the year A F R 8 (2,360) =

At the end of the year FR 1,006 3,366

Included in the allowance for impairment of deposit
and other receivables are individually impaired
other receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$1,006,000 (2015: HK$3,366,000).
The individually impaired other receivables are
recognised based on the credit history and the
financial condition of its debtors or counterparties,
such as financial difficulties or default in payments,
and current market conditions.

The Group's deposit and other receivables that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out

HEER R A 51,006,000 T (= F
— R4 : 3,366,000 70) Z @B 2
BEEMEYRIBEE Gt RS RHAE
WORIE 2 R E R - S IREREHA
FEWHRIEERIBEB AL ZEFH
ZAEE KBRS (208 75 R 2
SATRGEXY) BRI T LARERR

RNEBEUBBER TR 2 EB I
SN E DB RS I H e W kA
E I p (N

below:
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
RMB AR 1,111 2,621
EUR BT 73 3,921
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

23. EREREFE

2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET—FHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(restated)
(&=75)
Fixed-rate loan and interest [E] & | = 7 e W B 3R M T B
receivables
— Secured —HE 42,946 28,901
— Unsecured —E IR 10,461 4,149
53,407 33,050
Less: allowance for doubtful debts T SRR AR (4,149) (4,149)
49,258 28,901
Analysed as OB
Current asset (within one year) REEE(—FNRN) 45,444 28,901
Non-current asset FERBEE 3,814 =

Notes:

(a

(@)

The secured loan and interest receivables were
neither past due nor impaired as of the end of the
reporting period.

The loan receivables are entered into with
independent third parties except for those mentioned
in note(e) and (f) below, with contractual maturity
within six months to one year (2015: three months
to one year). The Group seeks to maintain tight
control over its loan and interest receivables in order
to minimise credit risk by reviewing the borrowers’
financial positions.

The secured loan and interest receivables are secured
by the unlisted shares, properties of the borrowers
and personal guarantee.

As at 31 December 2016, the current fair value
of collateral held by the Group is approximately
HK$56,156,000 (2015: HK$39,737,000).

@  RBEHER BEAERKERENE
I FE 38 HA SRR (E -

() EURERDEBUE=FFZ (ET
SRR e) R B EE(FTI F B SN - &
WERANEAZE—F(ZE—A%F:
ZEAE—F) AKBEEBEFMNE
KA BORR - B R E IR
ERRA BRI U EER

b b =R K o

(© BHEFERER NS TIAERA
ZIE LTI R REAERER
e

(d) R-ZZB—XRE+-A=+—8 &
EEBRENEFRERATEY
456,156,000 . (Z T —AF:
39,737,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R ok MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2016
@:ﬂ:— =

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

e

23.

(e)

(9

—RNFTZA=t+—HILFE

As at 31 December 2016, included in the carrying
amount is approximately HK$2,400,000 being a
loan to the director of the Company (2015: nil). The
maximum amount outstanding for the year ended 31
December 2016 was approximately HK$2,490,000
(2015: nil). The amount is secured by the unlisted
shares in a PRC entity held by the director of the
Company, subject to a fixed interest rate of 8% per
annum and is repayable within a year from the date
of loan granted.

As at 31 December 2016, included in the carrying
amount is approximately HK$6,312,000 being a loan
to the non-controlling interests of the Group (2015:
nil). The amount is secured by personal guarantee
and subject to a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum
and is repayable within 36 months from the date of
loan granted.

The aging analysis presented based on the date
of loan granted to customers at the end of the
reporting period which is as follows:

23.

ERERRAE (&)
GERNED)
I A

NA—RBE S EHERX2,400,000
BL(ZZE—RF E)BEfAREA
BE-REE_TE—X"Ft+_A=+—
HEFE REBEZEaSENA
2,490,000 L (ZE—AF ) -
ZeHEAANRESETEEE Y
JE_E MR B IF - ZB IR Bl e F F K
8% AREBEFR T BHE—FRE

o

A

RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H0'M~
REBEFEERBERERERIEL 2L
6,312,000 TER(ZZT—HF:
B AREE ZoEREAE
RIEESR - BEFENERT%  WHER
,\T)\Tiﬂj Eﬁﬂf,,_ "f’/\f.)zl W1§5§

RERRBRBEATFREOERAH
EWZREDTWOT :

2016 2015

ZE—RF —hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FER FET

Within 1 year —F N 49,258 28,901
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Notes: (continued)

HE_ZT
23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. BEWERRFE (&)
sk : (8&)
The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate loan (h)

(h)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

receivables to interest rate risks and their contractual
maturity dates are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016
—"F+=-ZA=+—RALFE

N5 B 5E B M R P TR B ) R o
B REAKNBREIIMT

2016 2015
ZE—XF —ET-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET
(restated)
(sE5)
Fixed-rate loan receivables: TFREWE R :
Within 1 year —FR 45,444 28,901
After one year but within —FREMFA
two years 3,269 =
After two years but within WFEBEBRAFA
five years 545 =
49,258 28,901
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are equal 0) AEFERKEZ RN EHERF X

to contractual interest rates) on the Group’s loan and
interest receivables are as follows:

(HERRAHONK) Z@BEWT

2016 2015
—E-AF —E—hF
Effective interest rate: BFRAx
Fixed-rate loan and interest EEMEREREREFE
receivables 7% — 18% 8% — 18%
The Group’s loan and interest receivables that are 0 AR EB I B LAINE T
denominated in currencies other than the functional BEHAEFREKREZX R ST 0
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out T:
below:
2016 2015
—E-KRF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
(restated)
(&E5)
RMB AR 27,368 17,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=t+—HLEFE

23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. BERERKAE (H)
Notes: (continued) PisE: (&)
(k) The movement in the allowance for impairment of (k) FEWEZRMARERE Y 28R
loan and interest receivables is set out below: BT :
2016 2015
—E-KEF —ET-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FHET
(restated)
(#=E5))
At the beginning of the year F1) 4,149 -
Impairment losses recognised HEWE R KT EHER R EEE
on loan and interest receivables - 4,149
At the end of the year FR 4,149 4,149
Included in the allowance for impairment of loan FEWEH LA B EREED T AL
and interest receivables are individually impaired loan HAZEHA,149,0008 T (—E— R4 :
and interest receivables with an aggregate balance of 4,149,000/ 7T ) VA RIS B EE KR E
approximately HK$4,149,000 (2015: HK$4,149,000). FEANE -ERE B EREKET LT
The individually impaired loan and interest receivables BEREBEBASRZHFHNEAE
are recognised based on the credit history and the bR B RS HRSR ({5 20 B 7S IR B sk A R
financial condition of its debtors or counterparties, EA)) R BRI T LARER -

such as financial difficulties or default in payments,
and current market conditions.
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24.

25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

24, BRAVEFABSEZEHEE

2016 2015
—B-RF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Listed securities: LEmES:
— Equity securities listed in Hong —RBEBLTZREFES
Kong, at fair value EAY¥E 79,269 34,022

As at 31 December 2016, the listed equity
investments listed in Hong Kong with the fair value of
approximately HK$71,669,000 (2015: nil), have been
pledged to a financial institution to secure the margin
loans payable granted to the Group. Details of margin
loans payable are set out in note 33.

For the valuation method of the financial asset at
FVTPL, please refer to note 38(c).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional

R-E—RE+_A=+—8 RE
BEETHETRAKRE (AFEYD
71,669,000 T (ZE—HF Z) )2
KR —HSmEgE UWEREEER
BRRESER - EHRESERNF
B RHFE33 »

RBEBRAFEFABREZEREEDN
EETE - B2 BN E38(C) °

25. SRITEHRKRES
RITHEBFIERES B RITEBRFRF

AEBARBESBEER 2 EH A
ME¥IENRTERNESHT W

currencies of the relevant group entities are set out i
below:
2016 2015
AL —T—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
NTD ek 454 -
EUR BRIt 25 675
China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EEFR AT 189
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

He—%—

26.

NET-_AZ=Z+—HILFE

ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 3 December 2016, the Group entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of one of the investment properties
held by the Group located in the PRC with fair value
of RMB17,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,447,000) as at 31 December 2016. The sales
proceed is amounted to RMB17,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$19,447,000) while the sales
less cost of disposal is amounted to RMB17,451,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$19,393,000). As at
31 December 2016, that property was classified as
asset held for sale in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Deposit of approximately RMB8,600,000 (equivalent
to HK$9,557,000) had been received from the
buyer and included in trade and other payables as
at 31 December 2016. The remaining amount of
RMB8,900,000 (equivalent to HK$9,890,000) will be
further settled by the buyer upon the completion of
transaction.

Of the total deposit received, amount of
RMB7,700,000 (approximately HK$8,557,000) was
held by a third party custodian on behalf of the Group
so that such amount was included in deposit and
other receivables, and will be returned to the Group
after the completion of the transaction.

The transaction was completed on 14 March 2017.
Details are set out in note 50.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBEEREFRA T
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26.

PTEABELHEZEE

RZE—-RNE+_A=H KA&EHHA
—BBIUE=FIL—HEBEHE A
HEAKBAFENES —ELRF
BEORENEER_T—RF+_A
=+—BHR2FEARARE17,500,000
7T (FEE R #919,447,00058 7T) < 4 &
FT1S sk B4 A R #17,500,0007T (FHE
A #719,447,0007% 7T ) + 88 & B & K
ANBANR17,451,0007C (FBERH
19,393,000/ L) - R=_T—AF+_A
=+—H ZWEERERAEMBERREK
FOBARELREZEE-

& AR#S,600,000T (FHER
9,557,000 7T ) 2 B B HF WE R AR
—E-RE+t A=+ HHEMNER
K EL A & - 5RIE - #3258 A R 8,900,000
7T (#8E 129,890,000/8 7T) KR X 5 5%
RiEMEH#E—FXT 1T

REWEZ S @5+ - AR®7,700,000
7 (#98,557,000/8 L) MR IBARE=F
ABEARRAEEFE  HZEEFA
e kEMEUGRIET BN 5 THE
REAREHE-

ZRXPGR-_FB—LF=AtTHMOBETK-
A BE NS0



26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)
On 7 December 2015, the Group entered into and
signed a sales and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of one of the
investment properties held by the Group which was
located in the PRC with fair value of approximately
RMB9,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,408,000) as at 31 December 2015. The sales
proceed is amounted to RMB9,700,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$11,408,000) while the sales
less cost of disposal is amounted to RMB9,600,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,290,000).
Deposit of approximately RMB2,800,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,293,000) had been received and included in
trade and other payables as at 31 December 2015.
Such property was classified as asset held for sale in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The transaction was completed on 18 January 2016.

26.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_T—RFt+-_A=+—BIFE
PTEABELHEZEE (#)
R_E—RAF+_AtH AEHHE—
EBUBE=FFULREE—HEEW
FOALERAEEMFAENES —@E
MRFPBEMNEEMERER_T—AF
+TZA=+—BENRAFEHNAEARE
9,700,0007T (#8& P 4911,408,000/8
JL) ° & FT 15 3UE A A K %9,700,000
7T (FBE R #711,408,000/8 7T ) © $HE
HE KA B A RE9,600,0007T (FHE R
#711,290,000/87T) - BEUIRE AR
#2,800,0007T (18 & $43,293,000/% 7T )
Mt ARZE—RAF+A=T—HE
TR SR X B B 3R T8 - s M 3 B A iR
EMBRAXRPDERBELHECE

ARXHGN_T—R"F—-—ATN\B=

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EEFR AT

Annual Report 2016 — & — )N EE R

e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

He—%—

27.

NETZBA=+—RIEE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. ERERAKREMESRKE
2016 2015
—g-XxF —T-nF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Trade payables JE 1~ BR 3R 970 291
Other payables H fh FE < RRIB 19,575 9,686
20,545 9,977

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

TRARBEHMRREZZAHNE R
FE BRI Z AR Ee AT

2016 2015

—B-AF —ZT—4a%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

0 to 30 days 0230H 970 291

The average credit period on purchases of goods
is 14 days (2015:14 days). The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit time frame.

Included in other payables was an amount of
approximately RMB8,600,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$9,557,000), which represented the
deposit received from the buyer for the purpose of
disposal of investment properties held by the Group.
Details as disclosed in note 26.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBEEREFRA T
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27.

28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—XRF+_A=1+—HBI=FE
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 27. ENEREIZNEMESTIE (F)
The Group's trade and other payables that are REBUHABEETE 2 INeE AN
denominated in currencies other than the functional MEELENE S REMENZTIBEEY
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out J/INE
below:
2016 2015
—E—XRE —h4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
NTD e - 46
AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 28. BENFERRRERNIE
INTERESTS
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and BEAFENEERR 2B RAERERE
repayable on demand. iE o
BANK BORROWINGS 29. SRITER
2016 2015
—X"E —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Bank borrowings, secured RITIEN BEA 19,181 9,581
Carrying amount of borrowing thatis ZBRIREHRE—FAEEZ
repayable within one year from the B RARE A
end of the reporting period 10,000 -
Carrying amount of borrowing thatis HERFFEHRRE —FANEE
not repayable within one year from EHEREREEGKRZ
the end of the reporting period but B RAREE
contain a repayment on demand (BITRmRREAE)
clause (shown under current
liabilities) 9,181 9,581
Less: Amounts shown under current  J& : ZI R R EN B E A FIE
liabilities (19,181) (9,581)

Amounts shown under
non-current liabilities

SR SRR B B B RO FUR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

@:ﬂ:— =
29.

—"F+-ZA=+—RHLFE

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31 December 2016, the secured bank borrowing of
approximately HK$9,181,000 (2015: HK$9,581,000)
is secured by a mortgage over an investment property
of the Company located in Taiwan with carrying
amount of NTD79,400,000 (2015:NTD80,000,000),
equivalent to approximately HK$19,691,000
(2015:HK$19,440,000) as disclosed in note 17. The
bank borrowing carried a saving deposit rate plus a
fixed spread of 0.62% in the first year, 0.87% in the
second year and 0.97% from the third to fifteen year.

At 31 December 2016, the secured bank borrowing of
HK$10,000,000 (2015:nil) is secured by an investment
property of the Company located in Hong Kong with
fair value of approximately HK$8,750,000 as disclosed
in note 17 and the available-for-sale investment held
by the Group with fair value of approximately of
HK$17,662,000 as disclosed in note 21. The bank
borrowing carried a variable interest rate of HIBOR
plus 4% per annum and repayable within 9 months.
The plan is used for the acquisition of listed equity
classified as avalaible-for-sale investments.

Carrying amount repayable (based on scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements):

29.

RITE (&)
HOMEFI7THAEE R —RF
+TZA=+—H BEHRITERLY
9,181,000/ 7T ( —=Z— A4 : 9,581,000
BI)TIAARRB NN B ENREY
¥ MIRMEE A & %79,400,0007T
—ZT— R ¥ & %80,000,0007T ) #f
BN #19,691,0008 T (ZE—RHF:
19,440,000/ 7T ) EIR IR - IRITIE N
DHER#EEFS ﬂTle].IE EFE '
FR062% F_FR08THRE=ZE
+£¢z%o.97%

RZE—RF+ZA=+—H K
R 1718 5%10,000,0008 T (- E—H
F ) AR A 7R B AR B
BB E YR TFEA8,750,000/8 7T
KM aE2 1 T BR AN S B A A Al it
HERE N FEH17,662,00078 T HEE
Ao RITERDEBBRITAERDZF
B)FFENA% T ERANEAREE-
ZEFAERESBEITHEEREN
EFHRAES-

NEEE (ERERBEME 2
EHAH)

2016 2015
—E-RE ZT—8F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
On demand BER

Within one year —F A 10,595 400
After one year but within two years —FREMFAN 607 595
After two years but within five years BREREBERER 1,910 1,866
After five years hFi& 6,069 6,720

Amounts shown under non-current FIRRIERE B &N KIE
liabilities 19,181 9,581
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30.

31.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

LOANS FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 30. XB BFERRREREHZE
EA
During the year 31 December ended 2014, the non- REBEEZ-_Z—MmWE+_A=+—H1
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Global FE -AAREEZENBARIRRGE
Brands Management Limited (“GBM") entered into EEARAR([IRERBEEE|)EE
a shareholder’s agreement with its shareholders, in BEEEEI — B E RS HPEREEN
which the loan amount of HK$735,000 was borne 735,000 T HIR R S hR B TR A9 FEIE AR
by the non-controlling shareholder of GBM. Such REAE - ZEERAEERTF 2B R
loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on AR T RNFt_AZt+t_H{EE-
22 December 2016. As a part of the agreement, ERBWZE D  REBE T FAIBEL
the Group granted a loan to the non-controlling LSRR EE L —E &5
shareholder of GBM for the purpose of such MIER IR RIS TR A FEIEAR PR 3R (2
transaction, with the same term as the loan advance FIRKBIEE BN RIERERB LD
to GBM by the non-controlling shareholder of GBM. RZE—RF+-_A=+—"BHE&HGEH
The amount was classified as current assets and B REESBATHEERABE B
liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial REBEE - S—XRE+_A=+—HIF
position as at 31 December 2015 which was fully set EE 285
off during the year ended 31 December 2016.
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE 31. BMBEATIELES
During the year ended 31 December 2016, Union REZzZ-_FT—XRE+_A=+—81
World International Group Holdings Limited, an FE -ANAIEEL2ENB RN TEMNE
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, BRIEEAEREATRAIEREZEERHE AR
granted a loan of RMB2,400,000 (equivalent #<2 400,0007T (S 7R 492,667,000/
to approximately HK$2,667,000) to Beijing HX. TIZEFR R-_E—RE+_A=+—
The accrued interest of the loan is approximately B 2SS ERT 24 /5106,0005
HK$106,000 and included in the balance as at 31 TN EEt AL XS RE VR iR
December 2016. The amount was unsecured, fixed BEEFERI2%ETBEB HBEIRERKEE
interest bearing at a fixed rate of 12% per annum and
repayable on demand.
The Group’s loan to associate that is denominated DA EE TR I S E Y NS
in currency other than the functional currency of the BBt ArRER 2EREYWT
relevant group entities is set out below:
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET-RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
RMB AR 2,773 =
LOAN PAYABLE 32. ERE

During the year, the Company obtained a loan in
the amount of HK$20,000,000 from an independent
third-party. The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at
a fixed rate of 15% per annum and repayable within
two weeks from the date of loan granted. The amount
had been fully settled subsequent to the year ended
31 December 2016.

RER RXARBABIYIE=ZHER
20,000,000 TH E K - ZE R A EIR
IR ETEERNRI5%T BN BRKRH
ERXRMERRNEE Z2EERE
EZE-—ARE+-A=+—BIFEkE
BEHBES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

He—%—

33.

34.

NFETZA=+—HIFE

MARGIN LOANS PAYABLE

As at 31 December 2016, the margin loans payable
was secured by the listed equity securities placed in a
financial institution held by the Group as disclosed in
note 24 under the margin accounts, with fair value of
approximately HK$71,669,000.

The margin loans payable is repayable on demand if it
is subjected to margin call from the financial institution
and carried a variable interest rate at P+5% per
annum.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs")

(a)

Convertible bonds |

On 30 April 2013, the Company issued
convertible bonds (the “CB-1") in a principal
amount of HK$34,500,000 with interest
bearing at 5% per annum to Top Status. The
CB-l will mature on 31 December 2016 (the
“Maturity Date”). The CB-l entitled the holder
to convert the CB-lin full or in part (in multiples
of HK$500,000) into the ordinary shares of the
Company at any time on or after the date of
issue of the CB-I up to fifth business day prior
to the Maturity Date at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.01 per share, subject to
adjustment provisions which are standard terms
for convertible securities of similar type. If the
CB-I had not been converted by bondholder, it
would be converted on Maturity Date by the
Company.

On January 2014, Top Status transferred the
2013 CBs to Sino Coronet Limited, which is a
connected party of Top Status.

Transaction costs directly attributable to
issue of the CB-l amounted to approximately
HK$585,000 are allocated to liability and equity
components on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34, CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs"”) (continued)

(a)

Convertible bonds I (continued)

The CB-l contained the following components
that are required to be separately accounted
for:

(i) Liability component for the CB-I
represents the present value of the
contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the
rate of interest at the date of issue
with reference to the market rate for
instruments of comparable credit status
taking into account the credit risk of the
Company as well as the amount of the
CB-I without conversion option, plus
allocated transaction costs. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is
19.49%.

(ii) Equity component represents the
difference between the gross proceeds
of the issue of the CB-l and the
fair values assigned to the liability
components less allocated transaction
costs.

On 11 October 2013, as a result of the
Company'’s share consolidation, the conversion
price of the 2013 CBs was adjusted to HK$0.02
per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
500,000,000 (2015: 1,225,000,000) ordinary
shares of the Company were converted as a
result of the conversion of CB-I (Note 36(h)).
During the year ended 31 December 2016,
all remaining CB-lI had been converted, the
CB-I with principal amount of nil (2015:
HK$10,000,000) are remain outstanding.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued)

(b)

Convertible bonds Il

On 13 December 2013, Skyline Top Limited
(“Skyline Top”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and Mr. So Pan entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which (i) Mr. So Pan has agreed to sell to
Skyline Top, and Skyline Top has agreed to
purchase from Mr. So Pan the sale shares of
Konson Global Investments Limited (“Konson”);
and (ii) Mr. So Pan has agreed to assign to
Skyline Top, and Skyline Top has agreed to
accept the assignment of, the sale loan at an
aggregate consideration of HK$40,000,000, of
which: (i) HK$20,000,000 shall be satisfied by
Skyline Top by cheque or cashier order upon
the completion; and (ii) HK$20,000,000 shall
be satisfied by the Skyline Top’s procuring of
the issue of the convertible bonds (“CB-II")
at the conversion price of HK$0.17 (note) per
conversion share by the Company to Mr. So Pan
upon completion.

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching
to the CB-ll, 117,647,058 new shares of the
Company shall be issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the
issue of CB-Il as a consideration took place on
31 March 2014.

Transaction costs directly attributable to issue
of the CB-ll amounted to approximately
HK$352,000 is allocated to liability and equity
components on initial recognition.

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated
19 February 2014 (the “Circular”), the principal
terms of the CB-Il are as follows:
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_T—AE+-_A=1+—HLEFE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs”) (continued) 3. ERRESR ([TBRRKRES])
(%)
(b) Convertible bonds Il (continued) (b) TBBRESE = (8)
Principal amount of the CB-II: HK$20 million

ABBRESF 2 AT

Authorised denomination:
JETEERE :

Conversion price:
HR(E

Interest:

B

Maturity date:
FHE -

Conversion and transferability:

208857

HK$100,000 each and integral multiples thereof
5 17100,00078 7T & HL B H

HK$0.17
0.17%87T

3% per annum
FF3%

31 December 2017
—E—+H#+=-A=+—H

Without prejudice to any condition under the bond instrument,
there shall not be any transfer, conversion or redemption of any
principal amount of the CB-Il during the Restricted Period (as
defined in the Circular), and further, the bondholder shall not,
and shall not seek to, transfer, convert or redeem any principal
amount of the CB-Il during the Restricted Period.

B AT EE M ERZEEFXBEMEE2BERT  TAIRZRGEE (F&
RZBl) T RER — RSB EAEE ERoE
B BE EFFAEANARAASKNER G HREE #Eik
HELARRES 2 A AREEE-

Note: i

As a result of the placing of 629,000,000 shares B A A #8629,000,0008% i 10 < BL &

completed on 2 July 2015, the conversion price of R-EB—RE+H -H=/ AR

the CB-Il was adjusted from HK$0.188 to HK$0.17 A (& % > # B8 (8 B B H%0.1885% 7T 3

per share. BE0178 T

Conversion i

No conversion of the CB-Il or of the Valid
Principal Amount (as defined in the Circular),
whichever shall be appropriate, shall take place
prior to the expiration of the Restricted Period
or prior to the happening of the Specific Event
(as defined in the Circular) (as the Company
may determine in its sole and absolute
discretion).

'l",.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued)

(b)

Convertible bonds Il (continued)
Conversion (continued)

Prior to the expiration of the Restricted Period
or prior to the happening of the Specific
Event (as the Company may determine in its
sole and absolute discretion), the Company
shall not, and shall not have to, recognise,
accept, agree or register any conversion of
any principal amount of the CB-Il. In any
event, the Company shall not, and shall not
have recognise, accept, agree or register any
conversion of any Cancelled Principal Amount
(as defined in the Circular), and the bondholder
shall not have any recourse whatsoever against
the Company. The Company shall, and shall
only have recognise, accept, agree or register
any conversion of any Valid Principal Amount,
and the Company shall have sole and absolute
discretion in determining any or all issues on,
over or concerning conversion of the CB-Il.

Subject to conditions under the bond
instrument, during the conversion period,
bondholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part (in multiples of HK$100,000)
of the Valid Principal amount, whichever shall
be appropriate, into such number of conversion
shares as will be determined by dividing the
principal amount of the CB-Il to be converted
by the conversion price (subject to adjustment)
in effect on the date of conversion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34, CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs"”) (continued)

(b)

Convertible bonds Il (continued)
Redemption

Redemption at maturity shall only be limited
and applicable to the Valid Principal Amount.
The Cancelled Principal Amount cannot, and
shall not, be redeemed whatsoever. Subject
to this as well as other conditions in the
bond instrument, the Valid Principal Amount
which has not been redeemed or converted
in accordance with the conditions under the
bond instrument by the maturity date, shall,
at the sole and absolute discretion of the
Company (and regardless of whether or not
the bondholder concerned have requested
for conversion of any principal amount of the
CB-Il into conversion shares) but subject to
shareholders’ approval (if required) as well as
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and/
or requirements of regulatory authorities,
either be redeemed by the Company on the
maturity date at a redemption amount equal to
100% of Valid Principal Amount or such part
thereof which is outstanding at that juncture,
or be converted into conversion shares. For
any avoidance of doubt, the Company shall
not, and shall not be required to, redeem
the Cancelled Principal Amount (as defined
above) or any part thereof, and the bondholder
shall not have any recourse or right of action
whatsoever against the Company.

Further details of the issue of CB-Il as a
consideration of an acquisition are set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 13
December 2013, 7 March 2014 and 31 March
2014 and the circular of the Company dated 19
February 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE-T

34.

(b)

—RNETZA=T—BIEFE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued)

Convertible bonds Il (continued)
Redemption (continued)

The CB-Il contains the following components
that are required to be separately accounted

for:

(i)

(ii)

Liability component for the CB-Il
represents the present value of the
contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the
rate of interest at the date of issue
with reference to the market rate for
instruments of comparable credit status
taking into account the credit risk of the
Company as well as the amount of the
CB-Il without conversion option, plus
allocated transaction costs. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is
17.37%.

Equity component represents the
difference between the fair value of the
issue of the CB-ll and the fair values
assigned to the liability components less
allocated transaction costs.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
liability and equity component of CB-Il were
cancelled by approximately HK$7,854,000
and HK$3,477,000 respectively in relation
to the failure of Fuyu operation to meet the
accumulated profit requirement as stated in
profit guarantee. Further details are disclosed in
note (e).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34, CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs"”) (continued)

(9]

Convertible bonds Ill and Convertible
bonds IV

On 29 May 2015, Delightful Hope Limited
("Delightful Hope"”), a subsidiary of the
Company, Yardley Wealth Management Limited
("Yardley”), the non-controlling shareholder of
Delightful Hope, and Rich Best Asia Limited,
an entity owned by the shareholder of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which Rich Best Asia
Limited (“Rich Best Asia”) has agreed to sell
and Delightful Hope has agreed to purchase
1 ordinary share in China Smart Asia Limited,
which representing 100% equity interest, at a
consideration of HK$93,000,000, which shall
be settled and discharged by Delightful Hope in
accordance with the time, mode and manner
set out under the sale and purchase agreement.

The aggregated consideration of
HK$93,000,000, of which (i) HK$46,500,000
shall be satisfied by Delightful Hope and
Yardley by cash or cashier order upon the
completion of acquisition; and (ii) the remaining
balance of the consideration in the sum of
HK$46,500,000 shall be settled and discharged
by the issuance of the Company’s convertible
bonds to the Chinese Strategic Holdings
Limited, the ultimate holding company of Rich
Best Asia, and as follows, (i) the Convertible
bonds A (“CB-IlI") in the principal amount
of HK$23,000,000; and (ii) the Convertible
bonds B (“CB-IV”) in the principal amount
of HK$23,500,000 upon the completion of
acquisition.

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching
to the CB-Ill and CB-IV, 92,000,000 and
94,000,000 new shares shall be issued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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34.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued)

(9]

Convertible bonds Ill and Convertible
bonds IV (continued)

The completion of the acquisition involving the
issue of CB-lll and CB-IV as a consideration took
place on 20 August 2015. Details of acquisition
were disclosed in note 43(a)(ii).

Transaction costs directly attributable to
issue of the CB-Ill and CB-IV amounted to
approximately HK$702,000 are allocated
to liability and equity components on initial
recognition.

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 27
July 2015 (the “Circular-11"), the principal terms
of the CB-lll and CB-IV are as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_Z—XFt+-_A=1+—BILFE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs”) (continued) 3, TRESF([ATHERES])
(#&)
(c)  Convertible bonds Il and Convertible (0 TEREF=ZRAUERESD
bonds IV (continued) (#&)
CB-lll CB-IV
AMRRES= ARRESHFM

Transferability:

A

Subject to compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and regulatory
requirements, the convertible bonds may be transferred to any
person provided that where the convertible bonds is intended
to be transferred to a connected person (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) (other than the associates of the holders
of the convertible bonds), such transfer shall comply with the
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules and/or requirements
imposed by the Stock Exchange, if any. Any transfer of the
convertible bonds shall be in respect of the whole or any part (in
multiples of HK$500,000) of the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible bonds.
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Conversion

Each holder of the CB-lll and CB-IV shall have
the right, exercisable during the Conversion
Period (as defined in the Circular-Il) to
convert the whole or any part (in multiples
of HK$500,000) of the outstanding principal
amount of the CB-lll and CB-IV held by such
holder of CB-lll and CB-IV into such number
of conversion shares as will be determined by
dividing the principal amount of the CB-IIl and
CB-IV to be converted by the conversion price
in effect on the date of conversion. No fraction
of a Share shall be issued on conversion of the
CB-Ill and CB-IV. The Company shall pay a cash
amount in HK$ equal to such amount of CB-llI
and CB-IV that are not converted.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued)

(9]

Convertible bonds Ill and Convertible
bonds IV (continued)

Redemption

All CB-lll and CB-IV which have not been
redeemed or converted in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the CB-Ill and CB-
IV instruments by their maturity dates shall be
redeemed by the Company on their maturity
dates at a redemption amount equal to 100%
of the principal amount of such CB-lll and CB-
V.

The CB-lll & CB-IV contains the following
components that are required to be separately
accounted for:

(i) Liability component for the CB-Ill & CB-
IV represented the present value of
the contractually determined stream
of future cash flows discounted at the
rate of interest at the date of issue
with reference to the market rate for
instruments of comparable credit status
taking into account the credit risk of
the Company as well as the amount of
the CB-lll & CB-IV without conversion
option, plus allocated transaction costs.
The effective interest rate of the liability
component for CB-lll and CB-IV is
8.82% and 9.27%, respectively.

(ii) Equity component represents the
difference between the fair values of
the CB-lll & CB-IV and the fair values
assigned to the liability components
less allocated transaction costs. The
fair values of the entire CB-lll & CB-IV
is HK$23,000,000 and HK$23,500,000
respectively, were valued by Asset
Appraisal.
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RRAFZEERR AR
ERRENTTBRRES =
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MEEBDEBRRSEA A
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WEEHD 2ERNES
Rl 58.82% M9.27% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE T ARFE+_A=1+—HIFE
34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued) 34. AR ES ([BKRES])
(#&)
(d) The movements of the CBs are set out d TEREFZSBEINOT:
below:
Liability Equity
component  component Total
EERS B @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET
At 1 January 2015 NZE—FHF—H—H 16,970 37,322 54,292
Interest paid BRFIE (2,391) = (2,391)
Conversion of CB-I RBABRES — (1,524) (21,056) (22,580)
Issue of CB-Ill and CB-IV BITABRER =R
Al AR & 5 37,146 8,652 45,798
Effective interest expense ERF B H (HES)
(Note 8) 3,947 - 3,947
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—HF
+-A=+—H 54,148 24,918 79,066
Interest paid BARFLE (1.416) - (1,416)
Conversion of CB-| RBMABRES — (20) (8,594) (8,614)
Effective interest expense ERMEX
(Note 8) (FftE8) 6,479 - 6,479
Cancellation of CB-Il (Note (¢)) ~ #EsHAIHRALfEH —
(HizE(e)) (7,854) (3,477) (11,331)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R
—_R= 51,337 12,847 64,184
2016 2015
—ANEF —hF
HK$000 HK$'000
Liability component BERS THET FHET
Classification of convertible AMRES 2 D8
bonds:
Current Bl EA 31,551 751
Non-current JERNHR 19,786 53,397
51,337 54,148
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

He—%—

34.

NFETZA=+—HIFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued)

(e)

As part of the acquisition condition of Konson
during the year ended 31 December 2014, the
vendor, Mr. So Pan granted a profit guarantee
("Profit Guarantee”) to the Group in respect
of the financial performance of the underlying
business operation in the of the associate in
the PRC ("Fuyu operation”). As stipulated
in the agreement with Mr. So, if Fuyu fails
to meet the accumulated profit before tax
amount of HK$80,000,000 from 31 March
2014 to 31 December 2016, the principal
amount of convertible bonds issued by the
Company would be reduced proportionately
in accordance with the agreement. As at
31 December 2016, the accumulated profit
before tax of the Fuyu operation from 31
March 2014 to 31
approximately RMB39,364,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$43,744,000), accordingly,
convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 issued by the Company were
reduced proportionately. The corresponding
carrying amount of liability component of
convertible bonds would be cancelled by
approximately HK$7,854,000, upon the
cancellation of convertible bonds liability
component, the corresponding carrying
amount of equity component of convertible
bonds would be cancelled by approximately
HK$3,477,000.

December 2016 was
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34.

R ES ([RRES])

(%)

(e) HEAR-ZE—MNFE+_-_A=+—
B FEWERE/I G55

4 AN N\

BT EE SRR P B AV E

AIEAREBREENMBERE ([
REE])RAAEEE D RFR
B (DEAMRE]) o 30 B &R ot
ERTM MY - ik R A
—T--ME=ZA=+—HE_-ZT
—ANF+ZA=+—HHRKREE
# B BR i 51 R 51 )% 180,000,000
BT AR AR BT AR E
FHARE G RIE R IE L AR
LoRZEBE-—RNF+ZA=1+—
H-B=-ZE—WNF=A=+—H
EE-RE+-A=1+—HH
- ERREEN R B AR AL
A AR #39,364,0007T (HE R
43,744,000/7T) - AR AT
N4> %8 /20,000,00078 7T #9 7] #2
REH SR LB D - AT E
HFRER D 2 EEREERTHE
#97,854,000/8 7T ' AT AR (EH A
B D FIHTAKE AT RRES
ez 5 M MR R AR (B A R S5 4V

3,477,000/ 7T ©



35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAXATION
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-—B—~E+_A=t—BILEE
5 B IR
AT RAREPE BERETHE TR
EHARLENIBEABEREHEED:

and prior reporting periods:

Fair value
Accelerated changes of
tax investment
depreciation properties Total
REMEMN
MERERE ATEEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TR
At 1 January 2015 R-E—AF—f—H - - -
Arising from acquisition of an BRENBEARES
subsidiary (Note 43(a)iii) (B E43(a)ii) ) 1,059 19,957 21,016
(Credited) charged to consolidated FEGABaREMZENER
statement of profit or loss and (H%)EZH
other comprehensive income
for the year (22) 2,885 2,863
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE-RF+T-A=+—-HK
1 January 2016 —E-R"F-H—H 1,037 22,842 23,879
(Credited) charged to consolidated FEGABZREMZANER
statement of profit or loss and (%)%
other comprehensive income for
the year (265) (206) (471)
Exchange differences arising BEBEANELES
from the balances - (1,631) (1,631)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RE+ZA=1+—H 772 21,005 21,777

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$153,861,000
(2015: HK$125,461,000) available for offsetting
against future profits. No deferred tax has been
recognised in respect of such losses (2015: nil) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$2,591,000 (2015: HK$664,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

'\":.

RBEBRR AEEHEATRAER
HAR BN W RSB HIBEIS
#9153,861,0008 L (=& — A F -
125,461,000/ 7T ) © 3 74 7K B2 FRRI R 2R
AR M REEHIBE R EEE
TE-RF ) TURR - BETE
PR B b 45 68 o

RB|ERR AEE AR RE
B4 52,591,0008 L (ZE—HF:

664,000/ 7T ) ° B3 R A F] BE B FE SR A
s 7 AT B AR B AT HUR T R KR SN iR
WEMAIIIRE R ERERELEHIEE
Eo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_T—

NE+-A=1+—HBIFE
36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. IR
Nominal
value Number
per share of shares Amount
SREE RO#E £
HK$ HK$'000
BT THL
Authorised ordinary shares: ETEEBR
At 1 January 2015 and R-_Z-h%—A—Hk
31 December 2015 and at “T-AF+=f
31 December 2016 =+-BRZZE—~F
+-A=+-—H 0.02 9,130,434,785 182,609
Issued and fully paid BETREHREBRK:
ordinary shares:
At 1 January 2015 RZZ—A%F—F—H 002  2,558,865,060 51,177
Issue of shares upon acquisition of ~ WE—BIREYEE
an investment property (Note a) Bkt (Hista) 0.02 62,800,000 1,256
Placing of new shares (Note b) Ao & 278k (P EEh) 0.02 629,000,000 12,580
Issue of shares in consideration for ~ E{TRR D 1E AU —
the acquisition of a subsidiary MEARZRE (FaEc)
(Note ¢) 0.02 53,040,000 1,061
Issue of shares upon conversion of ARk B K
convertible bonds (Note d) & 7RG (Fd) 002 1,225,000,000 24,500
At 31 December 2015 and RZE—RF+=A8
1 January 2016 =+—-BR-E—XF
—H—H 0.02 4,528,705,060 90,574
Placing of new shares (Note e) B &R (Fiste) 0.02 420,000,000 8,400
Issue of shares (Note f) BT (KT3ED) 0.02 288,000,000 5,760
Issue of shares in consideration for ~ Z1TR {3 {E A4 EE — I
the acquisition of an associate BenERE (Kig)
(Note g) 0.02 263,636,364 5,273
Issue of shares upon conversion of ~ AIHAIX EHE K #H
convertible bonds (Note h) & TR (MsEh) 0.02 500,000,000 10,000
At 31 December 2016 “E-R"FtZHA=1—H 6,000,341,424 120,007
Authorised convertible preference FEARRELR:
shares:
At 1 January 2015, RZZE-AF—A—AK
31 December 2015 and —E-R%+ZA
31 December 2016 Zt—BRZIZ—RE
+-A=+—8H 0.1 173,913,043 17,391
Issued and fully paid convertible BETREAMTMRRELR:
preference shares:
At 1 January 2015, RZZE-AF—A—-AR
31 December 2015 and ek
31 December 2016 =+—-RARZE—RF
G e et 0.1 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 12 January 2015, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party for the purchase of
an investment property located in the PRC at
consideration of RMB10,322,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$12,902,000 and was settled
by allotment and issuance of 62,800,000 ordinary
shares HK$0.02 each of the Company at a market
price of HK$0.222 per share. Details of the
acquisition are set in note 17(a).

On 15 June 2015, the Company and Sun
International Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
entered into the placing agreement, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to
place, through the Placing Agent on a best effort
basis a maximum of 629,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company at a placing price of HK$0.2 per
placing share (the “2015 Placing”).

The gross proceeds from the 2015 Placing were
HK$125,800,000. The net proceeds after deducting
the placing commission and other related expenses
were approximately HK$124,542,000. The relevant
resolution was passed at the Company’s special

general meeting on 15 June 2015. The completion
of the 2015 Placing took place on 2 July 2015.
Further details of the 2015 Placing are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 15 June 2015 and
2 July 2015.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F—AF+-A=+—AILFE
36. WA (&)

pE

@ RIF-AF-At=R ARFHKH

BARE—ZBYE=HFVEE
HE REAEBE —HARPEHE
BEYE - REHNARAR10,322,000
7T (& 7 4912,902,0008 7T) » I
AR T B T R%0.22278 T Bl 3% L 31T
62,800,000/ A& A 7] & AR M {H /30.02
ETTH T AR AEEN - BRI S
THRFFIBERKIFE17()

) RKRZZE—AFA+HBE ETAF
HABGEEIEFERAR ([EER
BN EERR BHARRESR
I REEBHRREEREREZK
BHEEEESRESRN0.2ET
Pid 5 £ %629,000,000/% 74~ A 7] % i
BT ZB-—HFRERE]) -

TR -hEREFENMEHIRAE
£125,800,0007% 7T 4 #1 B Bid & 18
e REMBERIE  SKIEFE
#/124,542,0008 Lo AR E R
RZZE—RAFANATHABNARARR
HERAE ERB —T—AFK
EEEA _E—AFtAZHEK-
ER—T—AFEREFENFEIR
AATRSA-_ZE—AFEA+EA
EZF—RAFEtHAZHBZRfH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE
36.

— =
—=

NFETZA=+—HIFE

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

()

(e)

On 28 October 2015, Fantastic Alliance Investments
Limited (“Fantastic Alliance”), a subsidiary of the
Company, the Company and Hexin Limited (“Hexin")
entered into a sale and purchase agreement
pursuant to which Hexin has agreed to sell and
Fantastic Alliance has agreed to purchase 35,000
ordinary share in YIHE, representing 70% of the
entire issued share capital, at a consideration in
the sum of up to HK$68,544,000, which shall be
settled and discharged by allotment and issuance of
consideration shares at the price of HK$0.168 per
consideration share (i.e. 408,000,000 ordinary shares
to be issued upon the condition as stated in the sale
and purchase agreement have been satisfied).

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
53,040,000 shares of the Company with par value
of HK$0.02 each were issued at a market price of
HK$0.156 per share. Details of acquisition were
disclosed in note 43(a)iii).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, CB-I with
principal amount of HK$24,500,000 was converted
into 1,225,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at par at the conversion price of HK$0.02 per
ordinary share.

On 25 April 2016, the Company and Sun
International Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
entered into the placing agreement, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to
place, through the Placing Agent on a best effort
basis a maximum of 420,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company at a placing price of HK$0.1 per
placing share (the “2016 Placing”).

The gross proceeds from the 2016 Placing were
HK$42,000,000. The net proceeds after deducting
the placing commission and other related expenses
were approximately HK$41,582,000. The relevant
resolution was passed at the Company’s special
general meeting on 25 April 2016. The completion
of the 2016 Placing took place on 3 May 2016.
Further details of the 2016 Placing are set out in the
Company'’s announcements dated 25 April 2016 and
3 May 2016.
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36.

R (&)

BfaE: (#8)

(©

R—ZZEE-—FHEF+ A=+ AN
H - ARXAMWBEBAAFFantastic
Alliance Investments Limited
([FantasticAlliance ] ) * A2 A &
ER(BBE)BRLE ([EKI)ET
VEERHE B AMERED
£ MFantastic AllianceB RIEBE
35000k Ea ) EiEAkR (A2 HE
BITRAZ70%) REGHEESR
68,544,000 7T - i AR T R E
& 170.1687%8 JT B 3 & TR ERMD
(AR EEHEEIGHEENET
LAE£17408,000,0000% ¥ A% ) Mg E
KR bR o

BE_ZT-—AF+_A=1+—RHItHF
JE 53,040,000 & A &) & IR A &
0.0278 T 2 B 5 B 1= & AR0.15678 7T
ZTH{EEIT - BHRRESENFER
BT 5E43(a) i) °

REBEE-_ZE—AF+-_A=+—
BIEFE A#@RES T8
24,500,000/ T B IR HE B L # iR
ESRETBR0.02B LER A
1,225,000,000% A5 A &) I 3@ A% o

R-ZZE—XREFENA-+HB  ARQA
HBAGREBIESBRAA ([RER
BRIV EERE BUEARARES
EHREEBERREREREAX
BHIREEEBFRESRH0.1ET
fit £ 5 %420,000,0000% 7 2 7 & 5@
(22— ARFRESHE]) -

CE - AFREEEMNMSRIEETE
742,000,000/ 7T - KR ELE A<
MEAABERAS % TS RUBFEL
541,582,000 L - iR B RN =
T—AFOA-+RHNEARARER
BRIAKE LEBB  —T— A~ FiRE
FER T RNFRAZAXEK A
M- RNEFREZENFEHNA
AIEHA-T—XR"FNA=-+HA

/B\
RZB-—RERLA=ZRAZAf-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

()

(h)

(i)

On 19 July 2016, arrangements were made
for a private placement to independent private
investors, Mr. Sun Hui (the “Subscriber”). Pursuant
to the subscription agreement, the Subscriber
had conditionally agreed to subscribe for
288,000,000 subscription shares at a consideration
of HK$43,200,000 in the Company at a price of
HK$0.15 per share. The proceeds will utilise for
investment purposes or working capital for operation
of the Company. These new shares were issued
under the general mandate granted to the directors
at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 4 May 2016 and rank pari passu with other shares
in issue in all respects.

On 20 September 2016, Allied Realty Limited (“Allied
Realty”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and an independent third party Mr. Huang Zekai
("Mr. Huang”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which (i) Mr. Huang has
agreed to sell to Allied Realty 40,000 ordinary shares
of Gold Wide Holdings Limited (“Gold Wide"),
representing 25% of the entire issued share capital
in Gold Wide, and (ii) Sale loan of net amount of
HK$114,634 at the consideration of HK$29,527,274,
to be settled by the issuance of 263,636,364 shares
by the Company to Mr. Huang at closing price at
the completion date of HK$0.112 per share together
with HK$1 in cash. The transaction was completed
on 6 October 2016. Further details of the acquisition
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
20 September 2016 and 6 October 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, CB-I with
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 was converted
into 500,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
par at the conversion price of HK$0.02 per ordinary
share.

All new shares rank pari passu with other shares in
issue in all respects.

RE MR M
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-F—AF+-A=+—AILFE

36. R (&)

BfaE: (#8)

) RZZE—XELtA+NAB BLHA
ANBERETFTBILAKREERELE
(TRIEBH]) - RIBERERZ RES
B A 5+ 7 Z 72 #5288,000,0000% 52
8% 15 - £ {8 543,200,000 7T &
f&0.157 7T - FT13 5K I8 A 1EIR & A
BREADNG —REBES - ZEFTR
PRARRR T —"FERAMBE
THREAT KSR MR T LA
IRTES MRATEHFEHHEEA
& =B RFHAL

(9 RZZE—A"FHLA=-1+H &x27a
& & M B A & Allied Realty Limited
([Allied Realty ]) 1B FE = &2
AEE([EREILEEHH
Bt ()ESEEBREMAllied Realty
HESLEBAERAA ([#34])
40,000/ LB (E©5A 2 FE 2%
TTIRA Z225%  R(iHE B F &
114,634 7T - (X8 /829,527,274
JC (E R ARRA R IA TR B Hd ™
EEAR0.11287317263,636,364%
BHFELAEERRESVETEE) °
ZRHGERZE—AF+ARERE
B o WHE 8O3 — 2P R B RS RARA &)
BRAZT—"FNLAZTHEZ=ZE
—~E+AXNEBNAH-

(h) REBEE-_ZE—XR"F+_A=+—
BIEFE A#RES T8
10,000,000/ 7T B % M 1B U 2 i
BEBERLTAERO B TER A
500,000,000/% 28~ 7] & 3@ % o

(i) FrEFT IR AT A T E S S E A 2 3
TN ZARF AL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

He—%—

37.

NEFE+-A=+—BLLFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debts, which includes loan from non-controlling
interests and the liability component of convertible
bonds as disclosed in notes 30 and 34 respectively,
bank borrowings, loan payable and margin
loans payable as disclosed in note 29, 32 and 33
respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.
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REBEAREDHBHERFE (B
FE R B FEEAR AR SR M 2 ) B R R AT AR
BEHEHNBEID (5 RIRHFE30&34%
B)RIBTER BENERRENRES
ER (D BIRAKEE29 ~ 32 %33 FE) ) »
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-_Z—RE+_-_A=+—HILEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. ¢@MITA
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) =@MITEZEHR
2016 2015
—EBE—XRXE —ZT—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B EWFIE
(including cash and cash (BREAeER2EE)
equivalents) 88,049 73,542
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABGZEMEE
— held-for-trading -BHEEE 79,269 34,022
Available-for-sale investments  A] i H E1&E& 58,778 =
Financial liabilities =R
Financial liabilities at FVTPL EATEFABRRNERAE
— contingent consideration - ARE
payable 2,976 13,165
Other financial liabilities EmemaE
(at amortised cost) (IR SEA AT E) 121,269 76,453
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

He—%—

38.

NFETZA=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include available-for-sale investments, loan to
non-controlling interests, loan to associate,
trade and other receivables, loan and interest
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling interests, bank
borrowing, loan from non-controlling interests,
loan payable, margin loans payable, convertible
bonds and contingent consideration payable.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The directors of the Company
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group has certain subsidiaries
operate in the PRC and Taiwan, and the
functional currency of these subsidiaries
established in the PRC and Taiwan are
RMB and NTD respectively. The RMB
is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to
conduct foreign exchange business.

The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

()

(b)

Currency risk (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets, including bank balances, loan
and interest receivables, loan to an
associate and other receivables, and
monetary liabilities including trade

HEz—-F
(b) =rEKREEEEREE

TEEE (&)
()  EEEE (&)

—RNEF+ZA=+—BIEFE
38. £®WMIR(H)

7N SR B LA SNEE 2 B AL Y
ERMEE (BRRITE
B ERUE R RS - m
LRAELER R EME

WkR) kEB TR E

(8

R B BR BRI L A B A 3R

and other payables at the end of the H)RBERRZEREB
reporting period are as follows: m
Assets Liabilities
EE af
2016 2015 2016 2015
Z¥-AF  —T-nF ZR-AE  _T-I1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR ThER THER TEL
RMB AR 31,106 19,860 - -
NTD mak 454 - - 46
EUR BT 98 4,59 - -
The Group is mainly exposed to RMB, AEBFXEHERARE:
NTD and EUR. MaB kBT RER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE-T

38.

(b)

—RETZA=T—BIEFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

38. E®MIEA(HE)

Financial risk management objectives and (b) LREREEBEERBE (&)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) mGE b (&)
(i) Currency risk (continued) )  EEmEE(E)
The following table details the Group's TRHFIREBEHETL
sensitivity to a 5% (2015: 5%) change in 16 78 SN 1Y [ = F{BE5 %
Hong Kong dollars against the respective ZE-RF:5% )M
foreign currencies. 5% (2015:5%) is B -Z5% (ZE— 41
the sensitivity rate used when reporting F:5%)EEBIRMEER
foreign currency risk internally to key HwEZEE ABERID
management personnel and represents HE 2\ Bex B P {2 R RO LE 3 -
management’s assessment of the iﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁhﬁglﬁzﬂz
reasonably possible change in foreign REHIRABEHHT
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis 43 BREITEBIEA
includes only outstanding foreign SNESFEZRAXINE
currency denominated monetary items, BIH B WA R HR
and adjusts their translation at the end LA SN [ R B 8059% (=
of the reporting period for a 5% (2015: T—REFE:5%)EEHH
5%) change in foreign currency rates. B X EHETRME
A positive number below indicates a THABBINERER T
decrease in post-tax loss where Hong BEBAGR D BT
Kong dollars weaken against the RIS R HEEXAES%
respective foreign currencies. For a 5% ZE—AF:5%)  Alg
(2015: 5%) strengthening of Hong Kong HBRMEBEEBEXKRZE R
dollars against the relevant currency, MR E T 5 &R
there would be an equal and opposite HEaH-
impact on the post-tax loss and the
balances below would be negative.
RMB impact NTD impact EUR impact
ARBE fakye Brg¥g
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Z8-AE -“E-hfF ZB-AF -—T-nF ZB-AE -—T-1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TEL TET FAL TER FAL
Decrease in post-tax loss  BREU& B BR D 1,299 829 19 @) 4 192
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

(i1)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate loan and interest receivables, loan
to an associate, loan payable and the
liability component of convertible bonds,
as set out in Notes 23, 31, 32 and 34,
respectively. The Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its variable-rate bank balances as
detailed in Note 25, variable rate bank
borrowing as detailed in Note 29 and
margin loans payable as detailed in Note
33. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

For both 2016 and 2015, in view of the
prevailing market saving interest rate
for bank balance is low, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the
Group's exposures to interest rates risk
are minimal, therefore no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HEz—-F

—RNE+ZA=+—HLFE

38. @M IA (&)
(b) LEEREEEERBE (&)

5 b (&)

(i)

T & 7 B

REE D BIFKT 23 -
31~ 32 R34FFE E BRI
ERKAE - Mg A A
EHER BRHER K
RBREFHABT,E
BRATFEMNERR A&
B Jr gt A sE255F it 2
FBIRTTH 8 M FE295F
iz F BRITER MR
BFIMZEMNRESER
M R IR & 7 7 = &k o R
B B A I 8 5 = R IR
ReoAT EEEBCERF
R TERNEERER
EEHHERFERR -

RZE-—RERZET—TH
FERRITEBRHIRT
MBBENER WAQ
AIEERA ASEHER
B9 7 2 [, B AR o - N A
2| BERE Do
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE-T—

38.

(b)

NETZA=T—HLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i1)

Interest rate risk (continueq)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for the bank borrowings
and margin loans payable at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the bank borrowings
and margin loans payable outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 100
basis points (2015: 100 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2015: 100 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for
the year ended 31 December 2016
and 2015 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$300,000 (2015:
HK$79,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group's exposure to interest rates
on its variable-rate bank borrowings and
margin loans payable.
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Annual Report 2016 — & — N EE R

38.

EMI A (&)
cREABEERERIGEK (&)

(b)

w5 m e (&)

(ii)

FIEE % (&)
BRRE DT
A TSR E 2 AT TH IR IR 4R
TERAREMRESER
R E B R F X E R
BE-BEIWMIERER
ﬁ%%%%%@%ﬁﬂﬁ
ALEMRESCERER
M$Eﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
iﬂﬁTWmmﬁ%E
BRAEBEREAB R
Eﬁﬂ?ﬂ (Z2—=1
F100EER) WK
EREHN RS

B I PO ST A -

i ¥ & EF T F&1001E
E2 (T —AF:1001@
B2 MmerE
HETE AAEEEHZE

“TE-RERZE—REF
+ZA=+—BLFEHN
GIRE Y SER s -
#9300,0007 7L (= — A
& :79,000870) b Ty E
ERERNEEREZER
TERREMRESER
A1 B& &9 T 2= & B«



38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

(i)

Credit risk
As at 31

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its held for trading investments
and available-for-sale investments. The
management manages this exposure
by maintaining the investments with
appropriate risk level. In addition, price
risk was monitored by the management
of the Group who will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

If the price of respective equity
instruments held had been 10% (2015:
10%) higher/lower:

Post-tax loss for the year
would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$6,619,000
(2015: HK$2,841,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of
held for trading investments.

Investment revaluation reserve
would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,766,000
(2015: nil) for the Group as a
result of the changes in fair value
of available-for-sale investments.

December 2016, the Group’s

maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets, mainly trade and other receivables, loan
and interest receivables and bank balances,
as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

e

,\",_

7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-B—<Et_A=t—BILEE
e®MIA (&)

TRABEERERIEEK (&)

5 b (&)

(iii) R EEREER
AEERBHERKFRER
RERAMFHEREHER
BuERRAR -EEER
BAEREE R BRKFOR
BEEZER UL B
REREANEEEREE
E HBRNBEREREY
FRETE R o

i Pris ARRA AR AN RE 25 2 B
BERERI0% (ZF

—HF:10%) :
- HRRBEEEREA

B M AFEERB
‘EEERL,
N#16,619,000
T(ZE—Ah%F:
2,841,000/ 7T) °

HRAHEERE
A ANFEBEME
) IR E B
BRI
1,766,000/ ¢ ( —
T—FHF FT)-

=Em R

AR & RN R AT - R =
E-R"E+-A=+—H &*&
BEBREF I RERTEEME
RSB A REMBEE &K
RETTHEERIBEREE (X
2277 B AT AR R e L At JRE MR IR
e & TR B M BUA K RTS8 )
ZERE{EMEL-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
@:ﬂ:— =

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

38.

(b)

—RNFTZA=t+—HILFE

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

For trade and other receivables, in order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Company has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts (including trade and other
receivables). In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

For loan and interest receivables, the Group’s
management manages and analyses the
credit risk for each of their new and existing
customers before standard payment terms
and conditions are offered. The management
assesses the collateral and credit quality of each
customer based on customer’s background
information, financial position, past experience
and relevant factors. The Group also reviews
from time to time the financial position of the
customers.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s
concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong, which
accounted for 99% (2015: 100%) of the total
trade receivables and 62% (2015: 42%) of the
total loan and interest receivables.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as nil (2015:
80%) and 50% (2015: 96%) of the total
trade receivables were due from the Group's
largest customer and five largest customers
respectively, all within one-stop value chain
services and trading of grocery food products
(2015: all within one-stop value chain services).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 18% (2015:
23%) and 65% (2015: 83%) of the total
loan and interest receivables were due from
the Group's largest borrower and five largest
borrowers respectively.

However, the directors of the Company
consider the credit risk is under control since
the directors of the Company exercise due care
in granting credit and checking the financial
background of these debtors on a regular basis.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the directors of the Company to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as the
Group had continuously incurring operating
losses. The liquidity of the Group primarily
depends on the future funding being available
and the ability of the Group to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due. Details of

which are set out in Note 1.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

3. ©®IA(HE)
(b) LHEREEBEERBE (&)

EERE (&)
RZE—RF+=ZA=+—8"
AR AEEREAEBERARAKRE
RAD RIS R EWER R AF B4
$218% (ZE—HF:23% ) &
65% (ZE—HF :83%) ' A
SEEREREERR-

AW ARREEBREERR
T BHES - TR AR R E
EERERRLGEE Y EMREZ
FEFANTEES -

BN F 7 RBEREEFREE
RYBSEENFRZRIT UL
BESEERARER-

MEBEZEE
ERDERBREETH A&
BEENERAAREEZRARE
BECRERAEFENKE A
RAREZERHES WHE
RenRBITE-

A B RS R I
HAEBEERBAS AR A
EEHEHE ST ERRRKR
TR E & U RAE BRI B
BRI B E LN A
BB K -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

@:ﬁ_g /\EJF:)EJEJF*ELEEE
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 38. €T E(H&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) SEREMRETEBEZEREE(E)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its non-

mBEZmEE (F)

TRAVNARETESREE
ZHETNEHNPR -ZRIIBRES
MEBEEZHTRRERENALE

derivative financial liabilities. The table has been

drawn up based on the undiscounted cash EA A T AX N 2 & F B4l
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest aT /E:ai%ﬁﬁ 5 BB RESGERIE
date on which the Group can be required to XHRITERIEFT AR ERFHEE

EIRN IR fiﬁﬁ?%fﬂiflﬁéﬂ
RIRTREME - HASEOTA & R BIE
MBI DERBEEEBEE-

pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the
banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.

ZEBENERREREASTE
ME - M B RER Y B5t=" 8

The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows

are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is KRITH SRR EEA KR 2 F =Rt
derived from interest rate curve at the end of Ho
the reporting period.
Within More than More than
1 year one year two years Total
oron less than less than undiscounted Carrying
demand two years five years cash flows amounts
—FRH SR—F SRMEF FER
REREE BIRWE EIREF  REREE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TERT TET
2016 —E-RE
Non-derivative FfTEemAE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables FE R BR AR R E A B A 50 10,988 - - 10,988 10,988
Amounts due to JE ﬂ‘#}:?ﬂxﬂx%’émmlﬁ
non-controlling interests 2,995 - - 2,995 2,995
Bank borrowings RITEN 19,181 = = 19,181 19,181
Loan payable ERER 20,115 - - 20,115 20,000
Margin loans payable ERRESER 16,768 - - 16,768 16,768
Convertible bonds kR ES 34,536 23,500 - 58,036 51,337
104,583 23,500 - 128,083 121,269
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38.
(b)

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 38. S@IE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and (b) =EEKREEEEREX (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEBELEE (E)
Within More than More than
1 year one year two years Total
or on less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
demand two years five years cash flows amounts
—FRH SR—4 SRME R
REXEE EIRRF ELREFE  REREE fREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TiEx TER FER
2015 —Z-1%
Non-derivative FiTESRERE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables e BRI Bt P 508 9,977 = = 9,977 9,977
Amounts due to FER IR R & IR
non-controlling interests 2,012 - - 2,012 2,012
Loan from FERBRRERER
non-controlling interests 735 - - 735 735
Bank borrowing RITEN 9,581 = = 9,581 9,581
Convertible bonds AR ES 1,521 43,600 23,500 68,621 54,148
23,826 43,600 23,500 90,926 76,453

Bank borrowings with a repayment on

demand clause is included in the “within 1
year or on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2016 and
2015, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amounts of the bank borrowings amounted
to approximately HK$19,181,000 and
HK$9,581,000 respectively. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors of
the Company do not believe that it is probable
that the bank will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such
bank borrowings will be settled in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
will amount to approximately HK$22,436,000
(2015: HK$12,777,000).

R B R EREREXHRITE
Rt A LM BB —F
NS IEER | ERESEE - N =
E-RNEERZTE—RHFE+=A
=+—H RITERORBIRA
T HFE D B4 519,181,0007 7T
59,581,000 T - & E R A &K H
MR RARIEEIL T8
B RITKITHEERISEE KA
RER - ANAREFHE ZE
BITERTRBERGZEAME
WEFTERBEEE -BR K
CTRELEFMEREREENA
22,436,000 L (ZE—HF:
12,777,000/ 7T ) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_ZT—F+-_A=+—ALFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments
This note provides information about how
the Group determines fair values of various
financial instruments.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial

38. E®MIEA(HE)

(b)

(9]

cREABEERERIGEK (&)

mBEZmEE (F)

fieh )% B M) o 2 B B 7 R 5 HA SR
;%EE’\MEEJW’F'J%%?RT\H Bl E
XEEBEBIETESRBENY
BHNEXTANSREETAER-

TMTANDFENE

A ERHARASERE SR
THEERFENTEZER-

() FEBEERHELFHELY

instruments that are measured at 2T AZAFE
fair value on a recurring basis
Relationship of
key inputs and
Significant significant
Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable inputs
Financial assets 31 December 2016 hierarchy and key inputs inputs to fair value
DFENTE
RZB-RE BAYBERR
ZRZt-H HERGR REBENH BENEABA
SREE HATE DTEER TERAEE EXBARE BB EHNEE
Listed equity securities
LHREERS
Held-for-trading non-derivative HK$79,269,000 Level 1 Quoted closing prices in N/A N/A
financial assets classified as FVTPL (2015:HK$34,022,000) an active market
in the consolidated statement
of financial position
RERMBRRART HRRR 79,269,000 & RERTSNRTESRE TR TER
ATEFABER EREEL (Z2-1%:
BEBEFTEERER 34,022,000/ 7T)
Listed equity securities
IHRARS
Available-for-sale investments in the HK$17,662,000 Level 1 Quoted closing prices in NA NA
consolidated statement of financial (2015: nil) an active market
position
RERMBRRRT HRA 17,662,000/ 7 & RERTSNRTERE TR TER
MRHERE (ZZ-1%:3)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(0 Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

()

Fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December
2015, the management of the
Group anticipated that, based on the
expected business operation level of
Fuyu, the probability of the triggering
event to happen for the year ending
31 December 2016 would be low,
accordingly the fair value of the Profit
Guarantee is valued at zero.

For the year ended 31 December 2016,
as the accumulated profit before tax of
the Fuyu operation from 31 March 2014
to 31 December 2016 cannot meet
the expected level. As a result of the
above event, the liability component and
equity component of convertible bonds
with approximately HK$7,854,000
and HK$3,477,000 were cancelled
accordingly.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HEz—-F

—RNE+ZA=+—HLFE

38. @M IA (&)
(0 EMIBENAFEFE(H)

()

KRBT EATFES
LBTAZAFE (&)

REBEE_Z—RF+=A
=+—BHLFE F&HE
EREES EREKRE
HIZE B E KT REZE
—E-RF+=-A=+—
AILFE ZEEBESH
B ] BE 1t R - BB E R
FMREAFENEHES
REBEE-_ZT-—XF+=
A=+—BLEFE &R
HEB-_T—MWMF=A
=t+t—BE_ZT— K&
+ZA=+—HMOMATR
&1 F K B 2 B 78 Hi K
o A L E M - ATHAR
BEHFENBEESN D RERE
D9 BI#)7,854,0005% 7T &
3,477,000/ 7T 2 # AEFE 5
BH©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=t+—HLEFE

38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(0 Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December
2015, a contingent consideration
was resulted from the acquisition of
YIHE Group (Note 43(a)(iii)). The fair
value of the contingent consideration
arrangement of approximately
HK$1,839,000 (2015: HK$13,165,000)
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015,
which was estimated by applying
the income approach. The fair value
estimates are based on the volatility
of the Company’s shares ranged from
45.8% to 46.1% (2015: 36.8% to
41.3%) and assumed that YIHE has
reached the net profit of less than
HK$7,000,000 for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2016, 2017
and 2018 respectively. This is a level 3

fair value measurement.

During the year ended 31 December
2016, a contingent consideration was
resulted upon acquisition of Inno-Bag
(Note 43(a)(i)). The fair value of the
contingent consideration arrangement
of approximately HK$1,137,000 (2015:
nil) as at the date of acquisition and
as at 31 December 2016 which was
estimated by applying the income
approach. The fair value estimates are
based on the volatility of the Company’s
shares ranged from 45.8% to 46.1%
(2015: nil) and assumed that Inno-Bag
has reached the profit after tax of not
less than HK$1,200,000 for each of the
two years ending 31 March 2017 and
2018 respectively. This is a level 3 fair

value measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(0 Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

()

Fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

As at 31 December 2016, there was
a gain on fair value of contingent
consideration resulted from the
acquisition of the YIHE Group of
approximately HK$11,326,000 (2015:
HK$999,000) recognised in profit or
loss which comprised the price per
share of the Company’s share has been
decreased as at 31 December 2016
as well as the effect of the failure to
meet the condition of the contingent
consideration payable due to the share
issuance condition had not been met in
accordance with the sale and purchase
agreement of the acquisition of YIHE
Group. The fair value of the contingent
consideration payable is determined
by using the probabilistic method with
reference to the projected net profit of
the YIHE Group for the two financial
years ended 31 December 2017 and
2018. The fair value of the contingent
consideration as at 31 December 2016
is approximately HK$1,839,000 (2015:
HK$13,165,000).

Please see note 45 for the disclosure
of the measurement of the contingent
consideration.

Note: There were no transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy in the

current reporting period.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HEz—-F

—RNE+ZA=+—HLFE

38. @M IA (&)
(0 EMIBENAFEFE(H)

()

KRBT EATFES
LBTAZAFE ()

RZE—XRE+ A
=+—H BKEES
SEEATREBERER
KAREBRAFEKZELD
11,326,000 L (=&
— A 4 : 999,000/ 7T) -
EEER-ZTE—XRF+=
A=+—HETEKHAR
AR B AR B R E R
BEKEEEESENEE
e =R IR 0 AT IR T
REEZEKERNHARE K
TR E - BRNIARE
WA ETERBEERE
VTRB2EZEAEBRE
EIE—EFRZF-N
F+-A=+—HIME
BB S TR ORI A R im
FE-RZE—ARF+A
=+—H HAREHA
B4 A1,839,0007% 7T
—Z—FH % 13,165,000
BIT) o

2 MK AT R AT
EHHE

MisE: RARSHE 2F
Bt ERR 2RI &
-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

He—%—

NETZA=+—BIEFE
38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 38.

(0 Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

()

(i)

230

EMI A (&)
(0 EMIBENAFETE(H)

Fair value of the Group’s financial (i) FEEZTHELFER
instruments that are measured T Az FE (&)
at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value FEZZRRAFEFERF
measurements of financial instruments NHEVASERE BN T -
on recurring basis:
Unlisted Contingent
debt consideration
securities payable
Lt B
BERRS RRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January 2015 R-_E—FAF—H—H 5,189 =
Additions NE = (14,164)
Total (loss) profit: @ (E518) & A
— In profit or loss - & (5,189) 999
At 31 December 2015 HRZ-ZZ—HAF+-A=+—AHK
and 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—H—H - (13,165)
Additions NE = (1,137)
Total profit: R A
— In profit or loss - = 11,326
At 31 December 2016 ~ RZ-ZT—XFE+-_A=+—H - (2,976)

The directors of the Company consider
that the carrying amounts of other
financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair
values due to the short-term maturity
or the impact of discounting was not
significant.
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating lease

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due

39.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE
REBMOERRE
REPOET 2&KE
AEBERABA
RBER XEERBENIATHREE
Bz TR R E AN KRR Z &ZIEH
SRIEAPENT

as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —FT—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Within one year —F A 3,793 1,968
In the second to fifth year inclusive FCEERAF (BREEWE) 7,032 1,116
10,825 3,084

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are
negotiated for terms of one to three years (2015: one
to two years) and rentals are fixed over the terms of
the leases.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$3,586,000 (2015: HK$1,521,000).
The properties generated annualised rental yields
of 2.6% (2015: 2.2%) on an on-going basis. The
properties leased out have committed tenants for the
next year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

REHONRRREARERE S T
REYERNZES HORTHRR
—E=F(ZT—hF —FEWF) -
A< R HE A EE T -

AEBEDHEA
FA-FMRGBZUEHERADNAR
3,586,000/8 7T (—ZZF—HF : 1,521,000
BIL) R EMERFEER26% (ZF
—RF:22% )2 FEHERBE B
HEMERRR—FHER, -

2016 2015

—E-RE ZZFT—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAETT

Within one year —FR 3,279 3,083
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EEFRAF (RIEEEMTE) 1,399 2,954
4,678 6,037
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE-_ZT—XEt+-_A=+—RHItEE
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. BARKIE
2016 2015
—R"E —ZT—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of BRERINERNEGE VB
the acquisition of plant and WP BENRERE &
equipment contracted for but RENEARF
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 2,451 1,026
41. SHARE OPTIONS 41. BRE

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
24 January 2002 (the “Scheme 2002"). Pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 6 May 2011, the
Scheme 2002 was terminated and a new share option
scheme (the “Scheme 2011") was adopted.

Under the Scheme 2002, the Company may only
grant share options to the directors of the Company
or any person who is an employee of members of the
Group or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interests. However, the Scheme 2011 provides a
broadened basis of and scope of eligible participation
and enables the Group to reward the employees,
the directors of the Company and other selected
participants for their contributions to the Group.
The Scheme 2002 was expired on 23 January 2012
and the directors of the Company consider that it is
appropriate to adopt the new scheme.
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The purpose of the Scheme 2002 and Scheme 2011
is to enable the Company to grant options to selected
employees to subscribe for shares of the Company
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to
the Group. The board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, invite any full-time or part-time
employees of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive and non-executive
directors of the Company, advisors and consultants
of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company
to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Scheme 2002 and
Scheme 2011 was initially 10% of the issued share
capital as at the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme.

The total number of shares of the Company available
for issue under the Scheme 2002 and Scheme 2011
(including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
An option may be exercised at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Board to
each participant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
employee should pay HK$1.00 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant. The subscription
price for the shares of the Company will be a price to
be determined by the Board and will be the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated
on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of granting of the options; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares on the GEM as stated on the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of granting of
the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
437,000,000 (2015: 64,750,000) share options had
been granted under the Scheme 2011. The Group
recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$11,588,000 (comprised the effect of share options
grant in 2015 and 2016) for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: HK$2,300,000) in relations to

share options granted by the Company.
iz Ly

41.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XR"Ft+-A=1+—HLEE
B E (&)
—EE_FHER T —F5EEE
FEARBELAIREARRGIRG 2 BR
ETRBERE UERBEHAEE
EH BRI BB B - AR FERE
AIRERFEARRRAEREAKER
Al ER2BESGERBES (BREEMAK
NARTEFIERTESF ARAK
RARMEMMB AR Z BB RZBAAN)
BEMBERE ARBARARMD AR
AIRBE_ T _Firg8 T ——F5t
2R T BITZ R BB R R RE
I EIE B 22 EITRAR10% °

BE T _FE8 kT ——F5 &l
(BEBITEREARITERFERRE) o]
FEITHAR TG LS PER2ME
AERTNSHBAARRRTEEETRG
1% BRETNRESSETINE S
S8 7 R ABER T - TEE NI AR
R B BZAMA R R 1.0078 T
RERBREZRE - RAAFTRMN IR
BEBHESSET A ORMHRN
BRERLEAEBIMEERERL
FTHIRBIZER 2 B (DIRD R B
BREREEAMAER S BEBRF
BRMER LMINREIZER 2 FHH
B RN EE=EFRa®E-

ARRRBEZZE—X"F+=-_A=1+—
BlEEERAREBE-_Z——FHE8%LE
437,000,000 ERE (T — R F:
64,750,000) - AL BB ARG EH A
BRERBE-E—F+=A=1+—
HItFEH®RRX B A11,588,000
Yook CEEEIR =R — T aE R = FR
FRUBERECRE) (ZT—RF:
2,300,000) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
NET-_AZ=Z+—HILFE

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

He—%—

41.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

41.

BRE (&)
BRENRERBFHBOT

BE_Z-A"F+-A=1t—HLFE

Date of grant  Vesting period  Exercise period Exercise price  Exercise dates
REBH FESE TESE TEER TEAS
Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 - 13/9/2016-12/9/2019 0.110  12/9/2019
“E-—558 1292016 - 13/9/2016-12/9/2019
Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 1 Year 13/9/2017-12/9/2019 0.110  12/9/2019
“E——F5E 12002016 —% 13/9/2017-12/9/2019
Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 2 Years 13/9/2018-12/9/2019 0.110  12/9/2019
“T——F5E 12902016 kS 13/9/2018-12/9/2019

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-E-AFt-A=+t—-BHLEE

Date of grant  Vesting period  Exercise period Exercise price  Exercise dates
REAH BEHNE THEHE THEER THERY
Scheme 2011 13/7/12015 - 14/7/2015-13/7/2016 0212 13/7/2016
“T——F5E 137712015 = 14/7/2015-13/7/2016
Scheme 2011 13/7/12015 1 Year 14/7/2016-13/7/2017 0212 13/7/2017
“T——F5E 137712015 —& 14/7/2016-13/7/2017
Scheme 2011 13/7/2015 2 Years 14/7/2017-13/7/2018 0212 137712018
“T——F5E 137712015 k3 14/7/2017-13/7/2018
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed  Outstanding
at during during during during at
1/1/2016 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2016
RIB-RE ZE-AE
-B-H +=A=+-H
HATE  REARE  RERTE  REARK  RERAK HATE
Scheme 2011 —T-—FiE 12,950,000 = = - (12,950,000) =
Scheme 2011 “2-—F§E 19,425,000 = = = = 19,425,000
Scheme 2011 “E-—FiE 32,375,000 S = S = 32,375,000
Scheme 2011 —“E-—FiHE - 131,100,000 = = - 131,100,000
Scheme 2011 S - 131,100,000 = = - 131,100,000
Scheme 2011 “E——Fird - 174,800,000 = = - 174,800,000
64,750,000 437,000,000 = - (12,950,000) 488,800,000
Exercisable at the end RERT{THE
of the year 150,425,000
Weighted average METHIER

exercise price

The estimated fair value of the options lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$720,000 which has been transferred from share

0.123

IR ZR =29 anem e o = o — = i
FECANBEREGATFAFENE
720,000 T (ZE—RE:F) HP

BB EREERERTER

options reserve to accumulated losses (2015: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XR"Ft+-A=1+—HLEE

41. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 41. BEIRFE(HE)
Details of specific categories of options are as follows: IR T EREBIT
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE - E—RHE+_-_A=+—HItEE
Outstanding Granted Outstanding
at during at
1/1/2015 the year 31/12/2015
R=-Z-1F —E-1F
-A-H +=A=+-A
fef R AT £ RERFEH fe] R AT fE
Scheme 2011 T —55tE - 12,950,000 12,950,000
Scheme 2011 T —55tE - 19,425,000 19,425,000
Scheme 2011 5513 - 32,375,000 32,375,000
- 64,750,000 64,750,000
Exercisable at the end of RERA{TE
the year 12,950,000
Weighted average IEFHITEE
exercise price 0.212
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-E—XRF+A=+—HLEE
Exercise
Date of grant Exercise period price
sl =R TS TEE
HK$
BIT
Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 13/9/2016-12/9/2019 0.110
—E——F5tE —ZE-RENA+=H :7' /\iﬂﬂ—i— HZE
—hEAA+=AH
Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 13/9/2017-12/9/2019 0.110
—E——F5tE —ZE-RENA+=H —T—+FNAT+=HZE
Z-NFENATZH
Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 13/9/2018-12/9/2019 0.110
—E——F5tE —ZE-R"ENA+=H —E-NFNAT=HZE
Z-NFENATZH
During the year ended 31 December 2016, share BE-_Z2—FXRF+-_A=+—HIHF
options were granted on 12 September 2016. The EBERER-_ZE—"FHLAT-_HE
estimated fair value of the options granted on this BH -REEANBEREZ Gt AT E
grant date is approximately HK$20,146,048. #9520,146,04878 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
Bz—_Z—Ft+-A=+—HLEFE

41. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 41. BRE (&)
The fair value was calculated using the Binomial NEETIR-ZIENRRNGTE - ZEKH
model. The inputs into the model were as follows: BABIENT

2016
S

Maturity date: 12/9/2019
Weighted average share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

Maturity date: 12/9/2019
Weighted average share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

Maturity date: 12/9/2019
Weighted average share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

NP - =E-hAEHLA+=H

HHE 49 AR (B
GTd

8 51K 15

8 1955 P 9

425 B )

78 IR 5.3 37 R

ABMA - ZE—hEhB+=H

P 49 AR (B
T8
TR IR

8 1955 F £

. R =K
TAHAAR 5. R K

I E - ZFE-NAEAATZ=H

InHE 1 R B
1TIE(E
TaHR bR
TR A

B L ) R
BB @R xR

HK$0.1107& T
HK$0.1107& Jt
65.88%

3 years &
0.608%

Nil &

HK$0.1107& 7T
HK$0.1107& T
65.88%

2 years F
0.608%

Nil &

HK$0.1107& T
HK$0.1107& 7T
65.88%

1 year £
0.608%

Nil &

TEHR I8 T BR A AR R R IR (B R B F
ZESLRETIAERE - ZEARAZE
HaE AEHERIEEEE 2 REME
WL Al 88 - TR G RITRRE
ZEEELHE-

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 4 years. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value

— AR DR AR A
FiE- s ERRIER T RS E R
CEVIESS SRR FIs 10
BEEEETFIBEIOTASHHE
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of an option varies with different variables of certain

subjective assumptions.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|BEEREHFRA T
Annual Report 2016 —Z — N EF i

FENCE



41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

41. BRE (&)
BE-Z-—-FA=+—-RAIEE

Exercise

Date of grant Exercise period price

RHEBH TR THEE

HK$

BT

Scheme 2011 13/7/2015 14/7/2015-13/7/2016 0.212
—E——F5t8 —Z-hAFtA+=H —E-hFtAtTmEERE
—E-RFtAT=AR

Scheme 2011 13/7/2015 14/7/2016-13/7-2017 0.212
—E——F5tE —E-RFLAT=AH —_E-REtLtATHEBEE
—E—t+F+A+T=AR

Scheme 2011 13/7/2015 14/7/2017-13/7/2018 0.212
—E——F518 —E-RE+A+=H —E—tFtATHEBEZE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, share
options were granted on 13 July 2015. The estimated
fair value of the options granted on grant date is
approximately HK$5,991,000.

—E-NF+A+=H

HE_FT—AF+-_A=+—8LHF
E -BRERZZTE—RAFtAT+=RHE
B -BEEANEREZGFTATE
#945,991,0005 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

41. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 41. BBIRE (E)

The fair value was calculated using the Binomial ANEEDIE_BEABRTE - ZERXHY
model. The inputs into the model were as follows: BABIENT

2015
—T—RHF

Maturity date: 13/7/2016 APE: —E-X<"FtA+=H
Weighted average share price nwEFHRRE HK$0.212/8 7T
Exercise price 1B HK$0.212/8 7T
Expected volatility B R I8 66.21%
Expected life TEHAfE A HA 1 year
Risk-free rate 2 [ B M) 2R 0.087%
Expected dividend yield TEHANR B Bl % Nil =

Maturity date: 13/7/2017 FfA:- = F—tFtA+=H
Weighted average share price iR (E HK$0.212 7T
Exercise price IEE HK$0.212/8 7T
Expected volatility T8 H R 18 67.07%
Expected life T8 BA{sE A3 AR 2 years F
Risk-free rate 1 3 B M) 2 0.354%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B | ) X Nil =

Maturity date: 13/7/2018 BB —E-N\FtA+=H
Weighted average share price In¥EFHRRE HK$0.212%8 7T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$0.21278 7T
Expected volatility T8 HA R 1@ 87.22%
Expected life TEEAfP AR A 3 years
Risk-free rate B b ) 0.699%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B B i X Nil =

TEHPRIE DRAAR R RERBEME
ZESLRETAERE - ZEARAZE
HAE AEHEREEEE 2 KEME
Wit AR TTERSIRTARE
ZHEELHE-

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 4 years. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

“HRABEADERRAEGEEREZR
FE-FEBREATEMANES KR
BERDENREFREM - BREN
BESRETIBERRNTEZHMNE

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value
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of an option varies with different variables of certain

subjective assumptions.
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42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a MPF for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs capped at HK$1,500 (after June
2015: HK$1,500; before June 2015: HK$1,250) per
month to MPF, in which the contribution is matched
by employees.

Pursuant to the regulation of the relevant authorities
in the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group in this
country participate in respective government
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of the
eligible employees. Contribution made to the Schemes
is calculated base on the certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities
of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes
is to pay the ongoing required contribution under the
Schemes.

Under the Labor Pension Act of Taiwan, Employees
may choose a scheme where the rate of contribution
by an employer should not be less than 6% of the
employees’ monthly salaries and the employees may
also voluntarily contribute up to 6% of the monthly
salaries to the provision fund account under the Labor
Pension Act of Taiwan.

The total expense recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of approximately HK$600,000 (2015:
HK$312,000) represents contribution payable to
MPF and the Schemes by the Group in respect of the
current financial year.

42.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F—~F+-A=+—AILFE
3B AR R 5 B

REEAEFMBREBNGEREELE
BIBES ZEEMEEAXTAE
HINEe BHAEBEESRFE K
ANAIRHEBITENANS%ER T RE
& FBRAFA1008 T (R-_2—H
FRNA% 150087 RZTE—RHFAN
A AI:1,250/87T)  MiE B Mg {EH 8

PGSR -

RETEERER IR NEERZ
B 5K 2 i/ 2 B 2 B B TR R T AR IR 48 A
8 ([ZFEE])  BUtERNE QR
AR ETEI NI URNAER
BEZEARBHM -mZFHEEL 2 #
RIS IR IR BIAR B FTRT AR A Hr A AR
ZETAOHAE -FEEHERAR
AR KIE B BN 2 2 BURIKAER) -
AEBERZEHEAZETEREAREZE
ArEIBES R R

RIERES TRAKSIKD BEREE
BEHRKLEERADRIEER AH6% AT
Z MAREAES TRKEIKOIE R
RMEREHSRPHRAEZSEAFZ
6% °

RiZEBEREMEE WSRO
> #2EE%9600,0008 L (Z T — R F:
312,000 7)) EARSERAM K FEEFE
EEEER Ay
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
NEFE+-A=+—BLLFE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

He—%—

43.

(a)

Acquisition of a business
For the year ended 31 December 2016

(i)

Inno-Bag Limited (“Inno-Bag”)

On 29 July 2016, Treasure Max
Investment Holdings Limited (“Treasure
Max"), a subsidiary of the Company,
the Company and Ms. Kwok (an
independent third party) entered into a
sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which Ms. Kwok had agreed to
sell and Treasure Max had agreed to
purchase 1,200 ordinary shares in Inno-
Bag, representing 60% of the entire
issued share capital of Inno-Bag, at
a consideration in the sum of up to
HK$4,212,000, which shall be satisfied
by cash of HK$2,600,000 and remaining
amount of HK$1,612,000 shall be
settled by issue of not more than
12,400,000 shares of the Company at
HK$0.13 per share (upon the condition
as stated in the sale and purchase
agreement have been satisfied), and
the consideration shares shall be
allotted and issued by the Company
to Ms. Kwok in accordance with the
time, mode and manner set out under
the sale and purchase agreement (the
“Acquisition”).

Details of the Acquisition were set out
in the announcement of the Company
dated 29 July 2016 and 25 August
2016. In accordance with the sale and
purchase agreement, the settlement
of purchase consideration was divided
into two tranches, maximum 6,200,000
shares will be issued at each year during
the first to second anniversary financial
years of Inno-Bag upon the fulfillment of
the level of profit after tax as prescribed
in the sale and purchase agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. WEKEBLT (&)
(@) Acquisition of a business (continued) (a) BB (&)

(i)  Inno-Bag Limited (“Inno-Bag”) (i) (BRI EER LA
(continued) (THERRLK]) (&)
This acquisition has been accounted I8 Uf B B i W SE A
for using the acquisition method. The F-ARBEELENEEY
amount of goodwill arising as a result £3,497,00078 It ©
of the acquisition was approximately
HK3,497,000.

Inno-Bag is principally engaged in (EIRIRN T EWNEAE
trading of recycle bags. The Group has EEASNE S A&
acquired Inno-Bag so as to continue BUEKERRE UF
the expansion of the Group's trading of BRAANEEEEDLE
consumables and agricultural products EmE 50k
segment.
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration transferred: CHEERE:
Cash Re 2,600
Contingent consideration HARRELH
arrangement 1,137
3,737
Details of caculation of contingent STEEMNSARBZEE
consideration payable are set out in note 45. AW FE45 o
HK$'000
TET
Classification of contingent consideration N R A v
payable as at completion of the acquisition ENIAREBZ D
Current BN HA 616
Non-current JE BN &1 521
1,137
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_T—FE+_A=+—BILFE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) Acquisition of a business (continued)

(i)

Inno-Bag Limited (“Inno-Bag”)
(continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of Inno-Bag recognised
as at the date of acquisition were as

WEHE AR ()
(a) WEExE ()
0 (BIRRREFEFRA A
(THERRR]) (&)
A B RRRN WS A A #E
ROARHAEENBED
REEDT

follows:

Fair value

recognised

on

acquisition

Wit B BF

EEN

AEE

HK$'000

FHET

Trade and other receivables JFE K B R 2 L A E s SR TE 203
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 324
Trade and other payables JE AT B R K% L At JE A< SR 1B (128)
Net assets BEFH 399

The fair value of trade and other
receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to approximately
HK$203,000. The gross contractual
amounts of those trade and other
receivables acquired amounted to
approximately HK$203,000 at the
date of acquisition. The best estimate
at acquisition date of the contractual
cash flows not expected to be collected
amounted to approximately nil.
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43.

BE_T—AE+-_A=1+—HLEE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. WEKEB AT (&)
(@) Acquisition of a business (continued) (@) WHBEK (&)
(i)  Inno-Bag Limited (“Inno-Bag”) (i) (BRI EER LA
(continued) ([HERRL]) (&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: W B B A P
HK$'000
FET
Consideration transferred EEERE 3,737
Plus: non-controlling interests N FEER IR R A 2
(40% in Inno-Bag) (RN LRREHEHFL0% ) 159
Less: net assets acquired B T R B E (399)
Goodwill arising on acquisition ~ UEEE LR E 3,497

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

None of the goodwill arising on the
acquisitions is expected to be taxable for
tax purposes.

The non-controlling interest in Inno-
Bag recognised at acquisition date was
measured by their proportionate share of
net assets acquired.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition
of Inno-Bag because the cost of
combination included a control
premium. In addition, the consideration
paid for the combination effectively
included amounts in relation to
the benefits of expected synergies,

revenue growth and future market
development of Inno-Bag. These benefits
were not recognised separately from
goodwill because they did not meet
the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.

A L e M T
TEEI BB T S B A R
B o

B B 4T R 0
RS P AR AR TR 28 5
SR EHREAENL
plst& -

WEXERRREEZA
BIIRA A BIEER
B e UbIN - A H ST EY
HREERLBREESE
= & 38 5 195 [B) R~ Ui R
BRERARKTHERM®S
KM A&
& M a5 3 8 B B ) R
B DR ZEMNmIL A
& B BRI R B RO R
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RIRAE o

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EEFR AT

Annual Report 2016 — & — )N EE R

243



244

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
NE+TZA=+—BILFEE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Acquisition of a business (continued)

He—%—

43.

(a)

(i)

Inno-Bag Limited (“Inno-Bag”)
(continued)

43,

BB E AR ()

(a)

WREE% (&)

(BIRIRREEFRA A
(THRERRR]) (&)

HK$'000
FETT

Net cash outflow in WEKERRRNIBEL R FE:

acquisition of Inno-Bag
Cash consideration HeRE 2,600
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRITEBR R FTNEIR €

acquired (324)
2,276

Included in the profit for the year was
approximately HK$72,000 attributable
to the additional business generated by
Inno-Bag. Revenue for the year includes
approximately HK$1,736,000 generated
from Inno-Bag.

Had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2016, total revenue of
the Group for the year would have
been approximately HK$75,612,000,
and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$33,413,000. The
pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1
January 2016, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) Acquisition of a business (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

(i)

China Smart Asia Limited

(“Smart Asia”)

On 28 May 2015, Skyline Top Limited
(“Skyline™”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Yardley (collectively
“JV Partners”) established Delightful
Hope for the purpose of the acquisition
of Smart Asia. Delightful Hope was
owned as to 50% by each of the JV
Partners.

On 29 May 2015, Delightful Hope,
Yardley and Rich Best Asia, the subsidiary
of Chinese Strategic, which was one
of the substantial shareholders of the
Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which
Rich Best Asia had agreed to sell and
Delightful Hope had agreed to purchase
1 ordinary share of 100% equity
interest in Smart Asia at a consideration
of HK$93,000,000, which settled
and discharged by Delightful Hope in
accordance with the time, mode and
manner set out under the sale and
purchase agreement.

The aggregate consideration of
HK$93,000,000, of which (i)
HK$46,500,000 satisfied by Yardley
by cash or cashier order upon the
completion and (ii) the remaining
balance of the consideration in the
sum of HK$46,500,000 settled and
discharged by the Company’s issuance
to the Chinese Strategic (i) the CB-Ill in
the principal amount of HK$23,000,000;
and (i) the CB-IV in the principal amount
of HK$23,500,000 at completion.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HEz—-F

—RNE+ZA=+—HILFE

43. WIBRKELE (&)
(@) WiEx® (&)

BHE_Z-—AF+_-_A=+—H

HEE

(i) EXRZMNERLE
([#2])

R-ZZ—AFAA-+N
B RERBERAR (AR
AEEMBAR [RE])
HgM(RBAIAER
HDRKRBERKILS
He-FRaBAEBHEE
HEB50% %

RZZE—RAFRA=ZTN
H - 7% - 4% ) & Rich Best
Asia (EARB 2B A
Al E AR AARAR
Ep—FZFERFR)IFIL
B E & IR tkRich Best
AsaRI B ERFEBRAE
BEEADIREIRE
BAY - (& A93,000,000
B EBRAFRMREER
mEAEE EX KRR
A& RIBE-

KB A ££ 593,000,000/
7T H (i) 46,500,000/
T 78 7 58 AR B RO ) A
REXBITAEZM K
(i) {& #2 %846,500,0007
TCAR R E B AR A
MEARBEITOASRE
#23,000,000/%8 JT 2 A &
BiEHE= RVAEER
23,500,000/% JT 2 A # f%
EH MmN RIEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

He—%—

43.

NET-_AZ=Z+—HILFE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. WEMHB AT (&)
(@) Acquisition of a business (continued) (a) IR (8)
(ii)  China Smart Asia Limited (i) ZERZMNERRE
(“Smart Asia”) (continued) ([ZAx]) (&)
This acquisition had been accounted 18 Uk B 2 e Uk B SR A
for using the acquisition method. The BE-FHWHEEEESNE
amount of gain on bargain purchase B W B U 28 49 A507,000
arising as a result of the acquisition was BT - M TENEYWE
approximately HK507,000. Delightful WEX D WEER U
Hope is principally engaged in property EIREAANEBMERE
investment and had acquired Smart Asia
so as to continue the expansion of the
Group's property investment.
Details of the acquisition were set out EkESENFBEER
in the announcements of the Company RKARIBEBA-ZE—HF
dated 29 May 2015 and circular of the EA-+AB®AHER
Company dated 27 July 2015. REIHBA-_T—HF+
AZ+tB®@BEK-
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration transferred: CHEERE:
Cash R 46,500
Issue of CB-IlI, at fair value BITAIRRES = R
(Note 34(c)) (MI5E34(c)) 23,000
Issue of CB-1V, at fair value BT MRESM R AF
(Note 34(c)) (FF#E34(c)) 23,500
93,000

The fair value of CB-Ill and CB-IV at
completion date was valued by Asset
Appraisal using Binomial Option Pricing
model which the Company’s share price
and share price’s volatility are the key
input to the valuation.
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43.

HE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—BLEFE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. WEMB AT (&)
(@) Acquisition of a business (continued) (a) IR 2R (4])

(ii)  China Smart Asia Limited (i) ELXTZMNERLA
(“Smart Asia”) (continued) ([ZEXR]) (&)
Acquisition-related costs amounting B G B S TE AR RS a9 Ak AR 4
to approximately HK$700,000 had 700,000/ TEHEBR A B
been excluded from the consideration HEAREB TEIRESE
transferred and had been recognised as HRHEMEEKEFERNIT
an expenses in the current year, within KX R ERAERNFER
the administrative expenses in the F o
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

The fair values of the identifiable assets FEARNUE B EAERH A

and liabilities of Smart Asia recognised HREELEEAFEED
as at the date of acquisition were as T

follows:

Fair value

recognised

on

acquisition

W BB

BEEW

ANFE

HK$'000

FHET

Plant and equipment e ] 689

Investment properties KEWE 121,010

Trade and other receivables JiE 2 B 5% K2 B A WO R IE 665

Bank balances and cash RITERLRS 707

Trade and other payables JRE A<F B SRR % L At JE A< SR IE (9,607)

Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEBE (19,957)

Net assets FEE 93,507

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE
43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. WEMB AT (&)
(@) Acquisition of a business (continued) (@) WExEXK (&)
(ij)  China Smart Asia Limited (i) ZBATZMNERLE

(“Smart Asia”) (continued)

The fair value of trade and other
receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to approximately
HK$665,000. The gross contractual
amounts of those trade and other
receivables acquired amounted to
approximately HK$9,933,000 at the
date of acquisition. The best estimate
at acquisition date of the contractual
cash flows not expected to be
collected amounted to approximately
HK$9,268,000.

Gain on bargain purchase arising on

([EZx]) (&)

JRE UK B8R R e L At B LW SR TR
RUEBEH 2 A FEDS
665,000;8 7T o R Y fE B
B % EFRUTRR R E A
FRUKBRNEEDEREH
/%9,933,000% 7T - B AR
Y B HIR B A & U ml )
BRBRSRREMBFH
#39,268,000/% JT °

WRELENZERBE WS

acquisition

HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred BeEEAE 93,000
Less: net assets acquired B P R B E (93,507)

Gain on bargain purchase WEEANREBE RS
arising on acquisition 507
None of the gain on bargain purchase MENBEEEENZEE

arising on the acquisitions was expected
to be taxable for tax purposes.

BERERMRRG S
RIERDL

HK$'000
FET
Net cash outflow in acquisition of W& ZERAIR &7 1 F58
Smart Asia

Cash consideration HeRE 46,500

Less: Bank balances and cash B IRITEB R AT IER &
acquired (707)
45,793
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) Acquisition of a business (continued)

(i)

(iii)

China Smart Asia Limited

(“Smart Asia”) (continued)

Included in the loss for the year
2015 was approximately HK$85,000
attributable to the additional business
generated by Smart Asia. Revenue for
the year 2015 includes approximately
HK$982,000 generated from Smart Asia.

Had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2015, total revenue of
the Group for the year would have
been approximately HK$67,718,000,
and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$71,341,000. The pro
forma information was for illustrative
purposes only and was not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1
January 2015, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

YIHE Group

On 28 October 2015, Fantastic Alliance,
a subsidiary of the Company, the
Company and Hexin entered into a
sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which Hexin had agreed to sell
and Fantastic Alliance had agreed
to purchase 35,000 ordinary shares
in YIHE, representing 70% of the
entire issued share capital of YIHE,
at a consideration in the sum of up
to HK$68,544,000, which settled
and discharged by Fantastic Alliance
procuring the Company to allot and
issue the consideration shares at the
price of HK$0.168 per consideration
share (i.e. 408,000,000 to be issued
upon the condition as stated in the sale
and purchase agreement have been
satisfied), and the consideration shares
shall be allotted and issued by the
Company to Hexin in accordance with
the time, mode and manner set out
%the sale and purchase agreement

(the cqwsmon @

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

%Z:t_ =

NETZA=T—HILFE

43. WIBRKELE (&)
(@) WiEx® (&)

(i)

(iii)

ERTMNERA A
([Ex4]) (&)
E-RAFFEERER
ERNMFERBEL
E‘U%’USS,OOO/’%E FEI
ABRERNMEENLD
982,000/ T °

WRBR_T—AF—
A—HB%K" EIJ$;‘%I$
BB =4 /67,718,000
BT MEEEBBEBNA
71,341,000 L - BEE &
HOERFBEAR BT
—EAEWRBEENR S
—AF—A—HAEKMmA
SEERERER 2

RISEEBZIER IR

BIERARKEGE ZAR -
BEEEE
R-ZTZ—AF+A-+N

H - Fantastic Alliance (4
NAEIMBAR)  ARF
REMTLEEHE -
BLEEMEBELE R
Fantastic AllianceR =& &

H & 35,000/% & @Ak (18
EREEE2HE TR
KE70% ) REEH&
= £68,544,000%8 7T *
fiFantastic Alliancef® &
RARBRERKERD
0.168% STl #& K 171X
BERH (BNE B #HHAy
BRHEBEXEE TEITH
408,000,000% ) /5 & &
kR MR ERDABA
NRIRBEE B
ME2XARAFALRFERE
TTYEM([HKESE]) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_ZT—F+-_A=+—ALFE
43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. WEKB AT (&)
(@) Acquisition of a business (continued) (a) IWEBER (8)
(iii)  YIHE Group (continued) (i) HEEH (&)
Details of the Acquisition were set ERWESENEIRR
out in the announcement of the AARBHMAR=-FT—HA
Company dated 28 October 2015. In F+AZ+N\BH A
accordance with the sale and purchase BIEEEHE BERE
agreement, the settlement of purchase AN RENS RE
consideration was divided into forth ERBEREE TR
tranches, 53,040,000 shares would be 53,040,000/ i% 17 » K i
issued upon the completion of sale and BEEWMEFTIET 24 F
purchase agreement, and maximum KFEEEKE REEE
118,320,000 shares would be issued at F_ZENAFTEK
each year during the second to forth FEBFBETETIRS
anniversary financial years of YIHE upon 118,320,000R% i% 17 °
the fulfillment of the level of net profit
as prescribed in the sale and purchase
agreement.
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration transferred: EEERE:
53,040,000 shares at a price of AT B HiL & 8%0.156/8 7T <2
HK$0.156 at completion date {E1&3£7753,040,000/% % 15 8,274
Contingent consideration HARRELH
arrangement 14,164
22,438
China Eco-Farming Limited FE|BEEREHFRA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_Z—AR"F+-_A=1+—BLEFE
43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. WEMB AT (&)
(@) Acquisition of a business (continued) (a) BB (&)
(iii)  YIHE Group (continued) (i) EEEE (&)
Details of calculation of contingent ERAENSARENTE
consideration payable are set out in note 45. SEIEE MY 345 o
HK$'000
FHET
Classification of contingent MY B = 18 SE K R 2 FE AT
consideration payable as at FARE2ZDHE
completion of the acquisition
Current BN ER 5,065
Non-current JE BN A8 9,099
14,164

HE KB E#R AT
BEEMABENKERS

The fair values of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities of the YIHE Group

recognised as at the date of acquisition BRZAFERT:
were as follows:

HK$'000

FHET

Intangible assets mEEE 6,416
Trade and other receivables JRE S R 5% Kz L i 8 UK IE 421
Trade and other payables JE A<F B R K% L At JE A< SR 1B (30)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIBEEE (1,059)
Net assets FEE 5,748

The fair value of trade and other JiE Wt AR SR % HL At P W Rk IR
receivables at the date of acquisition REEBERBH A FENR
amounted to approximately 421,000/ 7T AUk & B
HK$421,000. The gross contractual B ZERWAR R R E A
amounts of those trade and other JERRIBH B E NS REL
receivables acquires amounted to 421,000/ 7T °
approximately HK$421,000 at the date

of acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. WEMB AT (&)
(@) Acquisition of a business (continued) (@) WHEBEXK(H&)
(iij)  YIHE Group (continued) (i) EEEE (&)

Goodwill arising on acquisition: IWEEEAHE:
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration transferred EEENRE 22,438

Plus: non-controlling interests N FEER IR R A 5

(30% in YIHE) (REAHEA30%) 1,724
Less: net assets acquired B T R B E (5,748)
18,414

The non-controlling interest in YIHE
Group recognised at acquisition date
was measured by their proportionate
share of net assets acquired.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition
of YIHE Group because the cost
of combination included a control
premium. In addition, the consideration
paid for the combination effectively
included amounts in relation to the
benefits of expected synergies, revenue
growth and future market development
of YIHE Group. These benefits were
not recognised separately from
goodwill because they did not meet
the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets

REBERPRBNEA S
BT R E SRR E
15 P W BB % & B Y L B

S

WEEAEEELANEHE
Ty R & BF A S B 3 1 B
Eoltsh sh& Hf T E
REER LBREEAE
= &9 38 5 169 R S~ M aR
BREARRTIGERAS
RE)F 2R A BB & BB o 7%
=5 ) 25 30 % S B ) P
B TERZENRIL
6 7l 85| B T B B 0

2 o <)
RIFAE o

HK$'000
TAT

Net cash outflow on WEESEEMRER

acquisition of YIHE Group
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44,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_Z—AR"F+-_A=1+—BLEFE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. WEMB AT (&)
(@) Acquisition of a business (continued) (a) BB (&)
(iii)  YIHE Group (continued) (i) EEEE (&)
Included in the loss for the year was FTEEEREBRBERELSE
approximately HK$398,000 attributable I EBRMEENLY
to the additional business generated by 398,000/ T FE WA
the YIHE Group. Revenue for the year BEEAEBMESLNY
includes approximately HK$289,000 289,000/8 7T °
generated from YIHE Group.
Had the acquisition been completed HWHREBR-_ZE—FHF—
on 1 January 2015, total revenue of B—H®EK B AREEF
the Group for the year would have E 4 Uk 25 49 /566,181,000
been approximately HK$66,181,000, B MFEEEBELA
and loss for the year would have been 60,264,000 - fEE &
approximately HK$60,264,000. The BhEESREAR BT
pro forma information is for illustrative —FTAEKWEBERER_Z
purposes only and is not necessarily —hAFE—A—BTKMA
an indication of revenue and results of EEETREREIR S
operations of the Group that actually L& EE ZEEZ IE
would have been achieved had the EEARKEEZ ZIBA| -
acquisition been completed on 1
January 2015, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.
DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 44, HENR-—BHBLAT &R
On 22 August 2016, the Group disposed of the entire RZEBE—RFNAZ+ZH A&
issued share capital of its wholly-owned subsidiary & 2 2 E KB A 7Alpaco Company
— Alpaco Company Limited, at cash consideration LimitedZ 2 B 2ETRA-IHE KB
of approximately HK$8,097,000. The disposal was #4)/8,097,0008 L Z HEER=F
completed on 22 September 2016. Alpaco Company —RNFANAZ+TZHEK - F KN - Alpaco
Limited was an investment holding company with an Company Limited & — @& &R A F]
investment property located in Hong Kong and its HIREYEMNRES BETEEKA
principal activity was provision of rental service during IRHEERE-
the year.
HK$'000
TETT
Total cash consideration received BWEIE K ERRE 8,097
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

44. DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY
(continued)

44,

HER—BNELEz#ERE (F)

As at
22 September
2016
R=F—XRF
hA=+=H
HK$'000
FHET
Analysis of asset and liabilities over BRAEZHEZEERBEIN:
which control was lost:
Investment property "EYE 9,000
Other receivables Hth & YR IR 3
Deposits received B2z e (25)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 8,978
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—EHBARZEE:
Cash received BWER 2R 8,097
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (8,978)
Loss on disposal HEEsE (881)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZBRERAFHE:
Cash consideration received EWEIR & KE 8,097
Less: bank balance and cash disposed of & : B HERITEHR LIRS -
8,097

During the period from 1 January to 22 September
2016, Alpaco Company Limited contributed to
the Group's revenue and profit of approximately
HK$117,000 and HK$46,000 respectively.

254 China Eco-Farming Limited FE|BEEREHFRA T
Annual Report 2016 — & — )N EE R

BE_ZE—RF-A-HE_ZT—RF
NAZ+=H 8@ Alpaco Company
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(a) YIHE Group
The contingent consideration arrangement has
the following requirements:

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

the Group will allot and issue the
118,320,000 Company’s shares to
Hexin if the net profit of YIHE Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016
is higher than HK$7,000,000 or if the
net profit of the YIHE Group is less than
HK$7,000,000, the shares to be allotted
and issued will be reduced on a pro-rata
basis. No allotment and issuance will
take place if the YIHE Group suffers loss
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

the Group will allot and issue the
118,320,000 Company's shares to Hexin
if the net profit of the YIHE Group for
the year ending 31 December 2017 is
higher than HK$7,000,000 or if the net
profit of the YIHE Group is less than
HK$7,000,000, the shares to be allotted
and issued will be reduced on a pro-rata
basis. No allotment and issuance will
take place if the YIHE Group suffers loss
for the year ending 31 December 2017.

the Group will allot and issue the
118,320,000 Company'’s shares to Hexin
if the net profit of the YIHE Group for
the year ending 31 December 2016,
31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018 respectively is higher than
HK$7,000,000 or if the net profit of the
YIHE Group is less than HK$7,000,000,
the shares to be allotted and issued
will be reduced on a pro-rata basis. No
allotment and issuance will take place if
the YIHE Group suffers loss for the year
ending 31 December 2018.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

%Z:t_ =

NETZA=T—HILFE

45. ENHARE

(a)

A%H

HARRELHAEEUATHRE:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

WEEEEREBEZEZE_Z
—RNFt+ZA=+—81t
FE 2 #F &R 7,000,000
BITHMEAEBR 24
F 4> 527,000,000 7T -
$$HMM%&%ﬁ
118,320,000/% A&~ &) J 19
FEMR: h%m%&%
2 MR ¥ ¥ bt O R fid
BAEERREE-_Z—X
F+-_A=+—BHILEFE
SXEE AR REBT
TgHET

WEEEEREBEE_Z
—+tF+=-A=+—H1
FE 2R Sr7,000,000
BLTIMEEEE 24
F 4 $27,000,0007% T
AlNEEEie s RET
118,320,000/ A~ B {9
FE - T i3 &%
T2 Bzt flm D -
WEEEBERBE_Z
—tF+=ZA=+—H1
FRESEGEER BIEER
BITTE#ETT

SESRRBE=
ﬁ¢+:HE+—
ZE—+&F+=AR
=t+—H - ZF—N\HF
+-A=+—RHLtFEZ
45 R & 727,000,000 7T
HiMEEEE &R
7,000,000 7T Bl A& E
it 3 & 377118,320,000
RARQBRGD TE KM
1 TR RET RGN

DJH??

BRI BIA D - A
KREE=2—\F+-A

SH—BLEEREAE
B BARERETTEE
7

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBZ 4L EEFR AT
Annual Report 2016 — & — )N EE R

35



256

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

He—%—

45.

NFETZA=+—HIFE

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(continued)

(a)

(b)

YIHE Group (continued)

The fair value of the contingent consideration
arrangement of approximately HK$1,839,000
(2015: HK$14,164,000) was estimated by
applying the income approach. The fair value
estimates are based on the volatility of the
Company's shares ranged from 45.8% to
46.1% (2015: 36.8% to 41.3%) and assumed
that the YIHE Group has reached the net profit
of less than HK$7,000,000 for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2016, 2017
and 2018 respectively. This is classified as a
level 3 fair value measurement.

Inno-Bag
The contingent consideration arrangement has
the following requirements:

(i) the Group will allot and issue the
6,200,000 Company's shares to Ms.
Kwok if the profit after tax of Inno-
Bag for the year ending 31 March 2017
is higher than HK$1,200,000 or if the
net profit of the Inno-Bag is less than
HK$1,200,000, the shares to be allotted
and issued will be reduced on a pro-rata
basis. No allotment and issuance will
take place if the Inno-Bag suffers loss for
the year ending 31 March 2017.

(ii) the Group will allot and issue the
6,200,000 Company's shares to Ms.
Kwok if the profit after tax of Inno-
Bag for the year ending 31 March 2018
is higher than HK$1,200,000 or if the
net profit of the Inno-Bag is less than
HK$1,200,000, the shares to be allotted
and issued will be reduced on a pro-rata
basis. No allotment and issuance will
take place if the Inno-Bag suffers loss for
the year ending 31 March 2018.
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45,

BN ANKE (&)

(a)

(b)

HEEE (&)

IARELHEHNRIFED
1,839,000 L (ZE—HF:
14,164,000 7T ) Jh B A AR
Bt AFEBFGDERER
A I N T45.8% E46.1%H) K
B(ZE—RAF: N F36.8%F
413%)TREEAEERER
—E-RF ZE—tER-F
—N\F+ZA=+—HBIL=EF
[§ & F a7 577,000,000
TLoWESBAE=RANRFE

e

B RR R
SARARELHEEUATRE:

(i) WMEKERERENBE_T
—+tHF=ZA=+—H1
FEzZBEBHEEZZMNS RN
1,200,000 7T sk i 5k & 37
REZ f A4 521,200,000
P T AN 5 B A R B K B
776,200,0000% A~ 2~ &) J& {5
Tt T HE B
17 2 B& 19 18 12 Lt (I 38R -
WMEKERERENBE_T
—+tF=ZA=+—HIHF
EEXEE  BIR%E &%
TrEETe

iy THKERREXREBZEZT
—N\NF=ZA=+—81t
FEzZERBEZMN SR
1,200,000/ 7T =k fis il 2 2R
RERZ L 471,200,000
P T AN 5 B A R B K B
776,200,0008% A~ 2 B A% 15
T K TR RE
1T 2 B # 3= te 1 SRR -
WEKEREARRZNEEZ
g = T L
EEXZEE  BIR%E K%
I hEHET



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(continued)

(b)

Inno-Bag (continued)

The fair value of the contingent consideration
arrangement of approximately HK$1,137,000
(2015: nil) was estimated by applying the
income approach. The fair value estimates are
based on the volatility of the Company’s shares
ranged from 45.8% to 46.1% and assumed
that the Inno-Bag has reached the net profit
of less than HK$1,200,000 for each of the
two years ending 31 March 2017 and 2018
respectively. This is classified as a level 3 fair
value measurement.

(i) For the contingent consideration of the
YIHE Group, as at 31 December 2016,
there was a decrease in contingent
consideration payable of approximately
HK$11,326,000 (2015: HK$999,000)
recognised in profit or loss, which
comprised of the de-recognition of
contingent consideration payable for
the year ended 31 December 2016 of
approximately HK$4,066,000 and the
fair value adjustment determined by
using the probabilistic method with
reference to the projected net profit of
the YIHE Group for the two financial
years ended 31 December 2017 and
2018 of approximately HK$7,260,000.
As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of contingent consideration
payable is approximately HK$1,839,000
(2015: HK$13,165,000).

(i) For the contingent consideration of
Inno-Bag, as at 31 December 2016,
there was no fair value change
recognised in profit or loss. As at 31
December 2016, the carrying amount
of contingent consideration payable is
approximately HK$1,137,000.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_Z—XRFt+-A=1+—HLEE

45. BEAIAKE (&)

(b) RERRK(E)
IAREBELHEDNRIFED
1,137,000 70 (ZE—HF : &)
THER R AE b E - R EME
THERERRRMN N F45.8% %
46.1%H) % 1R I R %A BIRIR SR
REBEE-_ZE—+tFR_ZT—\F
AT —HRIEMEFESFHN
L F1,200,00078 7T © L E 5
BAFE=ZARATEFTE-

EEBENHKAKRE
TRZE—RE+ =
A=Z+—B RiEzxm®
REEMNHARET B
#311,326,0008 T (==
— A 4 : 999,000/ 7T) -
HBOERGBREIREEZ
T—ARF+ZA=+—H
LEFEENIKAREL
4,066,000/ 7T & LA A
BMEFENILLETESE
BEREE_Z—+tFk=
E-NFE+-A=+—8H
L PR E B B 4R T2 A TE DRI 45
F#97,260,0007% JT & F
ARFEFE-RZT—X
F+-—A=+—H" EH
SIARENEEEN B
1,839,000 L (ZF—H
113,165,000/ 7T ) °

(i) ‘

3
ol fm}

(i) HMEKEBRERZOIAKRE
mE RZE—RF+=
A=+—8 #ERER
BRNAFEEZSH K=
T—RNE+ZA=+—
H ENKARENER
B4 51,137,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_Z—XF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

45. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 45,
(continued)

BN ANKE (&)

(b)

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|BEEREHFRA T

Inno-Bag (continued)

(b)

Movement of the contingent consideration
payable for 31 December 2016 and 2015 are

RERER (&)
—F

N
B/\\ S
N —

—RNERZE-AF+Z

A=+— A2 EASRR A

as below: mE
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Contingent consideration NTEBEE ZENSIARE:
payable arising on:
YIHE Group BEE&H
— For the year ended —HE_Z—RF
31 December 2016 TZA=T—HLEFE - 5,065
— For the year ended —-BE-_ZT—+F
31 December 2017 TZA=+—RHILFE 4,462 4,462
— For the year ended —BE-ZT-N\F
31 December 2018 TZA=+—RHIEFE 4,637 4,637
Fair value changes NEE (7,260) (999)
1,839 13,165
Inno-Bag PR B IR (R R
— For the year ended —HE_T—LtF
31 March 2017 =A=+—RHIEFE 625 -
— For the year ended —BE_T—)\F
31 March 2018 ZA=1T—RHLLFE 512 -
Fair value changes NEEEE - -
1,137 -
2,976 13,165
Represented by: BRATEEIR:
Current BIER 1,047 4,707
Non-current FEEN AR 1,929 8,458
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has entered

BE-T-AFT-A=t-HILFE
46. BEALRS
(a) MREAUBEHRRABEEIIN K

SEFAEBEALIILATNE

into the following significant transactions with KZ 5
related parties during the year:
Name of company Nature of transaction 2016 2015
ZB-AF —T—I1F
NCIECE REME HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Au Yeung Po Leung (Note a) Loan interest income received (90) -
BLSERR (Fista) B W ERH WA
Beijing HX (Note b) Loan interest income received (106) -
IEREE (Msb) B W ERF WA
Sino Coronet Limited (Note ¢) CB-l interest expense paid 81 265
hEAR AR (KMatc) B AR E S —F B X
Bright Kingdom International Consultancy fee paid 600 600
Limited (Note d)
EEEBRER QA (KMad) EfEREA
Chan Kee Holdings Limited Purchases of grocery food 5,490 -
(“Chan Kee") (Note e) products
REEEBRLGF ([BRE]) BERAORM®
(Mt3xe)
Deposit paid 565 -
SRR &N
Consultancy fee paid 186 -

E R & A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
NEFE+-A=+—BLLFE
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

He—%—

46.

(a)

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

Note e:

Au Yeung Po Leung is the director of the
Company.

Beijing HX is the associate entity of the
Group.

Sino Coronet Limited is the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the shareholder of the
Company.

Bright Kingdom International Limited
is connected with the director of the
Company.

On 4 Febuary 2016, Maxford Wealth
Limited (“Maxford Wealth”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company,
formed an entity named Right Ocean
Asia Limited (“Right Ocean”) with an
independent third party Ms. Yoo (the
spouse of Mr. Chan) and which Mr. Chan
is the substantial shareholder of Chan
Kee. Pursuant to the agreement entered
into by Right Ocean and Chan Kee, Ms.
Yoo and Mr. Chan shall procure Chan
Kee to enter into the trademark licence
agreement and the sole distributorship
agreement with Right Ocean, for the sole
and exclusive sale and distribution of the
grocery food products and right to use
the trademark granted by Chan Kee at
nil consideration within the Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan.

Upon th